# Remedial Design Work Plan

Seneca Market I Site Watkins Glen, New York

Revised June 2005

0092-002-100

Prepared For:

SENECA MARKET I, LLC Watkins Glen, New York

Prepared By:



726 Exchange Street, Suite 624, Buffalo, New York | phone: (716) 856-0599 | fax: (716) 856-0583

## **SENECA MARKET 1 SITE REMEDIAL DESIGN WORK PLAN**

## Table of Contents

1.0 INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Background and History	1
1.2 Environmental Investigations and Remedial Efforts	1
1.2.1 Chlorinated Organic-Impacted Area	1
1.2.2 Other Areas	3
1.3 Intended Future Use of Site	3
1.4 Purpose and Objectives	4
1.5 Project Organization and Responsibilities	4
2.0 CLEANUP APPROACH	5
2.1 Site-Specific Action Levels for Soil/Fill	7
3.0 SOIL/FILL REMEDIATION	8
3.1 Chlorinated VOC-Impacted Soil/Fill	8
3.1.1 Excavation and Disposal	8
3.1.2 Verification Sampling for Chlorinated VOC-Impacted Soil/Fill	9
3.1.3 Backfilling	9
3.2 Petroleum-Impacted Soil/Fill	10
3.2.1 Excavation and Disposal	10
3.2.2 Verification Sampling for Petroleum-Impacted Soil/Fill	11
3.2.3 Backfilling	11
3.3 Groundwater Management	11
4.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY AND COMMUNITY AIR MONITORING	13
4.1 Site-Specific HASP	13
4.2 Community Air Monitoring	13
5.0 EROSION AND DUST CONTROLS	14
6.0 VAPOR BARRIER AND ACTIVE VENTING SYSTEM	15
7.0 POST-REMEDIATION REQUIREMENTS	16
7.1 Soil/Fill Management Plan	16
7.2 Site Cover	16
7.3 Construction Closeout Report	17
7.4 Annual Certification Report	18
8.0 PROJECT SCHEDULE	19



بالمحمد المحمد المحمد المحمد

## SENECA MARKET 1 SITE REMEDIAL DESIGN WORK PLAN

## **Table of Contents**

9.0	CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN	20
10.0	REFERENCES	.21
10.0		. 4. 1

## LIST OF TABLES

Table No.	Description
1	Estimated Quantity of Contaminated Soil/Fill
2	Site-Specific Action Levels
3	Criteria for Use of Off-Site Material as Subgrade Material

## LIST OF FIGURES

Figure No.	Description
1	Site Location Map
2	Site Plan
3	Redevelopment Plan
4	Impacted Soil Excavation Plan
5	Project Schedule

## LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix No.	Description
E	Explanation of Significant Differences
В	TAGM 3038 – "Contained in Criteria for Environmental Media"
С	Site Health and Safety Plan
D	Soil/Fill Management Plan
Е	Citizen Participation Plan

an come where granges rands are caused as the



## **1.0 INTRODUCTION**

#### 1.1 Background and History

Seneca Market I, LLC and Seneca Market II, LLC (hereafter referred to jointly as Seneca Market) own 0.29 and 0.2-acre parcels, respectively within the block bounded by Franklin, First, Decatur Streets, and the Finger Lakes Railway right-of-way in the Village of Watkins Glen, Schuyler County, New York (see Figures 1 and 2). Seneca Market has an option on a 1.76-acre parcel and 0.13-acre parcel within this same block. The approximately 0.29-acre parcel, located along on North Franklin Street, contains the Seneca Market building, a multipurpose shopping and office building located along the northern side of the property. The approximately 0.2-acre parcel contains the former Glen Vintage Auto Museum (presently unoccupied). The western portion of the 1.76-acre parcel contains a large block building that was formerly used as a bus garage and is currently leased to Seneca Hardwoods, a manufacturer of custom flooring. A building foundation, reputedly a remnant of a former Welch's Grape facility, also remains on the 1.76-acre parcel.

The 0.13-acre parcel contains a structure deemed the "former dry cleaning building." This is a two-story brick building that includes two (2) unoccupied single-story brick sheds to the east. A VFW building is located immediately south of the former dry cleaning building, but is outside of the 0.13-acre property limits. The former dry cleaning building is presently occupied by a real estate firm.

The parcels have a history of use that dates back to the 1860s. The Seneca Market building has formerly been used as a foundry; a flour and grist mill; and most recently retail shops on the first floor and professional office space on the second and third floors. A marble works building was formerly present just south of Seneca Market until it was destroyed in 1970. The former Auto Museum was previously used for miscellaneous storage, in particular auto parts. The dry cleaning building has mainly been used for retail businesses, a machine shop, and for dry cleaning operations.

#### **1.2** Environmental Investigations and Remedial Efforts

#### 1.2.1 Chlorinated Organic-Impacted Area

A 1991 Environmental Assessment of the Site revealed that groundwater under a portion of the property (i.e., 20 Franklin Street at the corner of North Franklin and First) was contaminated with chlorinated organic compounds associated with the former dry



cleaning operations. NYSDEC subsequently listed an approximate 0.3-acre portion of the property as a Class 2 inactive hazardous waste site (i.e., "the North Franklin Street Site" -NYSDEC Registry No. 8-49-002). The inactive hazardous waste site encompasses the 0.13acre parcel, including the former dry cleaner building, and a portion of the 0.20-acre parcel. A Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study (RI/FS) performed and completed in 1993 by URS Consultants under a Standby Contract with the NYSDEC delineated the extent of soil and groundwater contamination on and adjacent to the Franklin Street site. URS subsequently designed remediation systems to treat soil and groundwater, pursuant to a Record of Decision (ROD) signed in 1994. The remedial measures included a soil vapor extraction (SVE) system to treat shallow VOC-impacted soil, and a groundwater pump and treat system to extract and treat groundwater adjacent to the former dry cleaner building. The systems were placed into operation in Fall of 1996. Confirmatory soil samples collected during remediation indicated that SVE had effectively cleaned up the soil near the extraction wells, underneath the former auto museum, and to the rear of the former dry cleaning However, in the process of collecting the confirmatory soil samples, it was building. discovered that the soil contaminant concentrations in the immediate vicinity of the dry cleaning building were much higher and extended deeper into clay than previously thought. SVE did not clean up this area of highly contaminated soil to cleanup objectives despite subsequent modifications to and extended operation of the SVE system. Operation of the SVE system was suspended in March 1998 and operation of the groundwater treatment system was suspended at the end of April 1998, pending the results of further investigations.

In 1998/1999, URS performed additional soil investigations and cleanup technology feasibility studies to evaluate deeper soil contamination. It was concluded that chlorinated organic compounds remained on-site in a small area directly adjacent to and outside the former dry cleaning building, as well as beneath the dry cleaner building at depths greater than 16 feet. A chemical oxidation pilot study conducted from March through May 2000 significantly reduced the mass of chlorinated organic contamination remain in soils. Despite the reduction, localized areas of residual chlorinated organic contamination remain in soils and groundwater adjacent to and beneath the former dry cleaner building. In March 2004, an active venting system was installed within the former dry cleaner building to control the potential indoor migration of vapors from the residual contamination. In addition, deed restrictions were placed on the inactive hazardous waste site to prevent usage of groundwater and contact with residual soil contamination.



At the direction of NYSDEC, URS collected air samples within the Seneca Market Building and beneath the concrete floor slab in 2005. The air samples collected beneath the concrete slab contained elevated levels of chlorinated organic compounds. As a result, NYSDEC has contracted URS to design and install an active subslab venting system in the Seneca Market Building.

#### 1.2.2 Other Areas

A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was performed in November 1991 for the parcels on the eastern portion of the subject property. The ESA identified several potential environmental conditions including possible underground storage tanks, drums, an inoperable piston arrangement for a hydraulic lift, and oil spills near the corner of First and Decatur Streets. Petroleum hydrocarbons, lower levels of chlorinated hydrocarbons, and several elevated inorganic compounds related to the above described conditions were detected in the soil and groundwater during the RI/FS. Two areas on the larger parcel that contained soil heavily contaminated with benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and xylene (BTEX) were excavated and bioremediated off-site in the late 1990s. As such, residual BTEX contamination in soil and groundwater may exist proximate to these historic source areas. In addition, the RI identified BTEX contamination in soil/fill and groundwater beneath the former bus garage near the former dry cleaner building. While SVE and/or insitu oxidation treatment of the chlorinated organic impacted soils may have partially addressed the BTEX impacted soils, there is likely residual BTEX contamination in soil/fill beneath the former bus garage.

### **1.3** Intended Future Use of Site

Seneca Market plans to redevelop the approximately 2.38-acre site as a hotel complex (see Figure 3). An additional 0.19-acre parcel along the railroad and 0.21-acre property south of First Street will also be incorporated in the plan to provide space for a hotel veranda and ancillary parking, respectively. With the exception of the Seneca Market building, all buildings and foundations within this entire 2.78-acre site will be demolished to facilitate redevelopment efforts. Areas within the site that are not incorporated into the hotel or related structures will be covered by asphalt parking areas, driveway and landscaping.



3

### 1.4 **Purpose and Objectives**

Seneca Market intends to remediate the residual VOC and petroleum contamination and redevelop the 2.78-acre property under the New York State Brownfield Cleanup Program (BCP). Given the extensive nature of the investigations performed to date, Seneca Market has elected to enter the BCP at the remedial design planning stage. This Remedial Design (RD) Work Plan identifies the scope of planned remedial measures and the means by which they will be completed, including target site-specific cleanup levels, confirmatory sampling requirements, and post-remediation soil management practices.

### 1.5 **Project Organization and Responsibilities**

Seneca Market has applied for entrance into the BCP with the intent to execute a Brownfield Cleanup Agreement (BCA) as a non-responsible party (volunteer) per ECL§27-1405. Benchmark Environmental Engineering & Science, PLLC, shall manage the brownfield cleanup on behalf of Seneca Market. The New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC), Division of Environmental Remediation shall monitor the remedial actions to verify that the work is performed in accordance with the BCA.



## 2.0 CLEANUP APPROACH

As discussed in Section 1.0, residual chlorinated organic contaminant concentrations remain at the site. In particular, three such "hot spot" areas exist beneath and to the east of the side (north) door of the former dry cleaning building: one outside the building at a depth of 0-4 feet below ground surface (bgs); and two are located beneath and adjacent to the building at depths of 4-6 feet bgs (see Figure 4). An additional isolated area of lower level soil/ fill impacts is also located in saturated clayey soils beneath and adjacent to the building at depths greater than 6 feet bgs. Tabulated concentration data and the estimated mass of residual chlorinated VOCs associated with the 0-4' and 4-6' bgs hot spots are presented in Table 1. As indicated, approximately 55 cubic yards of chlorinated VOC-impacted soil/fill is present within these hot spot areas. It is possible that other small, isolated pockets of chlorinated VOC contamination could exist elsewhere beneath and outside of the building.

The NYSDEC has evaluated alternatives for addressing the residual chlorinated organic contamination in site soil near the former dry cleaning building. The evaluation is contained in NYSDEC's May 2003 Explanation of Significant Differences (ESD) (see Appendix A). Specifically, six options were evaluated:

- No Action
- Continued Insitu Chemical Oxidation
- Building Demolition and Soil Excavation
- Passive Venting
- Active Venting
- Soil Excavation/Off-Site Disposal (no demolition)

The ESD concluded that, in the absence of building demolition, active venting of the former dry cleaning building would be the most effective and implementable remedial alternative. Accordingly, an active venting system was installed and placed into operation in March 2004. However, the ESD indicated that if dry cleaning building demolition were to occur, excavation and off-site disposal of the hot spots should be pursued. The ESD further stipulated that redevelopment of the site should be performed under an NYSDEC-approved Soils Management Plan to guide handling of residual contaminated soils that may be encountered during development activities.



In addition to the chlorinated volatile organic areas, petroleum-related contamination in soil and groundwater was encountered at concentrations in excess of 100 ppb beneath the former bus garage during the RI (see Figure 4). It is unknown as to what extent SVE and/or insitu oxidation of the adjacent chlorinated impacted soils near the former dry cleaning building may have reduced these concentrations. Based on the aerial extent of impact as presented on Figure 4 and an assumed maximum depth of contamination of 6 feet below grade, the estimated volume of petroleum-impacted soils in this hot spot is 94 cubic yards. In addition, while certain petroleum source areas were excavated from the eastern portion of the site in the late 1990s, it is possible that residual petroleum impacts exist on the eastern portion of the property. The suspected primary contaminants of potential concern associated with petroleum-impacted soil are BTEX and base-neutral semi-volatile organics.

Consistent with the ESD, Seneca Market plans to implement a remedy under the BCP that will include the following elements, performed concurrent with building demolition and site redevelopment:

- Excavation and off-site disposal of the three chlorinated VOC "hot spot" areas near the former dry cleaning building (see Figure 4). Excavation will proceed to a depth of 6 feet below grade. If PID readings and visual/olfactory observations indicate that significant contamination remains, Benchmark will consult with the NYSDEC to determine if additional excavation is warranted and/or feasible. Groundwater encountered during excavation work will be treated onsite and disposed per an NYSDEC temporary discharge authorization.
- Excavation and off-site disposal of the suspected petroleum-contaminated hot spot soils that may be encountered following bus garage demolition (see Figure 4). Excavation will proceed to a depth of 6 feet below grade. If PID readings and visual/olfactory observations indicate that significant contamination remains, Benchmark will consult with the NYSDEC to determine if additional excavation is warranted and/or feasible. Groundwater encountered during excavation work will be treated onsite and disposed per an NYSDEC temporary discharge authorization.
- Implementation of a Soil/Fill Management Plan to address handling of other areas of contaminated soil/fill that may be encountered during redevelopment and/or post redevelopment construction activities. The Soil/Fill Management Plan will include requirements for soil reuse and/or backfilling.
- Construction of a vapor barrier and active venting system beneath all newly created on-site structures to mitigate intrusion of vapors from residual VOCs in soil and groundwater.

BENCHMARK ENVIRONMENTAL NGINEERING 8 SCIENCE PLLC

• Placement of cover, in the form of asphalt parking, drives, curbing, building foundations and landscaping, to mitigate direct contact with surface soils on the redeveloped property.

As required by the BCP, maintenance of existing institutional controls (i.e., deed restrictions to prevent usage of groundwater) and any other engineering controls (e.g., vapor barriers, cover material) must be certified annually. The annual certification would include assurance that the engineering controls have not been altered and remain effective. In addition, provisions will be made in the redevelopment plan to protect existing groundwater monitoring wells, as NYSDEC will continue to perform long-term groundwater monitoring as part of the operation & monitoring activities at the Site.

A description of the remedial measures is presented in greater detail in Section 3.0.

## 2.1 Site-Specific Action Levels for Soil/Fill

Site-specific action levels (SSALs) have been established for surficial and subsurface soil/ fill on the 2.78-acre Seneca Market Site (see Table 2). These values are derived from remedial goals accepted by the NYSDEC on other restricted use brownfield redevelopment sites, and are generally consistent with NYSDEC Technical Assistance and Guidance Memorandum (TAGM) HWR-94-4046 "Determination of Soil Cleanup Objectives and Cleanup Levels". These action levels are designed to be target values that will be used in determining, with the NYSDEC, the need for and/or continuation of remedial measures. Such decisions will consider the practicality and benefit of remedial construction in light of the restricted use of the site and other planned remedial measures designed to prevent contact with constituents of concern (e.g., vapor barrier, cover material).

Conformance with SSALs will be confirmed via soil sample verification testing. Sample collection and testing protocols are described in Section 3.0 and further delineated in the Site Quality Assurance Plan, submitted under separate cover.



## 3.0 SOIL/FILL REMEDIATION

#### 3.1 Chlorinated VOC-Impacted Soil/Fill

This section delineates remedial actions to be implemented adjacent to and beneath the former dry cleaning building. Soil/fill excavation will occur within three impacted hot spot areas. The approximate impacted limits in each subarea are shown on Figure 4. Table 1 summarizes approximate quantities of impacted soil within these subareas (est. 55 CY). In addition to these subareas, lower levels of VOC contamination have been detected in saturated, native clayey soils in an isolated area adjacent to and beneath the former dry cleaning building at depths greater than 6 feet below grade. However, due to feasibility issues associated with removal of these materials and the low permeability of the clayey soil, excavation of these deeper soils will only be performed if significant contamination remains.

#### 3.1.1 Excavation and Disposal

Excavations will proceed to the depth and lateral extent identified on Figure 4 based on the soil/fill testing already performed and documented in the insitu oxidation pilot study report (Reference 1). The lateral extent of excavation will be adjusted as determined by field observations and confirmatory sampling. A photoionization detector (PID) may also be employed to assist in field determining the limits prior to confirmatory sampling. Where visibly impacted soil/fill is encountered along the sidewalls of the excavations in layers greater than 0.5 feet thick, soil/fill removal will continue. Visible contamination is defined herein as visible non-aqueous liquid or semi-liquid globules disseminated within the soil/fill matrix.

Excavated hot spot soils will be loaded to lined dump trailers for disposal at a permitted TSDF. Based on the source of the VOC-impacts (alleged disposal of dry cleaning fluids), the hot spot soil/fill is considered impacted by a listed hazardous waste (F001), and will therefore need to be handled and disposed as a hazardous waste unless it meets "action level" criteria presented in NYSDEC's November 1992 TAGM 3038 – "Contained in Criteria for Environmental Media" (Appendix B). However, data presented on Table 1 indicate that average contaminant concentrations for the residual VOCs adjacent to and beneath the former dry cleaning building generally exceed the "action level" criteria. Accordingly, Seneca Market will arrange for transportation by a licensed hauler and disposal



at a facility capable of employing off-site treatment (e.g., exsitu chemical oxidation) to reduce VOCs below RCRA treatment standards prior to secure landfill disposal.

Excluding soil/fill within the 0-4' hot spot (which will be treated and disposed offsite), other shallow soil/fill that is excavated for the purpose of reaching the 4'-6' hot spots will be staged on plastic sheeting and re-used as subsurface backfill in accordance with Section 3.1.3.

#### 3.1.2 Verification Sampling for Chlorinated VOC-Impacted Soil/Fill

Verification sampling will be performed on the sidewalls and bottom of the excavation after lateral and vertical excavation limits have been achieved and visibly impacted soil/fill has been removed. In general, one sidewall sample will be collected on each of the four sides of the excavation and one sample will be collected from the bottom of the excavation. The samples will be collected by retrieving a representative sample from across the excavation face. The backhoe bucket will be used to assist in sample collection and avoid the need for confined space entry. For excavations having lengths greater than 100 feet, an additional sample will be collected for each additional 100 feet of excavation length. Sample collection methodology is further described in the Quality Assurance Plan. Verification samples will be analyzed for Target Compound List (TCL) VOCs in accordance with NYSDEC SW-846 Methodology. The laboratory will be required to furnish an equivalent ASP Category B deliverables package to facilitate data evaluation by a third party validation expert. Accordingly, the samples will be analyzed by an NYSDOH ELAP-approved laboratory certified to perform CLP work.

Lateral and vertical excavation will continue as described above until visually impacted soil/fill is less than 0.5 feet thick, the SSALs for VOCs are met, or NYSDEC agrees that no further excavation is required. Factors that may preclude or restrict excavation include physical conditions (e.g., utilities or buried foundations) or property ownership considerations for excavations near property lines. Large concrete debris will not be excavated unless desired by the owner. All field decisions concerning the limits of excavation shall be approved by the NYSDEC site representative.

#### 3.1.3 Backfilling

Subgrade material used to backfill excavations or to increase site grades or elevations in all areas of the site shall meet the following criteria:



- Excavated on-site soil that does not have a detectable odor or exhibit elevated PID readings (i.e., >5 ppm), or exhibit visual evidence of contamination shall be deemed suitable for subgrade backfill.
- Off-site soil/fill will originate from known sources having no evidence of disposal or releases of hazardous substances, hazardous, toxic or radioactive wastes, or petroleum. If the off-site soil/fill is of unknown origin or it originates from a commercial, industrial or urban site then it must be tested in to meet the criteria identified on Table 3.
- No off-site materials meeting the definition of a solid waste as defined in 6NYCRR, Part 360-1.2(a) shall be used as backfill.

All backfill material will be compacted in 12-inch lifts with the backhoe bucket or other methods approved by the field inspector or resident engineer. Excavations remaining overnight will be surrounded with orange construction fencing.

## 3.2 Petroleum-Impacted Soil/Fill

This section delineates remedial actions to be implemented in connection with the petroleum-impacted soil fill hot spot that may be encountered following bus garage demolition. Such impacts are expected to be visually discernible.

### 3.2.1 Excavation and Disposal

Excavation will proceed to a depth of 6-feet below grade, consistent with chlorinated VOC-impacted soil/fill excavations. The lateral and vertical extent of excavation will be determined based on field observations and confirmatory sampling. A photoionization detector (PID) may also be employed to assist in field determining the limits prior to confirmatory sampling. Where visibly impacted soil/fill is encountered along the sidewalls of the excavations in layers greater than 0.5-feet thick, soil/fill removal will continue. Excavated soils will be placed on plastic sheeting and characterized for off-site disposal at a permitted solid waste facility as municipal solid waste, or for reuse as alternative daily landfill cover under a beneficial use determination. The number and frequency of samples and parameters will be dependent on the requirements of the off-site disposal facility. Typical characterization requirements are described in Appendix D.



#### 3.2.2 Verification Sampling for Petroleum-Impacted Soil/Fill

Verification sampling will be performed on the sidewalls and bottom of the excavation after lateral and vertical excavation limits have been achieved and visibly impacted soil/fill has been removed. In general, one sidewall sample will be collected on each of the four sides of the excavation and one sample will be collected from the bottom of the excavation. The samples will be collected by retrieving a representative sample from across the excavation face. The backhoe bucket will be used to assist in sample collection and avoid the need for confined space entry. For excavations having lengths greater than 100 feet, an additional sample will be collected for each additional 100 feet of excavation length. Sample collection methodology is further described in the Quality Assurance Plan. Verification samples will be analyzed for TCL VOCs and Base-Neutral SVOCs in accordance with NYSDEC SW-846 Methodology. The laboratory will be required to furnish an equivalent ASP Category B deliverables package to facilitate data evaluation by a third party validation expert. Lateral and vertical excavation will continue as described above until visually impacted soil/fill is less than 0.5 feet thick, the SSALs are met, or NYSDEC agrees that no further excavation is required. Similar to chlorinated VOC-impacted soils, other limitations may include physical restrictions (e.g., utilities) or property ownership considerations for excavations near property lines.

#### 3.2.3 Backfilling

Subgrade material used to backfill excavations or to increase site grades or elevations in all areas of the site shall meet the criteria identified in Section 3.1.3.

#### 3.3 Groundwater Management

Groundwater elevation measurements recorded during the RI indicate that groundwater is present in the vicinity of the former dry cleaner and southern portion of the former bus garage at depths of 5 feet below ground surface. Perched water may also be encountered on clay lenses within the upper 5-foot zone. As such, excavation of chlorinated VOC and petroleum-impacted soils described above will likely require dewatering to reach the required excavation depths. Groundwater management may also be required during the redevelopment period to handle water encountered during building demolition and construction.

Water removed from excavations and surface water run-in to excavations during the remediation and redevelopment periods will be treated onsite prior to discharge to the storm



sewer, consistent with operation of the former NYSDEC groundwater pump & treat system. NYSDEC will provide temporary discharge authorization and will establish discharge concentration limits. In general, water removed from excavations will be stored/settled in a portable steel tank (Baker Open/Closed Top Tank or equivalent), and pumped through a bag or cartridge filter prior to treatment using granular activated carbon (GAC). GAC vessels will be plumbed in series to allow for organic breakthrough monitoring between the lead and lag vessels. Upon completion of excavation dewatering work, the tank will be decontaminated via pressure washing and spent filter bags will be containerized for off-site disposal. Spent GAC will be characterized (TCLP VOC testing) and regenerated off-site, or disposed at a permitted TSDF in accordance with applicable federal and state regulations.



## 4.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY AND COMMUNITY AIR MONITORING

## 4.1 Site-Specific HASP

A Site-Specific Health and Safety Plan (HASP) will be prepared and enforced by the remediation contractor in accordance with the requirements of 29 CFR 1910.120. The HASP will cover all on-site remediation activities. Benchmark's HASP is provided for informational purposes in Appendix C. The contractor will be required to develop a HASP as or more stringent than Benchmark's HASP.

## 4.2 Community Air Monitoring

-----

Real-time community air monitoring will be performed during voluntary cleanup construction activities at the Site. A Community Air Monitoring Plan is included with Benchmark's HASP. Particulate and VOC monitoring will be performed along the downward perimeter of the work area during subgrade excavation, grading and soil/fill handling activities in accordance with this plan. This plan is consistent with the requirements for community air monitoring at remediation sites as established by the New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH) and NYSDEC. Accordingly, it follows procedures and practices outlined under NYSDOH's Generic Community Air Monitoring Plan (dated June 20, 2000) and NYSDEC Technical Assistance and Guidance Memorandum (TAGM) 4031: Fugitive Dust Suppression and Particulate Monitoring Program at Inactive Hazardous Waste Sites.



## 5.0 EROSION AND DUST CONTROLS

In conjunction with the performance of brownfield cleanup activities at the site, an important element of soil and fill management is the mitigation and control of surface erosion from stormwater runoff and wind borne dust.

A Master Erosion Control Plan to be used by all remediation contractors and developers has been prepared and incorporated as an attachment to the Soil/Fill Management Plan, (Appendix D). This Erosion Control Plan includes provisions for: silt fencing, hay baling, mulching, and other measures, as warranted.

Dust suppression techniques will be employed as necessary to mitigate fugitive dust from unvegetated or disturbed soil/fill to the extent practicable during construction and redevelopment. Such techniques shall be employed even if the community air monitoring results indicate particulate levels are below action levels. Techniques to be utilized may include one or more of the following:

- Applying water on haul roads.
- Wetting equipment and excavation faces.
- Spraying water on buckets during excavation and dumping.
- Hauling materials in properly tarped containers or vehicles.
- Restricting vehicle speeds on-site.

-----

- Covering excavated areas and materials after excavation activity ceases.
- Reducing the excavation size and/or number of excavations.

All reasonable attempts will be made to keep visible and/or fugitive dust to a minimum.



## 6.0 VAPOR BARRIER AND ACTIVE VENTING SYSTEM

All new buildings and structures designed for regular occupancy will be constructed with a foundation vapor barrier to mitigate subslab vapor intrusion from residual chlorinated and/or petroleum VOCs in subsurface soil and groundwater. The vapor barrier will be comprised of a minimum 8-mil poly membrane placed beneath and in contact with the underside of the concrete floor slab at the lowest floor level(s) within the building.

In addition, an active venting system will be designed and installed beneath the vapor barrier. The active venting system will be comprised of perforated lateral piping, placed within the gravel bedding beneath the slab and manifolded to a blower that is exhausted to the outdoors.



-----

## 7.0 POST-REMEDIATION REQUIREMENTS

#### 7.1 Soil/Fill Management Plan

This Work Plan addresses remediation activities to be performed as part of the Brownfield Cleanup of the site. Following completion of the Brownfield Cleanup activities, certain post-remediation requirements will need to be implemented by current and subsequent owners or developers of the site.

Attached as Appendix D, is a Soil/Fill Management Plan (S/FMP) that provides protocols for the proper handling of site soil/fill during development activities. The plan includes provisions for:

- Excavation, grading, sampling and handling of site soils.
- Acceptability of soils/fill from off-site sources for backfill of subgrade fill.
- Erosion and dust controls prior to final cover by buildings, parking and landscaping.
- Fencing and other access controls.
- Health and safety procedures for subsurface construction work and the protection of the surrounding community.
- Acceptability and placement of final cover.
- Site use restrictions.
- Program responsibilities.
- Certification and reporting requirements.

#### 7.2 Site Cover

The proposed site redevelopment plan (see Figure 3) will inherently provide for a minimum of 4-inches of impervious cover across over 82% of the 2.78-acre site by asphalt or reinforced concrete parking, drives, walks, building floors and foundations. Remaining property, encompassing less than ½ acres, will be enhanced with landscaping and lawn area. Landscaping and lawn areas will include a minimum of 6-inches of topsoil placed over subgrade soil/fill.



-----

Topsoil used for final soil cover shall meet the following general specifications:

• Fertile, friable, natural loam surface soil, capable of sustaining plant growth, free of, clods of hard earth, plants or roots, sticks or other extraneous material harmful to plant growth. Supply a well-graded topsoil with the following approximate analysis:

(a)
-----

Sieve Size	Percent Passing by Weight
3-inch	100
No. 4	>75
No. 200	>30
0.002 mm	<20

(b) pH 5.5 to pH 7.6.

- (c) Minimum organic content of 2.5 percent as determined by ignition loss.
- (d) Soluble salt content not greater than 500 ppm.

In addition to the above specifications, all topsoil must originate from a reputable supplier/source having no evidence of disposal or releases of hazardous substances, hazardous, toxic or radioactive wastes, or petroleum.

Grass seed used for the final soil cover shall be a perennial seed suitable for northeast climates. Non-grassed areas (e.g., landscape shrubs/beds) should be covered with chip mulch to mitigate erosion around plantings.

### 7.3 Construction Closeout Report

------

A construction closeout report will be prepared and submitted to the NYSDEC and after the site is remediated. The report will be stamped by a NYS licensed Professional Engineer and will be submitted within 90 days of completion of the remediation. At a minimum, the report will include:



- A Site or Area planimetric map showing the parcel(s) remediated.
- A survey showing: the lateral limits of excavation, the grade before excavation, the grade when excavation is complete, and grade following backfill where soil/fill is excavated. The survey will be accurate to within 0.1 feet on a grid spacing no greater than 25-feet by 25-feet.
- Tabular summaries of unit quantities including, at a minimum: volume of soil/fill excavated; disposition of excavated soil/fill and collected ground/surface water; volume/type/source of backfill; volume of ground/surface water pumped and treated.
- Planimetric map showing location of all verification and other sampling locations with sample identification labels/codes.
- Tabular comparison of verification and other sample analytical results to SSALs or other pertinent acceptance criteria. An explanation shall be provided for all results exceeding acceptance criteria.
- Copies of daily inspection reports.
- Text describing the excavation activities performed, a description of any deviations from the Work Plan and associated corrective measures taken, and other pertinent information necessary to document that the site activities were carried out in accordance with this Work Plan.
- A certification by a licensed NYS Professional Engineer that all work was performed in accordance with the Brownfield Cleanup Agreement and approved Brownfield Cleanup Program Remedial Design Work Plan.

## 7.4 Annual Certification Report

The site Owner shall complete and submit to the NYSDEC an annual report by January 15 of each year. Such annual report shall contain certification that: the institutional controls put in place are still in place, have not been altered and are still effective; the remedy and protective cover have been maintained; and the conditions at the site are fully protective of public health and the environment. If the cover system has been breached during the year covered by the Annual Report, the site Owner shall include a certification that all work was performed in conformance with the Soil Fill Management Plan.



## 8.0 PROJECT SCHEDULE

The remedial design and remedial actions detailed in this Work Plan shall be completed within approximately 9 months of the execution of the Brownfield Cleanup Agreement. Figure 6 presents an overall project schedule for the performance of remedial construction and redevelopment activities.



به ومعريق الم

.

-----

and the second second

## 9.0 CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN

In accordance with NYSDEC's Brownfield Cleanup Program guidance, a Citizen Participation Plan is required for this effort. A Citizen Participation Plan is included as Appendix E.



سے د یہ

يهداروا يورا تعدد العدر العد الدار

the second se

. .

## **10.0 REFERENCES**

need readers to the state

سايوه ا

- 1. Evaluation of Site Remediation by Insitu Oxidation. North Franklin Street Site, Watkins Glen (V). URS, March 2001.
- 2. Explanation of Significant Differences North Franklin Street Site, Village of Watkins Glen. Registry No. 8-49-002. New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, May 2003.
- 3. Final Remedial Investigation Report. North Franklin Street Site, Watkins Glen (V). URS Consultants, Inc. August 1993.
- 4. Final Feasibility Study Report. North Franklin Street Site, Watkins Glen (V). URS Consultants, Inc. November 1993.



~

RD WORK PLAN SENECA MARKET SITE

## **TABLES**



0092-002-100



#### TABLE 1

#### ESTIMATED QUANTITY OF CONTAMINATED SOIL/FILL

### Remedial Design Work Plan Seneca Market 1, LLC Village of Watkins Glen, New York

Depth Interval	Location (total # of samples collected)	Area Contaminated Above SCGs (ft <sup>2</sup> )	Volume Contaminated Soil (ft <sup>3</sup> )	Contaminant	Average Concentration (ug/kg)	Total Mass of Contamination <sup>2</sup> (lbs)			
0-4' Fill	Underneath Building (2)	19	76	Tetrachloroethene Trichloroethene 1,2-Dichloroethene Vínyl Chloride	109,907 0 0 0	0.8397 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000			
	Outside Building (7)	108	433	Tetrachloroethene Trichloroethene 1,2-Dichloroethene Vinyl Chloride	208,878 0 0 0	9.0480 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000			
4-6' Fill / Clay Interface	Underneath Building (3)	221	442	Tetrachloroethene Trichloroethene 1,2-Dichloroethene Vinvl Chlo <del>r</del> ide	1,368,428 1,118 1,492 0	60.4845 0.0494 0.0659 0.0000			
	Outside Building (Area 1) (10 total for all outside)	35	70	Tetrachloroethene Trichloroethene 1,2-Dichloroethene Vinyl Chloride	0 0 123 0	0.0000 0.0000 0.0014 0.0000			
	Outside Building (Area 2)	161	322	Tetrachloroethene Trichloroethene 1,2-Dichloroethene Vinyl Chloride	131,221 12,080 13,154 0	1.522 0.1401 0.1520 0.0000			
	Outside Building (Area 3)	58	116	Tetrachloroethene Trichloroethene 1,2-Dichloroethene Vinyl Chloride	0 0 655 0	0.0000 0.0000 0.0077 0.0000			
Subtotals	Underneath Building (6)	5	518	Tetrachloroethene Trichloroethene 1,2-Dichloroethene Vinyl Chloride Subtotal		61.32 0.05 0.07 0.00 61.44			
	Outside Building (23)	ç		Tetrachloroethene 1 Trichloroethene 1,2-Dichloroethene Vinyl Chloride 5 Subtotal 1					
Total	All Areas (29)	1.	459	Tetrachloroethene Trichloroethene 1,2-Dichloroethene Vinyl Chloride		71.90 0.19 0.22 0.00 72 31			

more than the solution and the solution

Notes:

المراجع والمراجع والمراجعين مستعمر مستمسم ومستو

1. Average concentration based on weighted average of contaminant detections within the contaminated soil area.

2. Assumed soil density is  $100 \text{ lb/ft}^3$ 



### TABLE 2

## SITE SPECIFIC ACTION LEVELS (SSALs)

## Remedial Design Work Plan Seneca Market 1, LLC Village of Watkins Glen, New York

Parameter	Maximum Concentration in Soil/Fill (ppm)
Individual VOC	1
Total VOCs	10
Total SVOCs	500



-----

### TABLE 3

## CRITERIA FOR USE OF OFF-SITE BACKFILL AS SUBGRADE MATERIAL

## Remedial Design Work Plan Seneca Market 1, LLC Village of Watkins Glen, New York

Parameter	Individual Concentration (mg/kg)	Total Concentration (mg/kg)
TCL VOCs	1	10
TCL SVOCs	-	500
RCRA Metals (8)		
Arsenic	12	-
Barium	600	-
Cadmium	1	-
Chromium	40	-
Lead	500	-
Mercury	0.2	-
Selenium	3.9	
Silver	10	-
Pesticides/Herbicides	less than TAGM #4046	-
TCL PCBs	-	1

بالمحمد بعاطف الاحتجاجة

RD Work Plan Seneca Market Site

## FIGURES



0092-002-100

.

## **FIGURE 1**







DATE: WAY



## SCALE: 1" = 30' (APPROX.)

SOURCES: Chlorinated Organic Impacts - NYSDEC Explanation of Significant Differences - North Franklin Street Site, May 2003. BTEX Impacts - DRAFT Remedial Investigation, June 1993, URS Consultants, Inc.









## PROJECT SCHEDULE

						BRC	WNFIEL	SENECA		T 1, LLC	ELOPME	NT												(	ENVIRO	HMARK
			20	005											20	06									-	000000
ID	Task Name	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May
1	BCP Pre-Application Meeting												-													
2	Submit Draft Application & RD Work Plan																									
3	NYSDEC Review, Fact Sheet Preparation																									
4	Advertise BCP Appln, Distribute Fact Sheet						-																			
5	Public Comment Period																			-		_				
6	BC Agreement Issued			Í																						
7	BC Agreement Reviewed/Executed																									
8	Demolition																									
9	Hotspot Soil Excavation/Disposal			C.				]														0.0000000				
10	Building Permits/Approvals							]																		
11	Redevelopment																									
12	Construction Certification Report																									
13	Hotel Opening																									
14	Institutional Control Fact Sheet																									
								F	FIGURE	5																

RD WORK PLAN Seneca Market Site

## **APPENDIX A**

**EXPLANATION OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES** 



0092-002-100

\*

----

## **EXPLANATION OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES** North Franklin Street Site

Village of Watkins Glen / Schuyler County / Registry No. 8-49-002 / May 2003

Prepared by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation Division of Environmental Remediation

### 1.0 INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this notice is to describe the progress of the cleanup at the North Franklin Street Site and to inform you about a change in the site remedy. The North Franklin Street Class 2 inactive hazardous waste disposal site is an approximately 0.3 acre parcel of land situated in the Village of Watkins Glen, Schuyler County. The site is located in an urban area approximately 400 feet south of Seneca Lake. Two (2) structures currently exist on site. The building referred to as the "Former Auto Museum" is a single-story metal building on a concrete slab. At the present time, this building is apparently being used for storage. The second structure is referred to as the "Former Dry Cleaning Building." This is a two-story brick building that also includes two (2) unoccupied single-story brick sheds to the east and the "VFW Building attached to the south." The former dry cleaning building is currently occupied by a gift store and an adjacent antique shop (see Figures 1 and 2).

On January 26, 1994, the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) signed a Record of Decision (ROD) which selected a remedy to clean up the site involving active soil vapor extraction (SVE) and groundwater extraction and treatment technologies. The state funded remedial design was completed by the NYSDEC's engineering consultant, URS Consultants, Inc. (URS) in June 1995. Construction of the treatment systems was completed and operations began in the Fall of 1996. Confirmatory soil samples collected during remediation indicated that SVE had effectively cleaned up the soil near the extraction wells, underneath the former auto museum, and to the rear of the former dry cleaning building. However, in the process of collecting the confirmatory samples, it was discovered that the contaminant concentrations in the immediate vicinity of the dry cleaning building were much higher and extended deeper into clay than previously thought. SVE did not clean up this area of highly contaminated soil despite subsequent modifications to and extended operation of the SVE system. Operation of the SVE system was suspended in March 1998 and operation of the groundwater treatment system was suspended at the end of April 1998, pending the results of further investigations. Additional investigations and a chemical oxidation pilot study were performed through 1999 into May 2000 on the remaining soil contamination. In November 2001, URS's final report on the additional investigations and the pilot study concluded that the chemical oxidation pilot study program significantly reduced the mass of chlorinated contaminants in on-site soils. Despite the reduction, however, localized areas with residual contaminant concentrations exceeding remedial action objectives for soils remain concentrated within the deeper clay, approximately four (4) to six (6) feet below ground surface.
The purpose of this Explanation of Significant Difference (ESD) is to describe how the residual contaminated soil and groundwater will be addressed. The change to the remedy includes the placement of deed restrictions to prevent usage of groundwater and contact with residual soil contamination in addition to the installation of an active venting system within the former dry cleaner building to control the potential indoor migration of vapors. In addition, the natural attenuation of groundwater contaminant levels will be monitored.

This ESD will become part of the Administrative Record for this site. The information here is a summary of what can be found in greater detail in documents that have been placed in the following repositories:

Watkins Glen Public Library 610 Decatur Street Watkins Glen, NY (607) 535-2346	NYSDEC Div. of Environmental Remediation 625 Broadway, 12 <sup>th</sup> Floor Albany, NY 12233-7013	NYSDEC Region 8 Office 6274 East Avon-Lima Road Avon, NY 14414 (716) 226-5326
Hours: M,W,F 12-5 & 7-9	David Chiusano, Project Manager	Attn: Linda Vera
Hours: T, TH: 10-5 & 7-9 Hours: Sat. 11-3, Sun 2-4	(518) 402-9812 Mon Fri. 7:30am - 3:30pm	By Appointment Only

Although this is not a request for comments, interested persons are invited to contact the NYSDEC's Project Manager for this site to obtain more information or have questions answered.

# 2.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND ORIGINAL REMEDY

# 2.1 Site History, Contamination, and Selected Remedy

a. <u>Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study:</u> A 1991 environmental assessment of the site revealed that groundwater under the site is contaminated with dry cleaning chemicals. Therefore, the NYSDEC added the site to its official list of inactive hazardous waste disposal sites as a Class 2 site. A classification of 2 means the site poses a significant threat to public health and/or the environment and action is required.

The NYSDEC completed a state-funded Remedial Investigation (RI) in April 1993, concluding that both groundwater and soils in the vicinity of the site had been contaminated by volatile organic compounds (VOCs) associated with the former dry cleaning operations. Dumping of tetrachloroethylene (PCE) contaminated water in an alley between the former auto museum and the former dry cleaning building was identified as the major source of contamination.

b. <u>**ROD Remedy:**</u> After a Feasibility Study (FS) was completed in November 1993, the NYSDEC prepared and signed the ROD on January 26, 1994. In accordance with the requirements of the ROD, a SVE system to treat shallow soil (above the clay layer) and a Groundwater Extraction Treatment System (GWET) to extract and treat groundwater was designed. The ROD required that the SVE system be operated until soil cleanup objectives were achieved, and for the GWET system to operate for five (5) years or until it was determined that further operation would not result in a significant reduction in contaminant concentrations.

c. <u>Remedial Design/Remedial Action:</u> The NYSDEC and URS completed the statefunded remedial design for the site in June 1995. The contract to construct and operate the SVE and GWET systems was subsequently awarded to Terra Vac, Inc. under URS oversight. Terra Vac completed construction of the treatment systems and began operations in the Fall of 1996.

Confirmatory soil analysis conducted during implementation of the remedy determined that the soil remedial action objectives had been achieved in areas beneath the former auto museum and the back of the former dry cleaning building of the site. At the same time, a previously unknown small vertical column of soil contamination existing along the former dry cleaning building foundation was identified. The contamination extends from 2 feet below ground surface to approximately 16 feet below ground surface within the deeper clay. It was ultimately determined by review of the field data generated that the original concept for remediation outlined within the ROD would not be feasible to clean up the remaining deeper contamination.

The GWET system was operated and monitored during this time and determined to be successful in reducing contaminant concentrations within the source area. Operation of the SVE system and GWET system were subsequently suspended by Terra Vac until further evaluation of the contamination was completed.

d. <u>Additional Investigations:</u> From the Fall of 1998 to the Fall of 1999 URS performed additional soil investigations and cleanup technology feasibility studies to evaluate the deeper soil contamination. Based on this work it was concluded that an estimated 370 pounds of contamination remained at the site, the majority of which was located in a small area directly adjacent to and outside the former dry cleaning building. Additional contamination was also located beneath the dry cleaners at depths of greater than 16 feet.

In the Winter of 1999, it was determined that the site was a viable candidate for chemical oxidation. As such, a pilot study was conducted by URS at the site from March 2000 through May 2000.

# 3.0 CURRENT STATUS

In November 2001, URS' report on the pilot study was approved by the NYSDEC. That report concluded that the chemical oxidation pilot study program significantly reduced the mass of chlorinated contaminants in on-site soils. The two (2) injection events have reduced the total mass of chlorinated organic compounds by approximately 79 percent, from an estimated 367 pounds to 78 pounds. Despite the reduction, localized areas with residual contaminant concentrations exceeding remedial action objectives for soils still remain concentrated at the depth of 4 to 6 feet within the subsurface clay below the building. As such, it is recommended that active venting be implemented. However, if the former dry cleaning building is demolished in the future by the site owner, soil excavation below the slab is recommended. Both of these options also include the placement of deed restrictions and continued groundwater monitoring.

# 4.0 DESCRIPTION OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES

# 4.1 New Information

SVE, groundwater extraction and treatment, and in-situ chemical oxidation activities conducted at the North Franklin Street Site have significantly reduced the mass of chlorinated organic contaminants in on-site soils. Despite this reduction, residual contaminant concentrations exceeding remedial action objectives remain. In particular, three (3) such areas exist beneath and just to the east of the side (north) door of the former dry cleaning building; one outside the building at a depth of 0-4 feet below ground surface (bgs.), another is located beneath the building at a depth of 4-6 feet bgs, and one is located beneath and adjacent to the building at depths greater than 6 feet bgs. (see Figures 3, 4, and 5). In light of the site hydrogeology, it is likely that other small, isolated pockets with high levels of contamination may exist elsewhere beneath and outside the building. The ability to remediate these pockets of contamination by active soil vapor extraction and additional chemical oxidation injections is limited by the following factors:

The depth of fill beneath the east (concrete floor) section of the building is greater than elsewhere on the site and the fill includes large stones, cobbles, wood and other debris. This material is very heterogeneous and permeable, making it difficult to introduce a vacuum or distribute in-situ treatment reagents effectively and uniformly throughout the contaminated zone. Two (2) inside wells were installed through the concrete floor of the building. However, at five (5) other drilling locations, refusal was encountered due to obstructions within the underlying fill material, and the holes had to be abandoned prior to well installation.

The high concentrations of chlorinated organic compounds may indicate the presence of pockets of dense non-aqueous phase liquid (DNAPL). Active soil vapor extraction and in-situ chemical oxidation are generally not effective for the treatment of DNAPL and many injection events might be required to reduce contaminant levels in DNAPL-impacted or other high-concentration areas to acceptable levels.

Outside the building, the fill is shallower and less permeable. However, a significant mass of contamination (9 pounds) is estimated to remain in the shallow (0-4 foot) depth interval, including some locations with high residual contaminant concentrations. Because this zone is unsaturated, a large volume of reagent would be necessary to provide artificial saturation over a sufficient area and for a sufficient time to insure uniform and effective reagent distribution.

Different options have been considered to address residual soil and groundwater contamination at the North Franklin Street Site:

<u>**Option 1** – No Action:</u> This option, as well as Options 2 through 6, includes the following two passive measures: (a) deed restrictions; and (b) long-term groundwater monitoring.

*Deed restrictions*: The presence of groundwater contamination and residual soil contamination at the site, including localized areas with relatively high contaminant concentrations, makes unrestricted future use of the

site impractical without additional active remediation measures. Without such additional measures, deed restrictions would be required to prevent potable groundwater use and contact with the remaining residual soil contamination. Since contamination also occurs at greater depths (albeit it at generally lower concentrations), extending downward through the clay confining unit, restrictions will be necessary to prevent the installation of potable water supply wells at the site. A soils management plan would be developed to address the residual contaminated soils that may be excavated from the site during future redevelopment. The plan would require soil characterization and, where applicable, disposal/reuse in accordance with NYSDEC regulations. Moreover, the property owner would complete and submit to the NYSDEC an annual certification until the NYSDEC notifies the property owner in writing that this certification is no longer needed. This submittal would contain certification that the institutional controls put in place, pursuant to the ESD, are still in place, have not been altered, and are still effective.

*Groundwater monitoring*: Monitoring data suggest that the natural attenuation of groundwater contamination is occurring at the North Franklin Street Site. In general, chlorinated organic solvent plumes have been documented to attenuate, to varying degrees, as a result of physical, chemical and biological processes occurring within the subsurface. At this site, natural attenuation appears to be occurring as indicated by the occurrence of VOC breakdown products within monitoring wells located at and downgradient from the site.

The total cost for this option is estimated to be approximately \$150,000. The costs for this option are associated with an annual groundwater monitoring analytical fee of \$5,000 for a thirty year time period.

**Option 2 – Continued In-Situ Chemical Oxidation:** In addition to deed restrictions and groundwater monitoring, Option 2 includes the continuation of in-situ treatment by chemical oxidation. The two (2) in-situ chemical oxidation injections performed to date have effectively removed most of the contaminated soil mass from the site. Moreover, although the effects of the chemical oxidation pilot study upon groundwater quality at the site are not clearly evident to date, the source reduction that took place will undoubtedly lead to improved groundwater quality over the long term. However, it is unlikely that additional treatment applications using chemical oxidation or any other in-situ technology would, within a practical time frame and cost, achieve sitewide compliance with remedial action objectives or ensure that pockets with relatively high levels of contamination do not remain. For this reason, it is considered likely that, if institutional controls and/or measures to protect building occupants are found to be necessary now (i.e., given the residual contaminant levels occurring on the site at present), they would also be necessary after the performance of additional chemical oxidation injections.

The total cost for this option is estimated to be approximately \$170,000 associated with two full scale treatments by a qualified contractor along with the costs for groundwater monitoring

<u>Option 3 – Building Demolition and Soil Excavation</u>: The deed restrictions associated with this option are intended in part to prevent future disturbance of and contact with residual soil contamination.

In addition to the placement of deed restrictions and monitoring groundwater natural attenuation, Option 3 also includes the demolition or partial demolition of the existing on-site building, and the excavation and off-site disposal of shallow contaminated soil adjacent to and beneath the building, as required. Almost 95 percent of the estimated residual on-site soil contaminant mass occurs within the 0-4 foot and 4-6 foot depth ranges. The combined area in which soil contamination from these depth ranges exceeds remedial action objectives is only approximately 25 feet by 35 feet. Although excavation and off-site disposal of this contaminated soil would not be practical with the former dry cleaning building in place, it would be the most complete, dependable and permanent remedy for the site if the building is removed. However, it would not be practical to remove all soil contamination from the site, specifically the deeper contamination that permeates the clay layer. Therefore, a deed restriction prohibiting deep excavations and/or the construction of on-site potable water supply wells would be necessary in any case. A soils management plan would be developed to address the residual contaminated soils that may be excavated from the site during future redevelopment. The plan would require soil characterization and, where applicable, disposal/reuse in accordance with NYSDEC regulations. Moreover, the property owner would complete and submit to the NYSDEC an annual certification until the NYSDEC notifies the property owner in writing that this certification is no longer needed. This submittal would contain certification that the institutional controls put in place, pursuant to the ESD, are still in place, have not been altered, and are still effective.

The total cost for this option is estimated to be approximately \$300,000. The primary costs for this option are associated with excavation and offsite disposal of contaminated soil (\$240,000) and building demolition (\$60,000). No operation and maintenance costs would be required for this option.

**Option 4 – Passive Venting:** In addition to deed restrictions and groundwater monitoring, Option 4 includes the installation of a passive venting system within the existing building, assuming that the building remains standing at the site. A passive venting system could be constructed to control the potential migration of VOCs from subsurface soils beneath the building and prevent the potential for human exposure. Slotted pipe would be installed beneath the floor of the former dry cleaning building, with discharge to the atmosphere via a roof vent. Slotted collection pipes would be installed directly below the existing slab, would be located approximately 5 feet apart and would extend the width of the building (approximately 20 feet wide). It is estimated that six trenches would be necessary, for a total of approximately 125 linear feet of slotted collection pipe. To install the pipe, 1-foot wide trenches would be cut through the concrete floor. The 1-foot wide section of concrete and a quantity of the subgrade material would be removed to allow for installation of the slotted pipe and gravel. Following pipe installation, the concrete slab would be restored. The collection pipes would be extended out the wall of the building where they would connect to one common vent. Following restoration of the concrete floor, a sealant or plastic membrane would be applied to prevent vapors from migrating upwards through any cracks or holes in the floor. The total cost for this option is estimated to be approximately \$20,000. Most of the costs for this option are for the slotted PVC screen and for the costs to repair the concrete slab. No operation and maintenance costs would be required for this option.

A soils management plan would be developed to address the residual contaminated soils that may be excavated from the site during future redevelopment. The plan would require soil characterization and, where applicable, disposal/reuse in accordance with NYSDEC regulations. Moreover, the property owner would complete and submit to the NYSDEC an annual certification until the NYSDEC notifies the property owner in writing that this certification is no longer needed. This submittal would contain certification that the institutional controls and engineering controls put in place, pursuant to the ESD, are still in place, have not been altered, and are still effective.

**Option 5 - Active Venting:** In addition to deed restrictions and groundwater monitoring, Option 5 includes the installation of an active venting system consisting of a small fan or blower mounted outside the building. To prevent contaminant migration into the building this type of system would create a positive flow of air from underneath the floor through pipes and suction holes that are cored through the floor. For this option, it is assumed that two extraction points would be located near the center of the concrete slab. To allow for the use of the building space, a 1-foot wide trench would be cut through the concrete floor, and PVC pipe would be installed to the desired extraction point(s). Following pipe installation, the concrete floor would be restored. Additional extraction points would be cored through the floor near the outside walls where piping could be installed above the floor and mounted on the walls. All collection pipes would extend out the wall of the building where they would manifold to one common vent connected to the exhaust fan. The discharge from the fan would then be extended up the outside wall of the building. The total cost for this option was estimated to be \$19,000. In addition, a separate power supply would have to be installed, in addition to the monthly utility bills for system operation. O&M costs for the first year of operation have been estimated at \$13,000, and \$5,000 annually thereafter.

A soils management plan would be developed to address the residual contaminated soils that may be excavated from the site during future redevelopment. The plan would require soil characterization and, where applicable, disposal/reuse in accordance with NYSDEC regulations. Moreover, the property owner would complete and submit to the NYSDEC an annual certification until the NYSDEC notifies the property owner in writing that this certification is no longer needed. This submittal would contain certification that the institutional controls and engineering controls put in place, pursuant to the ESD, are still in place, have not been altered, and are still effective.

**Option 6 - Soil Excavation / Off-Site Disposal:** Excavation of the soil in close proximity to the building, although possible, presents difficult logistical problems. The integrity of the one hundred year old building is a major consideration due to its age and its foundation consisting only of stacked stone. There was no guarantee that excavation activities would not damage or destroy the building. Additionally, excavation would not remove the soil immediately adjacent to the building, which is the most highly contaminated, due to limitations of conventional bracing and shoring systems. Contaminated soil underneath the building also would not be addressed. Finally, because significant sources of contamination would remain in-place, the time to achieve restoration of the site would be many years.

# 4.2 Comparison of Changes with Original Remedy

# a. Soils:

January 1994 ROD Remedy - Approximately 1,000 cubic yards of subsurface soils were to be treated in place with the use of a soil vacuum extraction system designed to remove volatile organic contamination. Soil vapors collected by this process were monitored/sampled and treated, as necessary, to reduce contaminant concentrations to levels which are protective of human health and the environment and in compliance with New York State standards, criteria, and guidelines before being released into the atmosphere. This action was expected to take four (4) to eight (8) months from start-up.

May 2003 ESD Remedy - Based upon the above discussion, the "no action" (Option 1) is not recommended because of doubts concerning its long-term protectiveness. Secondly, although additional contaminant mass removals could undoubtedly be achieved by further treatment using chemical oxidation (Option 2), there is not a clear and achievable end for such treatment. Moreover, active or passive venting would still likely need to be implemented after additional treatment by chemical oxidation was completed. Given the fact that the current building owner continues to operate a viable business at this location, Option 4 (Passive Venting) and Option 5 (Active Venting) were further evaluated for implementation. For both options, the placement of deed restrictions and groundwater monitoring would be necessary. Active venting (option 5) has been determined to be the better of the two options when considering the similarity in costs, and less disruption to the ongoing business operations within the former dry cleaner building during installation of the active depressurization system. However, should the building be proposed for demolition by the site owner in the future, Option 3 (Building Demolition and Soil Excavation) is recommended for implementation, and a proposal defining the extent of soil excavation would be required.

The primary objective for implementation of both Options 4 and 5 is to prevent the migration of contamination into the building. The majority of the contamination is assumed to be located under the middle section of the building where the floor is concrete, 4 to 6 inches thick. The dimensions of this area are approximately 20 feet by 30 feet. The front portion of the building consists of plywood on wood joists. While it is assumed that only the concrete portion will be addressed, both options could be extended underneath the front portion of the building. Both systems would provide a measure of protection against the intrusion of contaminants into the building. Natural wind and variations in atmospheric pressure would allow the passive system to vent any contamination that may accumulate beneath the slab. However, by its very nature, the active system (Option 5) provides better protection of the structure, since a slight vacuum is always maintained below the slab. Of the two options, installing the passive system (Option 4) would be more disruptive to any ongoing operations inside the building, since the entire concrete section of the floor would be cut up and replaced, not to mention greater quantities of material for disposal, replacement concrete, etc. Due to

the building limitations, much of this work would have to be performed manually. The active system (Option 5) potentially would be easier to install, since much less cutting through the concrete floor would be required. There would be no cost associated with the operation of the passive system (Option 4). Monitoring the effectiveness of the remedy is expected to be the same regardless of whether active or passive venting is implemented. No indoor air contaminants have been detected in the limited samples collected previously (although some contamination was observed during the oxidation events inside the building). Sampling would probably consist of Summa canister samples before and after implementation, to be collected on a monthly basis for the first summer after installation (assuming that the building operates only during the summer months). Assuming that no detections are noted, the sampling could probably continue with only one or two samples per year, again depending on the use and occupancy of the building. Moreover, a soils management plan would be developed to address the residual contaminated soils that may be excavated from the site during future redevelopment. The plan would require soil characterization and, where applicable, disposal/reuse in accordance with NYSDEC regulations. The property owner would complete and submit to the NYSDEC an annual certification until the NYSDEC notifies the property owner in writing that this certification is no longer needed. This submittal would contain certification that institutional and engineering controls put in place, pursuant to the ESD, are still in place, have not been altered, and are still effective.

# e. Groundwater:

January 1994 ROD Remedy - Contaminated groundwater was extracted through a groundwater recovery well system with on-site treatment through an air stripper. The selected remedy for groundwater will meet surface water discharge standards. The effectiveness of this alternative will be evaluated after five (5) years from treatment system start-up, or sooner if warranted, using data generated from the monitoring program.

<u>May 2003 ESD Remedy</u> - The natural attenuation of groundwater contaminant levels will be monitored. The treatment measures that have been implemented at the site will continue to reduce groundwater contaminant concentrations over time. The SVE treatment system that operated from 1996 to 1998 and the more recent (2000) in-situ chemical oxidation pilot study have removed the majority of soil contaminant mass from within the source area. Nevertheless, at the present time, the concentration of chlorinated VOCs remains elevated above NYSDEC Class GA criteria in a number of wells at and downgradient from the site. Therefore, to ensure that residual on-site contamination does not cause groundwater contamination at levels high enough to significantly impact Seneca Lake or other downgradient receptors, long-term groundwater monitoring will be required.

# 5.0 Schedule and More Information

The conceptual design for a venting system, including cost and proposed layout, was completed in February 1999 by the NYSDEC. A re-evaluation of the costs and options for contaminant migration into the building was completed in February 2003. A full remedial design, including a long-term groundwater monitoring plan, will be completed once the scope of work for this ESD are found acceptable to the NYSDEC and the New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH) and funding becomes available. This information will also be presented to the project contact list through a fact sheet.

For more information the ESD and other information about the North Franklin Street Site is available for review at the following locations:

Watkins Glen Public Library	NYSDEC Region 8 Office
610 Decatur Street, Watkins Glen	6274 E Avon-Lima Rd.
(607) 535-2346	Avon, NY 14414
Hours: M, W, F 12-5 & 7-9	(585) 226-5326
T, Th 10-5 & 7-9, Sat. 11-3, Sun. 2-4	(Contact Linda Vera for an appointment)

# For Technical Questions About the ESD, Contact:

David Chiusano, Project Manager NYSDEC Central Office 625 Broadway, 12<sup>th</sup> Floor Albany, NY 12233 -7013 (518) 402-9813 Linda Vera, Citizen Participation Office Region 8 NYSDEC Office 6274 E. Avon-Lima Rd. Avon, NY 14414 (585) 226-5326 nfesdtig0.tif (1275x1755x2 tiff)

> For Site-Related Health Questions About the ESD, Contact: Mark VanValkenburg, Chief Western Section, Bureau of Environmental Exposure Investigation New York State Department of Health Flanigan Square 547 River Street, Room 300 Troy, NY 12180-2216 (800) 458-1158, ext. 27860 5/01/03 Date David J. Chiukano, Projeci Manager Section D Remedial Bureau D 5/2/23 Date Folu Robert C. Knizek, Chief Section D Remedial Bureau D 57 Date Edward Belmore, Director Remedial Bureau D 5/2/03 Salvatore Ervolina, Assistant Director Division of Environmental Remediation Date 46/03 Date Dale Desnoyers, Diffetor Division of Environmental Remediation -Page 11 of 11

.....

÷

÷

ы Ц. . .

z

----



-

nfesdfig1.tif (1275x1755x2 tiff)



ł



nfesdfig3.tif (1275x1755x2 tiff)

1

and the second second



nfesdfig4.tif (1275x1755x2 tiff)

1

المترجم والمستقدية المستقد المتعرب والمستقد والمناقب والمستقد والمتعرب والمنافع والمنافع والمستقد والمستقد والم



المراجعة فالمارية والمتحد وتراجيه المراجع والمراجع المراجع والمراجع المراجع والمراجع

nfesofig5.tif (1275x1755x2 tiff)

# APPENDIX B

TAGM 3038 – "Contained in Criteria for Environmental Media"

and the second sec



. . . .

0092-002-100

۰.

. ....

-----

and a second

3.7 York State Department of Environmental Conservation MEMORANDUM Cited Druc RHWRE, Bureau Directors, Section Chiefs TO: Jim Harrington, Chief, Technology Section FROM: TAGM 3028: "Contained In" Criteria SUBJECT: DFC 2 0 1995 DATE:

Attached is a copy of TAGM 3028 from DHSR along with Appendix 1 dated 10/31/94. This TAGM was issued November 30, 1992 but the appendix was revised October 31, 1994 and distributed without the TAGM. This has caused a great deal of confusion in the use of the document.

This TAGM defines the regulatory status for contaminated media, and Appendix I provides the Action Levels for Groundwater and Soil/Sediment for that determination. The pertinent points are summarized below.

1. The TAGM states that environmental media (soil, sediment, and groundwater) containing listed hazardous wastes (according to 6 NYCRR Part 371) must be managed as hazardous wastes unless, or until, the concentrations of the listed contaminants are reduced to, or below, the Action Level concentrations in the attached Appendix I. The purpose of the policy is to set minimum criteria (Action Levels) for contaminated environmental media which must be met in order to determine whether it should be managed as a hazardous waste or as a solid waste. Management as a hazardous waste causes more stringent requirements, e.g., minimum technology standards; groundwater monitoring; land disposal restrictions; and closure/post-closure standards.

Appendix I had previously been distributed by itself with the title of "Action Levels ..." and the document was being mistakenly interpreted as cleanup levels for hazardous waste sites. This document does not provide cleanup levels (explicitly stated on page 2 of the TAGM). DHWR uses the process contained in DHWR TAGM 4046 for the determination of clean up levels.

- 2. This policy does not apply to waste or to any residuals derived from treatment. As an example, spent activated carbon from treating wastes is not addressed under this policy.
- 3. This policy applies to those contaminated media which are removed from their natural environment pursuant to a State or federal issued permit, order, etc. This policy does not apply to the consolidation of wastes on site. Consolidation is covered under TAGM 3038: Active Waste Management.
- 4. Compliance with Action Levels in this TAGM "... does not necessarily mean that the media is entirely decontaminated and acceptable for unrestricted use."

Page 1 of 3

Solid treated media that has been removed off site is subject to regulation as a solid waste under Part 360. Similarly, aqueous treated wastes must satisfy the full Part 700 series which regulates discharges into groundwater and to surface waters.

# 5. Implementation

a. <u>Demonstration</u>

This policy cannot be self-implemented by the facility. Contained In determinations will be made by NYSDEC based on a demonstration that the contaminated media meets the criteria.

b. Work Plan

The facility must submit a work plan to NYSDEC for approval. Work plans must address listed hazardous waste components for all media. The work plan shall also address hazardous constituents from all other known or suspected sources of contamination.

c. <u>Management of Wastes "At or Below Action Levels"</u> Upon initial removal or after treatment -

Solids may be:

- (i) disposed on site as a non-hazardous solid waste; or
- (ii) shipped off site as a non-hazardous industrial solid waste to a Part 360 permitted facility.

Aqueous wastes may be:

- (i) discharged on site as a non-hazardous waste under a SPDES permit or Department Order; or
- (ii) shipped or discharged off site as a non-hazardous industrial solid waste to a POTW or an industrial wastewater treatment facility.
- 6. Action Level Concentrations

Action levels to be used are listed in Appendix I "Action Levels for Groundwater and Soil/Sediment" and only focus on the direct human ingestion exposure pathway. Further information on the development of action levels may be found in Appendix A of the TAGM.

Some action levels are not promulgated standards and may change from time-

Page 2 of 3

to-time. The appendix will be updated quarterly, if necessary. If the appendix is more than three (3) months old, it should not be used without first checking with the Corrective Action Section, Bureau of Hazardous Compliance and Land Management (518-457-9255). (Note that the TAGM reference for assistance on page 6 is no longer correct.)

7. Please be aware that USEPA is in the midst of developing a Source Screening Guidance document which is expected in the very near future. The federal program, when implemented, would replace TAGM 3028. The Technology Section will notify you when this change is made.

If you have any questions on this TAGM relative to the DHWR program, please call the Technology Section and we will happy to provide assistance.

Attachments cc: N. Kolak ORY STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION DIVISION OF HAZAHOOUS SUBCTANCES RECULATION

BUR DF TECHNICAL SUPPORT

Technical

Administrative

Guidance

Memorandum

# Hemorendum 3028 Page 1 of 21 Subject "Contained-In" Criteria for Environmental Media Cale: November 30, 1992 X New Obsolete

Supercedes Memo No

I. Policy

**Technical Manual** 

Environmental media containing hazardous constituents from listed hazardous waste identified in 6 NYCRR Part 371, must be managed as hazardous wastes unless or until the media contain hazardous constituent concentrations which are at or below action level concentrations.

# II. Applicability

This "contained in" policy only applies to soil, sediment, and groundwater contaminated by listed hazardous waste and removed from their natural environment pursuant to a Department or EPA issued permit, order, approved closure plan, or approved corrective action plan (hereinafter referred to as permit/order/work plan). This policy does not apply to listed or characteristic hazardous wastes as initially generated or residuals derived from treating these listed hazardous wastes. Such residuals may include: fly and bottom ash from the incineration of listed hazardous waste; precipitation and biological sludge from the wastewater treatment of listed hazardous waste; spent activated carbon from the treatment of listed hazardous waste.

# III. Intention and Purpose

The policy is primarily intended for situations where contaminated media, especially soil, is expected to contain low concentrations of listed hazardous waste for which treatment may not be practical or feasible. By far the most frequently occurring situation which this policy will address is the excavation of such

TAGTASFAM

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION
DIVISION OF HAZARGOUS SUBSTANCES REGULATION
BUREAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT

Fechnical
Administrative
Guidance

.. .

Memorandum

Technical Manual

	2020 Bass 2 = 21	
Lieno	nudur 3028 Page 2 07 21	
sume "Contained-In" Criteria		
for	Environmental Media	
Casto:	November 30, 1992	
$\mathbf{\Sigma}$	N •	
	Obsolete	
	Supercedes Mezzo No	

contaminated soils for planned and emergency projects
• at RCRA facilities, including both RCRA Corrective
Action and facility construction and reconstruction
activities.

It is the purpose of this policy to set minimum criteria (i.e., action levels, cover requirements, and restricted access) for an environmental medium contaminated by listed hazardous waste which must be met in order to preclude its management as hazardous waste. Otherwise, management as hazardous waste could trigger one or more of the following stringent land disposal requirements:

- minimum technology standards;
- groundwater monitoring;
- land disposal restrictions; and
- closure/post-closure standards.

There is no intention within this policy to put forth a methodology for developing cleanup levels for contaminated environmental media. Nor does this policy preclude the Department from requiring the facility to implement a remedy that will achieve environmental media cleanup levels which could be more stringent than the action levels tabulated in Appendix I of the "Contained-In" Guidance presented as Attachment A to this policy document. Also, compliance with action levels discussed in Section VI of this policy does not necessarily mean that the media is entirely decontaminated and acceptable for unrestricted use.

TAGTATION

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION	Memoraneum 3029 Page 3 of 21	
THISION OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES REGULATION	Subject "Contained-In" Criteria	
<ul> <li>Technical</li> </ul>		
Administrative	New New	
Guidance	Obsolet#	
Memorandum	Supercedes Memo Np.	
(Technical Manual		

## IV. <u>Regulatory Reguirements</u>

Certain situations may require contaminated media be subject to treatment before achieving this policy's action levels. That treatment system will be subject to RCRA permitting unless addressed in a Article 27, Title 13 Order on Consent, 71-2727(3) Corrective Action Order or if subject to a specific Part 373 exemption (e.g., wastewater treatment units with a surface water discharge). In most instances permitting may be accomplished by addressing the treatment system in the Corrective Measures Implementation section of the Corrective Action Module (i.e., Module III) of the Part 373 permit.

Environmental media, i.e., soil or sediment, contaminated by listed hazardous waste or commercial chemical products listed in 6 NYCRR Part 371, and subject to treatment before land disposal, must meet the land disposal requirements (LDRs) established pursuant to 6 NYCRR Part 376. That treated soil or sediment meeting LDRs, and then subsequently subject to land disposal, need not be managed as hazardous waste if it meets the "contained-in" criteria.

A successful "contained-in" demonstration, as discussed in Attachment A-"Contained-In" Guidance, may still require the environmental media be regulated and actively managed as a waste material. This "contained-in" policy does not exempt solid or semi-solid media relocated off the facility property from being subject to regulation as a solid waste Purps THE "CONTAINED-IN" policy exempt aqueous waste from being subject to

the discharges into the groundwater and surface waters of New York State.

THE FULL PART 700 SERIES REQUIREMENTS REGULATING

TAGTE 2 FRU

NU

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION	Momorandum 3028 Page 4 of 21
SUREAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT	Subject "Contained-In" Criteria
	for Environmental Media
Technical	Date: November 30, 1992
Administrative	Y New
Guidance	Obsolete
Memorandum	Supercedes Memo No

# V. <u>Implementation</u>

**Technical Manual** 

This policy cannot be self-implemented by the facility, but will be put into effect by the Department on a case-by-case basis with a "contained-in" demonstration. That demonstration shall be made by the facility and evaluated by the Department as discussed in Attachment A -"Contained-In" Guidance. Before a "contained-in" demonstration is implemented at any facility, a work plan for the demonstration must be submitted to and approved by the Department. This work plan may be a separate document focusing on a specific area of contamination at the facility or it could be part of a closure plan for a hazardous waste TSD unit undergoing closure, or part of a facility-wide remedial investigation work plan. Work plans will address all hazardous constituents from listed hazardous waste contained in each environmental medium. ĨΠ addition to these hazardous constituents derived from listed hazardous waste, hazardous constituents from all other known or suspected sources of contamination shall be addressed in the work plan.

Environmental media contaminated by hazardous constituents from listed hazardous waste at or below action levels as discussed in Section VI of this policy, either on initial removal or after treatment, shall be managed as follows:

- A. If a solid or semi-solid (i.e., sediment), it may be:
  - (1) disposed on the facility property as a nonhazardous solid waste in accordance with acceptable management practices identified in permits/orders/work plans, or

TAGTA 2 FRM

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

REAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT

Technical

Administrative

- Guidance
  - Memorandum

# Technical Manual

Merrio	randum 3028 Page 5 of 21
Subjec	* "Contained-In" Criteria
for	Environmental Media
Oute:	November 30, 1992
Y	New
	Obsolete .
	Supercedes Memo No.

- (2) shipped off the facility property as a nonhazardous industrial solid waste to a permitted Part 360 land disposal facility, and
- B. If aqueous, it may be:
  - discharged on the facility property as a nonhazardous waste in accordance with a SPDES permit or Department Order, or
  - (2) shipped or discharged off the facility property as a non-hazardous industrial solid wastes to a POTW or industrial wastewater treatment facility.

# VI. Action Level Concentrations

The action levels to be used in the "contained in" demonstration are listed in Appendix I - "Action Levels for Groundwater and Soil/Sediment" and only focus on the direct human ingestion exposure pathway. The levels were developed using promulgated USEPA and

State standards protective of human health with recourse to USEPA health risk assessment data or State guidance values in the absence of standards. Refer to Attachment A - "Contained-In" Guidance for further information on the development of action levels.

TAGTE-2 FRM

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION DIVISION OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES REGULATION

BUREAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT

Technical

Administrative

Guidance

Memorandum

# Technical Manual

_			
Nemo	randum 3028 Page 6 of 21		
subject "Contained-In" Criteria			
for Environmental Media			
Date: November 30, 1992			
Y	New		
	Obsolete		
	Supercedes Memo Ng.		

The action levels tabulated in Appendix I that are not promulgated standards may change from time-to-time as new health risk assessment data becomes available. The Facility Compliance Region 2 Section, in the Bureau of Hazardous Waste Eastern Regions, has responsibility for updating the tabulation. These tables will be updated quarterly, if necessary.

Tables more than three (3) months old should not be used without first checking with the Section. That section should be contacted for information on action levels not found in Appendix I.

TAGTE THU

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

FAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT

Technical

Administrative

Guidance

Memorandum

Technical Manual

Martor	modum 3028 Page 7 of 21	
subma "Contained-In" Criteria		
for Environmental Media		
Dute: November 30, 1992		
Y	New	
	Obsolete	
	Supercedes Memo No.	

. .

# ATTACHMENT A

# "Contained-In" Criteria Guidance

# I. <u>Basis for Action Levels</u>

The "contained-in" criteria employs concentration levels for individual chemical constituents that are protective of public health through the direct ingestion pathway. The levels were developed from the following promulgated standards, USEPA health risk assessment data and New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) guidance values.

A. Soil and Sediment Action Level Concentrations

The action levels to be used with the "contained-in" demonstration for soil and sediment are tabulated in Appendix I under the title "Soil/Sediment Action Levels." These levels are based on assuming human oral ingestion of soil or sediment. The soil/sediment tabulation lists action level concentrations calculated from USEPA, non-promulgated health risk assessment data (i.e., carcinogen slope factor (CSF) and the risk factor for carcinogens, and the chronic reference dose (RFD) for systemic toxicants) and oral intake assumptions (i.e., 0.1 g/day for a 70 kg. person/70 year exposure period for carcinogens, and 0.2g/day for a 16 kg. child/5 year exposure period for systemic toxicants). CSFs and RFDs are compiled from USEPA's Health Effects Assessment summary Tables (HEASTS)

TAGTA 2 FAN

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION	Memoraneum 3028 Page 8 of 21
BUREAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT	Subject "Contained-In" Criteria
	for Environmental Media
Technical	Daus: November 30, 1992
Administrative	Y N•
Guidance	Obsole1.
Memorandum	Supercedes Memo No.

issued annually but updated periodically with supplements. The only soil/sediment action level representing a standard is the less than one (1) part per million (i.e., < 1.0 mg/kg) for polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs). This standard was established under the TSCA PCB spill cleanup policy (i.e. 40 C.F.R. Part 761) for clean soil.

# B. Groundwater Action Level Concentrations

Action levels to be used with the "contained in" demonstration for groundwater are tabulated in Appendix I under the title "Groundwater Action Levels." The tabulation lists for a particular constituent the most stringent level selected from promulgated New York State Part 703 Standards and USEPA MCLs. Recourse to non-promulgated USEPA health-based levels or more stringent New York State guidance values was considered appropriate only for constituents which do not have a State or USEPA Standard. The action level calculations based on USEPA health risk data included the same slope factor, risk factor, and reference dose used for soil/sediment action levels. The intake assumption of 2 1/day for a 70 kg. person/70 year exposure period was used for carcinogens and systemic toxicants. For a given chemical, nonpromulgated health-based values or guidance values that are more stringent than promulgated standards were not selected as action levels.

TAGTA-2 FAM

**Technical Manual** 

•		
NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION	Memorandum 3028 Page 9 of 21	
AU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT	subjec "Contained-In" Criteria	
	for Environmental Media	
<ul> <li>Technical</li> </ul>	Due: November 30, 1992	
Administrative	Y Now	
Guidance	Obsolete	
Memorandum	Supercedes Memo No	
Technical Manual		

# II. Action Levels Are Not Always Cleanup Levels

No attempt was made through the "contained in" criteria to develop cleanup levels for hazardous constituents in contaminated environmental media either left in place or subject to a removal action. The development of media specific cleanup levels is a complex undertaking that takes into consideration available and applicable remedial technologies, the degree of contamination in an environmental medium, and site-specific factors. These factors may include, but not be limited to, potential impacts on off-site public and/or environmental receptors, future land use (e.g., unrestricted vs. industrial), and intermedia contaminant transport (e.g., the influence of heavily contaminated groundwater on unsaturated soils lying over the groundwater). In the RCRA Corrective Action program, the Corrective Measures Study (CMS) is the appropriate means for the facility to address media cleanup levels in the context of the remedy selection process. The CMS should provide the necessary exposure and risk assessments coupled to an evaluation of remedial alternatives to focus the development of site-specific cleanup levels. However, in the RCRA program the Department will make the final determination on selecting cleanup levels. That determination could result in a cleanup level for a contaminant in a specific environmental medium being equated to the contaminant's action level for that medium.

TAGTR-2 FRM

7	۲	1	

**Technical Manual** 

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION	Memorandum 3025 Page 10 of 21
DIVISION OF HALANDOUS SUBSTANCES REGULATION	subject "Contained-In" Criteria
	for Environmental Media
Technical	Date: November 30, 1992
Administrative	N•~
Guidance	Obsolete
Memorandum	Supercedes Memo Ng

Such a situation can occur in the RCRA corrective action program when hazardous constituents contaminate groundwater. Under this scenario the target cleanup levels for contaminants in groundwater equate to respective action levels tabulated in Appendix I, if protection of public health is the only concern (i.e., there is no environmental impact from the contaminated groundwater).

The action levels tabulated in Appendix I for soil and sediment only consider protection of public health through the direct ingestion pathway. These ingestion levels were selected as one of several criteria that must be met by soil and sediment contaminated by listed hazardous waste in order not to require their management as hazardous waste. However, these specific action levels may not equate to target cleanup levels. Target cleanup levels for sediments must address impacts on environmental receptors (i.e., aquatic life forms). Target cleanup levels for soils should be established considering potential impacts through their exposure pathways (e.g., inhalation, drinking water, etc) and not be limited to only the direct ingestion pathway. Therefore, target cleanup levels for soil and sediment will be less than the direct ingestion action levels tabulated in Appendix I for the majority of hazardous constituents identified to RCRA facilities.

A subsequent TAGH will provide more details on the subject of cleanup levels to RCFA facilities. That document discusses the use of action levels, target cleanup levels and cleanup standards (i.e., final cleanup levels) in the context of RCRA corrective action and RCRA "remove and decontaminate" closures.

TAGTE 2 FRU

USW VORK TEATE DEBARTHENT OF ENVIRONMENTS, ASWARDU, TOUS	يور والمناب المراجع الم	
FTA TORK STATE DEFAILMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION	Memorandum 3028 Page 16 of 21	
DIVISION OF MALAHDOUS SUBSTANCES REGULATION		
BUREAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT	subma "Contained-In" Criteria	
	for Environmental Media	
<ul> <li>Technical</li> </ul>	Date: November 30, 1992	
Administrative	N••	
Guidance		
	Supercedes Memo No.	
Memorandum	•	

In Appendix I, action levels for several different groups of hazardous constituents have been identified.

Those groups include:

**Technical Manual** 

- 1. Total inorganic elements (e.g., total lead)
- 2. Total class of organic compounds (e.g., phenols)
- 3. Specific chemical species (e.g., total cyanide, hexavalent chromium); and
- Specific chemical compounds (e.g., copper, cyanide, tetraethyl lead, phenol).

Several examples will serve to illustrate the use of Appendix I. Soil contaminated by the commercial chemical product tetraethyl lead would require soil and its leachate to be analyzed for the chemical compound itself and total lead. The compound can contribute lead to the contaminated media and Appendix I lists total lead with soil and groundwater action levels. A second example, soil contaminated by the commercial chemical product copper cyanide would require the soil to be analyzed for the chemical compound copper cyanide and total cyanide, a chemical species donated by the compound for which a soil action level exists. However, the soils' leachate would be analyzed for copper cyanide, total copper, and total cyanide because the latter two constituents donated by the compound have groundwater action levels. A third example illustrates the analysis required for a chemical compound which itself does not have a action level, but can transform to

TAOTA 2 FRM

NEVY YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION DIVISION OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES REGULATION

REAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT

Technical

Administrative

Guidance

Memorandum

# Technical Manual

# Herrorandum 3028 Page 11 of 21 Subject \*Contained-In\* Criteria for Environmental Media Date: November 30, 1992 X New Obsolete Supercedes Memo No. r r

# III. "Contained In" Demonstration

In a "contained-in" demonstration, the facility will identify the source(s) of the environmental media contamination. If it can be conclusively established that the hazardous constituents in the media did not come from listed hazardous waste, or commercial chemical products, then the contaminated media need not be managed as hazardous waste, unless they exhibit one or more of the characteristics of a hazardous waste identified in 6 NYCRR Part 371, Section 3 or in the USEPA Toxicity Characteristic in 40 CFR 261.24.

Since a "contained-in" demonstration will be implemented through a work plan submitted by the facility, that plan should specify the source of the contamination including identification of the listed hazardous waste identified in 6 NYCRR Part 371 which contributed to the environmental contamination. For each listed waste identified the plan shall specify the hazardous constituents presented in 6 NYCRR Part 371, Appendix 22, which are the basis for listing the waste. Additionally, the plan will identify any hazardous constituent presented in 6 NYCRR 371, Appendix 23, and in 6 NYCRR 373, Appendix 33, which may be present in the contaminated media from sources other than listed hazardous waste.

A work plan for a "contained-in" demonstration applied to environmental media (i.e., soil or sediment) that will be subject to land disposal either before or after treatment, must address applicable land disposal restrictions (LDRs) established pursuant to 6 NYCRR Part 376. A facility may request a Treatability Variance from applicable LDRs through USEPA Region II and the NYSDEC for the

TAOTA 2 FRM

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTM	ENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION	Memorandum 3028 Page 14 of 21
BUREAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPOR	a di seconda	subort "Contained-In" Criteria
		for Environmental Media
lechnica 🖌	1	Cate: November 30, 1992
Admin	istrative	
Guio	dance	00001ete
M	emorandum	Supercedes Memo Np
Technical	Manual	
JAGTE2 FRM	constituent concentration in soil or sediment (waykg or goo) This calculation presumes that of the hazardous constituent sediment will leach out durin When the resultant analyses of hazardous constituents detect sediment and in their respect below corresponding action le medium does not have to be ma However, if the medium is to facility property it shall be with 6 NYCRR Part 360 and as of Solid Waste. If it is to facility property, such manag accordance with an approved w Should the analyses for the s their respective leachates yi measurements for hazardous co approved detection limits, th that medium will be approved. would be considered not prese detected below approved analy limits (MDLs) for the matrix RCRA QAPjP guidance addresses levels and their relationship That guidance must be followe demonstration.	un possible constituent intration in the leachate (ug/l or geb) At the entire mass weight present in the soil or ing the test. Hemonstrate that all ed in the soil or five leachates are at or evels, the environmental maged as hazardous waste be moved off the managed in accordance directed by the Division be managed on the ement_must_be in ork plan. oil or sediment and eld non-detectable nstituents below en unrestricted use of The constituents nt in the medium if not tical method detection analyzed. The N.Y.S. the issue of detection to action levels. d for the "contained-in"

.

, .

۰,

-

•

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION	Hamman 2023 Page13 of 21
DIVISION OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES REGULATION	
JREAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT	subies "Contained-In" Criteria
	for Environmental Media
Technical	Dave: November 30, 1992
Administrative	Y N
Guidance	Obsolele
Memorandum	Supercedes Memo Xo
Technical Manual	

Α.	Soil and Sediment Evaluation
	Solid or semi-solid environmental media (i.e., soil or sediment) shall be analyzed directly for total concentrations of each hazardous constituent expected to be contained in the medium. The resultant concentrations for each detected constituent will be compared against their corresponding "Soil/Sediment Action Level" in Appendix I.
	Solid or semi-solid media must also have their respective leachate analyzed directly for each hazardous constituent expected to be contained in the contaminated environmental medium. The Synthetic Precipitation Leaching Procedure (SPLP) will be the preferred laboratory method employed to generate leachate for analysis when the excavated soil/sediment will remain on the facility property. Soil/sediment that will be excavated and relocated off the facility property will be subject to the Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP). The resultant concentrations for each detected constituent in leachate will be compared against their corresponding "Groundwater Action Level" in Appendix I.
	The actual leaching test (i.e., SPLP or TCLP) may not have to be performed when the concentration of the hazardous constituent in the soil or sediment is accurately known, and when the following calculation shows that the constituent's concentration in the leachate to be equal to or

less than its respective groundwater action level:

. •

TAGTR2 FRM

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION	Memorandum 3028 Page 12 of 21		
BUREAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT	subies "Contained-In" Criteria		
	for Environmental Media		
Technical	Omin: November 30, 1992		
Administrative	X New		
Guidance	Obsolete		
Memorandum	Supercedes Memo No.		

environmental media. A "contained-in" demonstration work plan shall address the LDR variance obtained from USEPA/NYSDEC for the environmental media subject to the "contained-in" criteria. Treated or untreated environmental media meeting LDR requirements and subsequently subject to land disposal need not be managed as hazardous waste when the "contained-in" criteria are met. A "contained-in" demonstration requires that environmental media be sampled and analyzed in accordance with a work plan approved by the Department. Such plans must be developed in a manner that clearly sets forth the project objectives and the procedures that will be followed to meet those objectives. This entails specification in the work plan of a sufficient number of samples, sampling protocols, appropriate analytical methods, proper Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) procedures, detection limits, and applicable action level concentrations. Analytical methods must be capable of achieving hazardous constituent detection levels less than their corresponding action levels. Refer to the most recent version, dated March 29, 1991, of the NYSDEC RCRA Quality Assurance Project Plan Guidance for information on work plan requirements and detection levels.

A crucial element of a "contained in" demonstration is the evaluation of analytical data generated after implementation of approved work plans. This evaluation will be made by the Department including review of laboratory QA/QC data and comparison of action levels with analytical data.

TAGTA-2 FRU

**Technical Manual** 

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

EAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT

Technical

Administrative

Guidance

Memorandum

# Technical Manual

Lano	andum 3028 Page 15 of 21
Subjec	"Contained-In" Criteria
for	Environmental Media
Date:	November 30, 1992
Y	New
	Obsalete
	Supercedes Mezzo No,

# B. Groundwater Evaluation

This aqueous medium shall be analyzed directly for the total concentration (without filtering) of each hazardous constituent expected to be contained in the medium. The resultant concentrations for each detected constituent will be compared against the corresponding "Groundwater Action Level" in Appendix I. When the resultant analyses demonstrate that all hazardous constituents detected in groundwater are at or below their corresponding action levels, the environmental medium does not have to be managed as hazardous waste. However, groundwater discharges must still be managed in accordance with any prevailing and more stringent SPDES limitations (e.g., aquatic water quality standards or guidance values).

# C. Evaluation for all Hazardous Constituents

The comparison of hazardous constituent analytical data with corresponding action levels will be carried out using all applicable action levels. For solid and semi-solid media subject to leaching evaluations, both soil/sediment and groundwater action levels will be examined. The evaluation will address all possible groups of hazardous constituents including the specific chemical compound and all inorganic elements and chemical species contributed by the compound for which action levels are listed in Appendix I.

TAGTA-2 FAU

NEW YOLK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION	
OMISION OF HAZAROOUS SUBSTANCES REGULATION	Memorandu
BUREAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT	Subject (
	for Env
Technical	Oute:

lechnical Administrative Guidance Memorandum

Technical Manual

Marro		Pare	18 of	21
suger "Contained-In" Criteria				
for	Environme	ntal M	edia	
Dure:	November	30, 19	92	
$\mathbf{\Sigma}$	New			
	Obsolete	r	2.	
	Supercedes (	Memo No.		

issues preclude focusing the demonstration in this manner. For example, analyzing only for a constituent component of a chemical compound because its action level is more stringent than the compound's level could result in a false negative determination (i.e., the contaminated medium passes the "contained in" evaluation). Such false results may occur when small differences exist between the action level of the compound and the more stringent action level of a constituent contributed by the compound. There is a reason for such erroneous results; the weight of a chemical compound always exceeds the weight of any of its individual parts taken separately and, therefore, the compound always contributes more mass of contamination per unit weight or volume to the media. Many listed hazardous wastes are not listed for a specific chemical compound, but only for metallic elements or for certain chemical species. For example, F006 waste is listed for cadmium, nickel, cyanide, and hexavalent chromium. Therefore, environmental media contaminated by only F006 waste would require analysis for all four constituents, including total cadmium, total nickel, total cyanide, and hexavalent chromium.

### Analytical Proposals and Petitions D.

When a standard laboratory analytical procedure is not available for a hazardous constituent the facility will propose one. The proposed analytical method will be included in the work plan submitted by the facility for MYSDEC

TAGTE 2 FRM
NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPERATION	
PVISION OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES REGULATION	Momonandum 3028 Page 17 of 21
EAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT	suctional actions and the successful action of
	for Environmental Media
<ul> <li>Technical</li> </ul>	Dur: November 30, 1992
Administrative	ו•
Guidance	Obsolete
Memorandum	Supercedes Memo No.
(Technical Manual	

constituents with media specific action levels and which constituents have a total organic class medium action level. The chemical compound that best illustrates this example is the commercial chemical product creosote. This compound is a mixture of phenols, including the three isomers of cresol, if the creosote is derived from wood. The analysis of the contaminated environment medium may also indicate the presence of other phenolic compounds including phenol. Soil/sediment contaminated by creosote would require gas chromatographic (GC) analysis for phenolic compounds including phenol. However, analysis of the soils' leachate can be limited to total phenols since its groundwater action level is the most restrictive of all individual phenolic compounds including phenol.

The last example points to the only situation where the analysis would only be required for a constituent (i.e., total phenols), with the most restrictive action level. This approach which focuses the demonstration only on the constituent(s) with the most restrictive level is not always appropriate. The "contained in" criteria requires the contaminated media to be analyzed for residual concentrations of all hazardous constituents. Limiting the analysis only to a constituent with the most stringent action level would violate the criteria unless a petition, as discussed in Section III-D of this attachment, is submitted by the facility and approved by the NYSDEC. Also, certain technical

TAGTE 2 FRM

	summarandum 3028 Page 19 of 21
UNISION OF ACANONS SUBSTANCES REGULATION	suoima "Contained-In" Criteria
	for Environmental Media
Technical	Date: November 30, 1992
Administrative	¥ N•
Guidance	Obsolete
Memorandum	Supercedes Memo No.
(Technical Manual	

approval, and it should be capable of detecting chemical compounds or chemical species below their respective action levels. The proposal will be examined and, if approved, it will become part of the work plan.

The facility may petition the NYSDEC through the work plan not to analyze for certain hazardous constituent chemical compounds that cannot be Such a detected by practical analytical methods. situation could arise when a chemical compound transforms into other constituents leaving only undetectable trace levels of the original compound in the sample matrix. The petition must include verified technical data, which can be taken from referenced literature, that clearly demonstrates the impact transformation processes have on the chemical compound in the environmental medium under evaluation. Such processes may include hydrolysis, photolysis, oxidation, dissociation, equilibria, and biotransformation. The petition will be examined and, if approved, it will become part of the work plan.

For chromium the most restrictive action level in soil is for the hexavalent species. When analyzing a solid or semi-solid matrix for chromium using SW-846 methodology the sample preparation step in the laboratory (i.e., digestion of the sample by acidification) converts by chemical reduction most, if not all, hexavalent chromium to the trivalent species which is

TAGTA 2 FAM

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION	
DIVISION OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES REGULATION	Memorandum 3028 Page 21 of 21
REAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT	subject "Contained-In" Criteria
	for Environmental Media
Technical	Movember 30, 1992
Administrative	Y New
Guidance	Obsolele
Memorandum	Supercedes Memo No
Technical Manual	

To mitigate other potential public health and environmental impacts through the air and surface water exposure pathways the approved on-site areas will be covered. Cover designs will be submitted by the facility to the Department for review and approval. The cover design submittal should occur simultaneously with the submittal of the "containedin" work plan. However, if site-specific circumstances preclude such a simultaneous submittal, no placement of soil/sediment media must occur until a cover design is approved by the Department. Cover designs should demonstrate how wind blown particulate matter will be eliminated at the approved area and account for long term inspection and maintenance of the cover. If necessary, the cover design will address mitigating impacts on the air exposure pathway from volatilizing hazardous constituent residuals that remain in the approved area. This release mechanism may be important for volatile constituents with high soil/sediment ingestion action levels which do not readily leach out from the medium. Such a situation could allow large residual volatile contaminant concentrations in the soil/sediment which may result in negative air impacts. Cover designs should also demonstrate protection of adjacent surface waters from runoff.

TAGTA 2 FAM

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION DIVISION OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES REGULATION EUREAU OF TECHNICAL SUPPORT

Technical

Administrative

Guidance

Memorandum

## Technical Manual

Memorydum 3028 Page 20 of 21
Sume: "Contained-In" Criteria
for Environmental Media
Cain. November 30, 1992
V N
Cosolete
Supercedes Memo Ng

reported as total chromium. Therefore, unless the facility proposes an approvable analytical method for hexavalent chromium, the "contained in" demonstration will compare the hexavalent chromium action level in soil/sediment with the sample's total chromium concentration.

#### IV. Acceptable Management Practices

Under the "contained-in" criteria soil/sediment must meet oral human ingestion action levels, and not leach out contaminants above groundwater action levels. However, that requirement may not be sufficient to mitigate potential impacts via other exposure pathways (e.g., inhalation) or site-specific exposure conditions (e.g., the additive impact from mixtures of hazardous constituents) either of which may threaten public health. Also, potential impacts on environmental receptors (e.g., leachate discharging to surface water) are not considered. under the "contained in" demonstration. Therefore, to be fully protective of public health and the environment, soil/sediment at or below the action levels in Appendix I and above approved detection limits must be managed in a manner that affords restricted access to the media by the public and that provides cover for the medium, if unrestricted access is not granted by NYS Department of Health. These requirements will be satisfied by managing the media off the facility property in accordance with 6 NYCRR Part 360 and as directed by the Division of Solid Waste. Management on the facility property should be in approved areas at locations where public access is restricted. Such areas must be tracked and noticed in a legal instrument that will be examined when the property is sold or transferred.

TAGTAZERU

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media and media's leachate
cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.

	11 - 11 <b>-</b> 11	to the second second second	
•	NYSDEC		•••**
Ĺ	contained-In Action Levels	t, see	a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a
Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: ca	annot exceed ingestion action lev	els in media <u>and</u> media	s leachate
	ely impact groundwater; see TAG	БМ р. 13.	······································
		Groundwater R	Soil/ Sediment: R
	-	Action Level E	Action Level E
JBSTANCE	CASNUM	(ug/L) F	(mg/kg) F
CENAPHTHENE	83-32-9	2.0E+01;d	4.7E+031C
ENAPHTHYLENE	208-96-8	5.0E+01 a	ii
CEPHATE	30560-19-1	5.0E+01 a	7.4E+01'C
ETONE (2-PROPANONE)	67-64-1	5.0E+01 d	7.8E+03 C
CETONE CYANOHYDRIN (2-METHYLLACTONITRILE)	75-86-5	2.8E+01 e	6.3E+01 C
ETONITRILE (METHYL CYANIDE)	75-05-8	5.0E+01 a	4.7E+02 C
CETOPHENONE (1-PHENYL-ETHANONE)	98-86-2	5.0E+01 a	7.8E+03IC
ACETYLANINOFLUORENE (2-AAF)	53-96-3	5.0E+01 a	
ROLEIN (2-PROPENAL)	107-02-8	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+03 C
RYLAMIDE	79-06-1	5.0E+00 a	1.4E-01 C
RYLIC ACID	79-10-7	5.0E+01 d	3.9E+04 C
ACHLOR	15972-60-8	3.5E+01 a	7.9E+00 C
DICARB	116-06-3	7.0E+00 a	7.8E+01 C
DICARB & METHOMYL	116-06-3;16752-77-5	3.5E-01 a	
DRIN	309-00-2	ND a	3 8E-02 C
KYL DIMETHYL BENZYL AMMONIUM CHLORIDE	68391-01-5	5.0E+01 d	
LYL ALCOHOL	107-18-6	5.0E+01 a	3.9E+02;C
YL CHLORIDE (3-CHLORO-1-PROPENE)	107-05-1	5.0E+00ja	1.6E+02 C
INUM PHOSPHIDE	20859-73-8	1.4E+01/e	3.1E+01 C
ETRYN	834-12-8	5.0E+01 a	7.0E+02 C
liben	133-90-4	8.6E+01 a	!
AMINOBIPHENYL	92-67-1	5.0E+00 a	
AMINOPHENOL	591-27-5	*3 a	5.5E+03 C
AMINOPYRIDINE	504-24-5	1.0E+00 g	1.6E+00.C
IMON I A	7664-41-7	<2.0E+03 a	
NILINE (BENZENAMINE)	62-53-3	5.0E+00 a	1.1E+02 C
ITHRACENE	120-12-7	5.0E+01 d	2.3E+04 C
ITIMONY, TOTAL	*1	3.0E+00 a	3.1E+01 C
AMITE	140-57-8	5.0E+01 d	2.6E+01 C
ISENIC, TOTAL	-1	2.50E+01 a	4.0E-011C
RAZINE	1912-24-9	7.50E+00 a	2.7E+03 C
INPHOSMETHYL	86-50-0	4.40E+00 a	
OBENZENE	103-33-3	5.0E+00 a	5.8E+00 C
RIUM, TOTAL	•1	1.00E+03 a	5.5E+03 C
RIUM CYANIDE	542-62-1	2.5E+031e	5.5E+03IC
NEFIN	1861-40-1	3.50E+01 a	2.3E+04 C
NZALDEHYDE	100-52-7	5.0E+01 d	7.8E+03 C
NZ(a)ANTHRACENE (BENZANTHRACENE)	56-55-3	2.0E-03 d	9.0E-01 C
NZENE	71-43-2	7.0E-01/a	2.2E+01 C
NZIDINE	92-87-5	5.0E+00 a	2.8E-03 C
NZISOTHIAZOLE	271-61-4	5.0E+01 d	
20(b)FLUORANTHENE	205-99-2	2.0E-03 d	9.0E-01
	207-08.0	205.0314	9 0E+00

Page 1

cannot adversely imp	act_groundwater; see TAGM p.	13	
	1	Groundwater R	Soil/ Sediment: R
		Action Level E	Action Level E
SUBSTANCE	CASNUM	(ug/L) F	( <b>mg</b> /kg) F
BENZOIC ACID	65-85-0	5.0E+01 a	3.2E+05;C
BENZO(g,h,i)PERYLENE	191-24-2	5.0E+01 a	
BENZO(a)PYRENE	50-32-8	ND ia	9.0E-02 C
BENZOTRICHLORIDE	98-07-7	5.0E+01 a	4.9E-021C
BENZYL ALCOHOL (BENZENEMETHANOL)	100-51-6	5.0E+01 a	2.3E+04 C
BENZYL CHLORIDE	100-44-7	5.0E+01 a	3.8E+00 C
BERYLLIUM, TOTAL	*1	4.0E+00 d	1.5E-01 C
alpha-BHC	319-84-6	ND ia	1.0E-01iC
beta-BHC	319-85-7	ND a	3.6E-01 C
delta-BHC	319-86-8	ND a	
1,1-BIPHENYL	92-52-4	5.0E+00 a	3.9E+03 C
BIS(2-CHLOROETHOXY)METHANE	111-91-1	5.0E+00 a	
BIS(2-CHLOROETHYL)ETHER	111-44-4	1.0E+00 a	5.8E-01 C
BIS(CHLOROMETHYL)ETHER (BCME)	542-88-1	5.0E+00ja	2.9E-03 C
BIS(2-CHLORO-1-METHYLETHYL)ETHER	108-60-1	5.0E+00 a	9.1E+00 C
BIS(2-ETHYLHEXYL)PHTHALATE	117-81-7	5.0E+01 d	4.6E+01 C
BISPHENOL A	80-05-7	*3  a	3.9E+03 C
BTOTPENTABROMOPHENYLJETHER	1163-19-5	5.0E+00 a	7.8E+02 C
CACID, BORATES & METABORATES	11113-50-1,10043-35-3;1303-96-4	1.3E+02 a	7.0E+03 C
BORON, TOTAL	•1	1.0E+03le	7.0E+031C
BRONACIL	314-40-9	4.4E+00 a	1 1
BRONIDES	NA	2.0E+03le	······
BROMOBENZENE	108-86-1	5.0E+001a	
BROMOCHLOROMETHANE	74-97-5	5.0E+00/a	·
BROMODICHLOROMETHANE	75-27-4	5.0E+01/d	1.0E+01 C
BROMOFORM (TRIBROMOMETHANE)	75-25-2	5.0E+01 d	8.1E+01 C
BROMOMETHANE (METHYL BROMIDE)	74-83-9	5.0E+00 a	1.1E+02 C
4-BROMOPHENYL PHENYL ETHER (1-BROMO-4-PHENOXYBENZENE)	101-55-3	5.0E+00 a	
BROMOPHOS	2104-96-3	5.0E+00 a	3.9E+02 C
BROMOXYNIL	1689-84-5	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+031C
1-BUTANOL (BUTYL ALCOHOL)	71-36-3	5.0E+01 a	7.8E+03 C
BUTACHLOR	23184-66-9	3.5E+00 a	
BUTOXYETHOXYETHANOL	_ 112-34-5	5.0E+01 d	
BUTOXYPROPANOL	5131-66-8	5.0E+01 d	
BUTYLATE	2008-41-5	5.0E+01 a	3.9E+03 C
n-BUTYLBENZENE	104-51-8	5.0E+00 a	
sec-BUTYLBENZENE	135-98-8	5.0E+00 a	
tert-BUTYLBENZENE	98-06-5	5.0E+00 a	
BUTYL BENZYL PHTHALATE	85-68-7	5.0E+01id	1.6E+04 C
BUTYL ISOPROPYL PHTHALATE	NA	5.0E+01 d	
CACODYLIC ACID (AGENT BLUE)	75-60-5	5.0E+01 a	2.3E+02 C
IUM, TOTAL	*1	5.0E+00 b	7.8E+01 C
CIUM CYANIDE	592-01-8	1.4E+03 e	3.1E+031C

----

. . . . .

••

• • • • • • •

•----

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media and media's leachate cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.

Page 2

\_\_\_\_

and the last one is that they are not served

8/26/97

. .....

.

.

.

cannot adversely	impact groundwater; see	TAGM p. 13.	
SUBSTANCE	CASNUM	Groundwater R Action Level E (ug/L) F	Soil/ Sediment R Action Level E (mg/kg) F
CAPROLACTAM	105-60-2	5.0E+01 a	3.9E+04 C
CAPTAFOL	2425-06-1	5.0E+01 a	7.4E+01 C
CAPTAN	133-06-2	1.8E+01ja	1.8E+02 C
CARBARYL	63-25-2	2.9E+01 a	7.8E+03 C
CARBAZOLE	86-74-8	5.0E+00 a	3.2E+01 C
CARBOFURAN -	1563-66-2	1.5E+01 a	3.9E+02 C
CARBON DISULFIDE	75-15-0	5.0E+00ja	7.8E+03 C
CARBON TETRACHLORIDE (TETRACHLOROMETHANE)	56-23-5	5.0E+00 a	4.9E+00 C
CHLORAL (TRICHLOROACETALDEHYDE)	75-87-6	5.0E+01 a	1.6E+02 C
CHLORANIL	118-75-2	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+00 C
CHLORDANE	57-74-9	1.0E-01(a	4.9E-01 C
CHLORIDES	NA	2.5E+05 a	1
CHLORINE CYANIDE	506-77-4	1.8E+03je	3.9E+03 C
CHLOROACETIC ACID	79-11-8	5.0E+01 a	1.6E+02 C
p-CHLOROANILINE (4-CHLOROANILINE)	106-47-8	5.0E+00 a	1.8E+01 C
CHLOROBENZENE	108-90-7	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+03 C
CHLOROBENZILATE	510-15-6	5.0E+01 a	1.6E+03 C
F-CHLOROBENZOIC ACID	74-11-3	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+04 C
LOROBENZOTRIFLUORIDE	98-56-6	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+03 C
1-CHLORGBUTANE	109-69-3	5.0E+001a	3.1E+04 C
p-CHLORO-m-CRESOL (4-CHLORO-3-METHYLPHENOL)	59-50-7	*3 a	1
1-CHLORO-2,3-EPOXYPROPANE (EPICHLOROHYDRIN)	106-89-8	5.0E+00 a	6.5E+01 C
CHLOROETHANE (ETHYL CHLORIDE)	75-00-3	5.0E+00 a	4.9E+01 C
CHLOROFORM (TRICHLOROMETHANE)	67-66-3	7.0E+00 a	1.0E+02 C
CHLOROMETHYL METHYL ETHER (CMME)	107-30-2	5.0E+00 a	2.9E-03 C
2-CHLORONAPHTHALENE	91-58-7	1.0E+01 d	
o-CHLORONITROBENZENE	188-73-3	5.0E+00 a	2.6E+01 C
p-CHLORONITROBENZENE	100-00-5	5.0E+00 a	3.6E+01 C
2-CHLOROPHENOL	95-57-8	•3 a	3.9E+02 C
4-CHLOROPHENYL PHENYL ETHER	7005-72-3	5.0E+01 a	
CHLOROPRENE (2-CHLORO-1,3-BUTADIENE)	126-99-8	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+03 C
CHLOROPROPHAM (CHLORPROPHAM)	101-21-3	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+04 C
CHLOROPYRIFOS (CHLORPYRIFOS)	2921-88-2	5.0E+01 a	2.3E+02 C
CHLOROTHALONIL (TETRACHLOROISOPHTHALONITRILE)	1897-45-6	5.0E+00 a	1.2E+03 C
CHLOROTHIOPHOS	21923-23-9	5.0E+01 a	6.4E+01 C
2-CHLOROTOLUENE (0-CHLOROTOLUENE)	95-49-8	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+03 C
4-CHLOROTOLUENE (p-CHLOROTOLUENE)	106-43-4	5.0E+00 a	
4-CHLORO-0-TOLUIDINE (4-CHLORO-2-METHYLANILINE)	95-69-2	5.0E+00 a	1.1E+00 C
4-CHLORO-o-TOLUIDINE HYDROCHLORIDE	3165-93-3	5.0E+00 a	1.4E+00 C
5-CHLORO-O-TOLUIDINE (3-CHLORO-6-METHYLANILINE)	95-79-4	5.0E+00 a	
CHROMIUM, TOTAL	*1	5.0E+01 a	
CHIUM, HEXAVALENT (CHROMIUM (VI))	18540-29-9	5.0E+01 a	3.9E+02'C
CHROMIUM, TRIVALENT (CHROMIUM (III))	16065-83-1	5.0E+01 a	7.8E+04 C

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed, indestion action levels in media and media's leachate

Page 3

cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.				
	CACNUM	Groundwater R Action Level E	Soil/ Sediment R Action Level E	
SUBSTANCE			(mg/kg)	
CHRYSENE	218-01-9	2.0E-01 0	8.82+01	
COPPER, TOTAL	*1			
COPPER CYANIDE	544-92-3	1.8E+02_e	3.9E+02;C	
m-CRESOL (3-METHYL PHENOL)	108-39-4	*3 a	3.9E+03 C	
O-CRESOL (2-METHYL PHENOL)	95-48-7	•3 a	3.9E+031C	
P-CRESOL (4-METHYL PHENOL)	106-44-5	*3 ia	3.9E+03:C	
CRESOLS	1319-77-3	:*3 ia	3.9E+03 C	
CROTONALDEHYDE (2-BUTENAL)	123-73-9	5.0E+00;a	3.4E-01 C	
CYANAZINE	21725-46-2	7.0E+01 e	1.6E+02 C	
CYANIDE, TOTAL	*1	<100 a	1.6E+03°C	
CYANOGEN	460-19-5	1.4E+031e	3.1E+03 C	
CYANOGEN BROMIDE	506-68-3	5.0E+00 a	7.0E+03 C	
CYCLOHEXYLAMINE	108-91-8	5.0E+01 a	1.6E+04'C	
DACTHAL (DCPA)	1861-32-1	5.0E+001a	3.9E+04'C	
DALAPON (SODIUM SALT)	127-20-8	5.0E+01/a	2.3E+03 C	
2,4-DB	94-82-6	5.0E+00 a	6.3E+02 C	
4,4:-DDD	72-54-8	ND a	2.7E+00 C	
4.4'-DDE	72-55-9	ND ra	1.9E+00.C	
-DDT	50-29-3	ND a	1.9E+00 C	
DEMETON (DEMETON-0 & DEMETON-S)	8065-48-3	1.4E+00 e	3.1E+00 C	
DEMETON-0	298-03-3	5.0E+01 a	<u></u>	
DEMETON-S	126-75-0	5.0E+01(a		
DIALLATE	2303-16-4	5.0E+01 a	1:0E+01 C	
01A7 FNON	1333-41-5	7.0E-01!a	7.0E+01+C	
DIREN7(2 H)ANTHRACENE	153.70.3	2 0E-01 b	9 0E-02 C	
NTDENZOGIDAN	:132_64_0	5.0E ±011a		
1 (		5.0E+001a	7 8E+02 C	
1,4-UIBKOMUBENZENE (P-UIBROMUBENZENE)	100-37-0		7.6E+00 C	
	124-48-1		2.05.0210	
1,2-DIBRUMU-3-CHLUKUPKUPKNE (UBLY)	196-12-8	2.02-01:0	7 65+00-0	
	594-18-3	5.05+0010	7.55.03:0	
1,2-DIBRUMUEIMANE (EINTLENE DIBRUMIDE)	100-93-4		7 95-03:0	
DISKOMOMETHANE (METHTLENE SKOMIDE)			1.0ETV2.C	
2,2-DIBROMO-S-NIIKILUPROPIONAMIDE	10222-01-2	5.02+011a	7.05.0020	
DI-n-BUTYL PHIHALAIE	84-74-2	<u> </u>	1 1.8E+U3 C	
DICAMBA	1918-00-9	4.4E-011a	2.3E+031C	
DICHLONE (2,3-DICHLORO-1,4-NAPHTHOQUINONE)	117-80-6	5.0E+00ia		
1,2-DICHLOROBENZENE (O-DICHLOROBENZENE)	!95-50-1	4.7E+00 a	7.8E+03.C	
1,3-DICHLOROBENZENE (m-DICHLOROBENZENE)	541-73-1	5.0E+00ja	<u> </u>	
1,4-DICHLOROBENZENE (p-DICHLOROBENZENE)	106-46-7	4.7E+001a	2.7E+01 C	
3, 3-DICHLOROBENZIDINE	:91-94-1	5.0E+001a	1.0E+00.C	
1,4-DICHLORO-2-BUTENE	764-41-0	5.0E+00≩a		
ns-1,4-DICHLORO-2-BUTENE	110-57-6	5.0E+00:a		
I OROD I FLUOROMETHANE (F-12)	75-71-8	5 0E+00 a	1.6E+04 C	

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media and media's leachate

Page 4

----

......

. . .

,

.

		Groundwater R Action Level E	Soil/ Sediment R Action Level E
SUBSTANCE	CASNUM	(ug/L) 「	(mg/kg)
1,1-DICHLOROETHANE	75-34-3	5.0E+00/a	7.8E+03.C
1,2-DICHLORDETHANE (ETHYLENE DICHLORIDE)	107-06-2	5.0E+00ja,b	7.0E+00 C
1,1-DICHLOROETHYLENE	75-35-4	5.0E+00 a	1.1E+00 C
cis-1,2-DICHLOROETHYLENE	156-59-2	5.0E+00 a	7.8E+02 C
trans-1,2-DICHLOROETHYLENE	156-60-5	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+03 C
DICHLOROFLUOROMETHANE	75-43-4	5.0E+00 a	
2,4-DICHLOROPHENOL	120-83-2	*3 ia	2.3E+02 C
2,6-DICHLOROPHENOL	;87-65-0	*3 ia	
2,4-DICHLOROPHENOXYACETIC ACID (2,4-D)	94-75-7	4.4E+00 a	7.8E+02 C
1,2-DICHLOROPROPANE	78-87-5	5.0E+00ja	9.4E+001C
1,3-DICHLOROPROPANE	142-28-9	5.0E+00/a	-
2, 2-DICHLOROPROPANE	594-20-7	5.0E+00 a	1
1,1-DICHLOROPROPENE	563-58-6	5.0E+00 a	
1, 3-DICHLOROPROPENE	542-75-6	5.0E+00;a	3.6E+00 C
cis-1.3-D1CHLOROPROPENE	10061-01-5	5.0E+00iz	
trans-1.3-DICHLOROPROPENE	10061-02-6	5.0E+00 a	
	67-73-7	5.0E+001a	2.2E+00 C
	77-73-6	5 0F+01 a	2.3E+03 C
)RIN	i60-57-1	'ND a	4.0E-02 C
DIETHYLENE GLYCOL MONOFTHYL FTHER	111-90-0	5 0F+01 a	1.6E+05+C
	1617-84-4	5.0E+01/a	8.6E+03:C
	184-66-2	5.0E+01.d	5.3E+04:C
	297-97-2	5.0E+01 a	
DISTURI STILLESTON (DES)	156-53-1	5.0E÷01;a	1 3E-03 C
	60.51.5	7.0E+001e	1.6E+011C
	110 00 4	5.05+00/2	4 6E+01 C
	160 11 7	5.05+0012	
p-(DIMETHITLANING)AZOBENZENE	105.69.4	5.0010	P 5E 011C
2,4-DIMEIHTLANALINE (2,4-XTLIDINE)	1-00-00	5.02+001a	1.65+0210
n,n-DIMEHHTLANILINE	121-09-7	5.0E+001a	1.02+02,0
7,12-DIMETHYLBENZ(3)ANTHKACENE	157-97-0	5.0E+011a	7.05.02.0
3,3'-DIMETHYLBENZIDINE	119-93-7	5.0E+00 a	7.02-02-0
DIMEINTLEORMAMIDE (n,n-DIMETNYLFORMAMIDE)	168-12-2	5.0E+01 d	7.8E+U31C
1, 1-DIMETHYLHYDRAZINE	15/-14-/	5.0E+01ja	1.4E-02 C
1,2-DIMETHYLHYDRAZINE	1540-73-8	5.0E+01 a	4,6E-04;C
alpha, alpha-DIMETHYLPHENETHYLAMINE	122-09-8	5.0E+00 a	
2,4-DIMETHYLPHENOL	105-67-9	:*3 ja	1.6E+03;C
2,6-DIMETHYLPHENOL	576-26-1	*3 a	4.7E+01 C
3,4-DIMETHYLPHENOL	195-65-8	1•3 a	7.8E+01.C
DIMETHYL PHTHALATE	131-11-3	5.0E+011d	7.8E+041C
DIMETHYL-p-PHTHALATE	120-61-6	5.0E+011a	7.8E+031C
1,3-DINITROBENZENE (m-DINITROBENZENE)	99-65-0	5.0E+00!a	7.8E+00 C
' -DINITRO-O-CRESOL (2-METHYL-4,6-DINITROPHENDL)	534-52-1	*3 a	7.8E+00 C
DINITROPHENOL	51-28-5	·*3 a	1.6E+021C

. . . .

• • • • • •

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media and media's leachate

Page 5

----

,

-

.

cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.					
SUBSTANCE	CASNUM	Groundwater R Action Level E (ug/L) F	Soil/ Sediment R Action Level E (mg/kg) F		
2,4-DINITROTOLUENE	121-14-2	5.0E+00/a	9.4E-01-C		
2.6-DINITROTOLUENE	1606-20-2	5.0E+00 a	9.4E-01 C		
DINOCAP	6119-92-2	5.0E+00 a	······································		
DINOSEB (DNBP)	88-85-7	"3 ·a	7.8E+011C		
DI-D-OCTYL PHTHALATE	117-84-0	5.0E+01 d	1.6E+03+C		
1,4-DIOXANE	123-91-1	5.0E+01:a	5.8E+01 C		
CIPHENYLAMINE (N,N-DIPHENYLAMINE)	122-39-4	5.0E+00;a	2.0E+03 C		
1,2-DIPHENYLHYDRAZINE	122-66-7	ND a	8.0E-01 C		
DISULFOTON	298-04-4	ND a	3.1E+01.C		
DITHANE D-14	142-59-6	1.8E+00ja			
DYPHYLLINE	479-18-5	5.0E+01 d			
ENDOSULFAN	115-29-7	5.0E+00 a	7.8E+00°C		
ENDOSULFAN 1	1959-98-8	5.0E+00 a			
ENDOSULFAN 11	33213-65-9	5.0E+00 a	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
ENDOSULFAN SULFATE	1031-07-8	5.0E+00ia	1		
ENDOTHALL	145-73-3	5.0E+01 d	1.6E+03 C		
ENDRIN	72-20-8	ND a	2.3E+01 C		
ENDRIN ALDEHYDE	7421-93-4	5.0E+00:a			
NC	563-12-2	5.0E+01 a	3.9E+01 C		
2-ETHOXYETHANOL	110-80-5	5.0E+01 a	3.1E+04+C		
2-ETHOXYETHANOL ACETATE	1111-15-9	5.0E+01 a	2.3E+04 C		
ETHYL ACETATE	;141-78-6	5.0E+01;a	7.0E+04 C		
ETHYL ACRYLATE	140-88-5	5.0E+01 a	1.3E+01 C		
ETHYLBENZENE	100-41-4	5.0E+001a	7.8E+03 C		
ETHYL DI-n-PROPYLTHIOCARBOMATE (EPTC)	1759-94-4	5.0E+01 a	2.0E+03:C		
ETHYLENE CHLOROHYDRIN	107-07-3	5.0E+01.d			
ETHYLENE CYANOHYDRIN	109-78-4	5.0E+01 <sup>1</sup> a	2.3E+04 C		
ETHYLENEDIAMINE	107-15-3	5.0E+01¦a	1.6E+03!C		
ETHYLENE GLYCOL	107-21-1	5.0E+01 d	1.6E+05±C		
ETHYLENE OXIDE	75-21-8	5.0E-02 d	1.8E+00 C		
ETHYLENETHIOUREA	96-45-7	ND a	1.8E+01/C		
ETHYL ETHER	160-29-7	5.0E+01 a	3.9E+04 C		
ETHYL METHACRYLATE	97-63-2	5.0E+01 a	7.0E+03 C		
ETHYL METHANESULFONATE	162-50-0	5.0E+01 a	! 		
FAMPHUR	52-85-7	5.0E+01 a	<u> </u>		
IFERBAM	14484-54-1	4.2E+001a			
IF LUDRANTHENE	1206-44-0	5.0E+01¦d	3.1E+031C		
	86-73-7	5.0E+01 d	3.1E+03 C		
FLUORIDES	NA	<1500 a	4.7E+031C		
	133-07-3	5.00E+01 a	1.8E+02 C		
FORMALDENTUE (METHYL ALDENYDE)	(50-00-0	5.0E+00 a	2.1E+01 C		
	142.6	5.0E+01 a	1.6E+05 C		
N N	.110-00-9	3.5E+01+e	7.8E+01 C		

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media and media's leachate

Page 6

The second se

. .....

----

8/26/97

.

 $\smile$ 

\_ 1

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media <u>and</u> media's leachate cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.

SUBSTANCE         CASNUM         Construction         F         Action Level         F           NURACULDONE         167454         5.0E+01.a         3.7E+01.C           NURACULDONE         167454         5.0E+01.a         2.3E+02.C           CURLIN         151422.B         7.0E+03.e         1.3E+02.C           CURLINALDENTOR (2, 3-EPOXYPROPARAL)         1765-34.4         5.0E+01.a         3.1E+01.C           CASS BELA MOLATION         NA         5Cpalk.is         3.1E+01.C           CASS BELA MOLATION         NA         1000pC/L.d.d         4           CALLERANDE EPOXIDE         1785-34.4         ND         ia         1.4E+01.C           MEPARIDR         784-48         ND         ia         1.4E+01.C           MEPARIDR         118-72-1         5.0E+001.a         1.6E+02.C           MEXARRONDERZENE         118-72-1         5.0E+001.a         8.2E+00.C           MEXARRONDERZENE         118-72-1         5.0E+001.a         8.2E+00.C           MEXARRONDERZENE         17.47-4         5.0E+001.a         8.2E+00.C           MEXARRONDERZENE         118-72-1         5.0E+001.a         4.6E+01.C           MEXARRONDERZENE         118-02.C         1.0E+02.C         1.0E+02.C		······	Groundwater R	Soil/ Sediment R
SUBSTANCE         (CASUM)         (Log NL)         F         (mpRs)         F           PUBARCULDORE         674-5-6         S DE-01-a         S DE-01-a         2 3 EF0 2 C           FURIARL         [29-01-1]         S DE-01-a         2 3 EF0 2 C         3 EF0 1 C           GOC TOALDERING (2, 3 EF0XPROPARAL)         [765-344         S DE-01-a         2 3 EF0 2 C         3 EF0 1 C           GODS ALPAR APOLATION         NA         (SDE-01-a)         3 EF0 1 C         3 EF0 1 C           GODS ALPAR APOLATION         NA         (SDE-01-a)         3 EF0 1 C         3 EF0 1 C           GODS ALPAR APOLATION         NA         (SDE-01-a)         3 EF0 1 C         1 EF0 1 C           GODS ALPAR APOLATION         NA         (SDE-01-a)         1 AE-01 C         1 AE-01 C           MEXARDOR EPACIDE         10 24-57-3         ND         -8         7 DE-02 C         1 BE-02 C           MEXARDOR EPACIDE         197-85-3         SDE-00-a         S SE-02 C         -8         2 SE-00-C         S SE-02 C         -8         2 SE-00-C         S SE-02 C         -7         -7         -7         -7         -7         -7         -7         -7         -7         -7         -7         -7         -7         -7         -7         -			Action Level E	Action Level E
FURAZOLIDORE         67:45-8         SDE-01 a         1.7E-01.0           TURFURAL         196-01-1         SDE-01 a         2.25-02.0           CINITUM         S31-82-8         7.05-33.6         1.3E-02.0           GAUSS ANPA RADIATION         NA         SCOPU a         3.1E-01.0           GAUSS ANPA RADIATION         NA         1000pc/L         d         1           GAUSS ANPA RADIATION         NA         1002457.3         ND         a         1         4.60.01         C           MEXAGUADECTORDINA         184-82-1         S.50E-001 a         5.214-02.0         E         5.214-02.0         E         E         C         E         E         C         E         E         C         E         E         C         E         E         C         E <t< td=""><td>SUBSTANCE</td><td>CASNUM</td><td>(ug/L) <sup>/</sup> F</td><td>(mg/kg) F</td></t<>	SUBSTANCE	CASNUM	(ug/L) <sup>/</sup> F	(mg/kg) F
PURPTIRAL         IPBO-11         SDE-01 a         2.3E-02 C           CURTUAL         IS31-82-8         7.0E-03 e         1.3E-02 C           CUCTOALDENTOP (2,3-EFOXTPROPANAL)         1765-34-4         SDE+01 a         3.1E-01 C           GROSS BETA ARDIATION         INA         SDE+01 d         3.1E-01 C           GROSS BETA ARDIATION         INA         10000C/LL d         -           GUATFENESIN         ISD-14-1         SDE+01 d         -           MEPTACHUR FORIDO         1024-57.3         ND a         7.0E-02 C           MEXARCHORSERZENE         187-82-1         SDE+00 a         1.6E-02 C           MEXARCHORSERZENE         187-82-1         SDE+00 a         8.2E-00 C           MEXARCHORSERZENE         187-82-3         SDE+00 a         8.2E-00 C           MEXARCHORSERZENE         187-83-3         SDE+00 a         8.2E-00 C           MEXARCHORSERZENE         187-82-1         SDE+00 a         8.2E-00 C           MEXARCHORSERZENE         187-82-1         SDE+00 a         8.2E-00 C           MEXARCHORSERZENE         177-74         SDE+00 a         4.0E-01 C           MEXARCHORSERZENE         1024-57.2         1.2E-02 a         2.3E+01 C           MEXARCHORSERZENE         102457.4         SDE	FURAZELIDONE	67-45-8	5.0E+01 a	1.7E-01 C
IPERTUM         SS142-8         7.0E-0.3 e         1.3E-0.2 C           GLY CIDALEDRIA RADIATION         INA         SOE-01 a         3.1E+01 (C           GROSS ALPHA RADIATION         INA         10005/UL d         d           MEXARMOMENTALIDR FEARLING REPORTED         124-57.3         ND         ia         7.0E-02 C           MEXARMOMENTAREME         126-47.3         ND         ia         4.0E-01 C           MEXARMOMENTAREME         126-47.3         f         a         1.0E-03 C           MEXARMOMENTARE         177-47-4         5.0E+00.1a         4.0E-01 C           MEXARMOMENTARE         1903-74.3         f         a         1.0E-03 C           MEXARMOMENTARE         1903-77.7         5.0E+00.1a         4.7E+03.C           MEXALINGOPROFENE </td <td>FURFURAL</td> <td>198-01-1</td> <td>5.0E+01 a</td> <td>2.3E+02 C</td>	FURFURAL	198-01-1	5.0E+01 a	2.3E+02 C
aux chalberno (2,3-FPXXPROPANAL) (755344 50E-01a 31E-01c GROSS ALPNA RADIATION NA 50E-01 a 31E-01c GROSS BETA RADIATION NA 1000pC/L d GROSS BETA RADIATION NA 1000pC/L d MPTACHLOR 75445 NO a 142E-01c MEPTACHLOR 75445 NO a 142E-01c MEPTACHLOR 75445 NO a 142E-01c MEPTACHLOR 75445 NO a 16E-02 c MEXACHLOR POXIDE 102457.3 ND a 70E-02 c MEXACHLOR POXIDE 118-74-1 35E-01 4 60E-01 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 118-74-1 35E-01 4 60E-01 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 118-74-1 50E-001 8 22E-00 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 118-74-1 50E-001 8 22E-00 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 118-74-1 50E-001 8 22E-00 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 118-74-1 50E-001 4 20E-01 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 118-74-1 50E-001 8 22E-00 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 174-74 50E-001 4 20E-01 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 174-74 50E-001 4 20E-01 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 174-74 50E-001 4 20E-01 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 170-30-4 70E-001 4 20E-01 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 170-30-4 70E-001 4 20E-01 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 170-30-4 70E-001 4 2.0E-01 c MEXACHLOR REVERE 110-54-3 50E-01 4 MEXACHLOR REVERE 110-54-3 50E-01 4 MEXACHLOR REVERE 21003-93-2 1.2E-02 c AUDRE 501-78-4 50E-01 4 MEXACHLOR REVERE 20E-01 2 MURACULOR 20E-01 2 MURACULOR 20E-01 2 MURACULOR 20E-01 2 20E-01 2 20E-	FURIUM	531-82-8	7.0E-03 e	1.3E-02\C
CROSS BETA RADIATION         INA         SCOUNT         ID           CROSS BETA RADIATION         INA         1000pC/L         d           CROSS BETA RADIATION         INA         1000pC/L         d           CROSS BETA RADIATION         INA         1000pC/L         d           CROSS BETA RADIATION         INA         1000pC/L         d         14E-01 C           MEPTACHLOR FPOLIDE         102457.3         ND         ia         70E-02 C           MEXAGROMOREXENE         16742.1         5.0E+001a         1.6E+02 C           MEXAGROMOREXENE         110-74-1         3.5E-01 a         4.0E-01 C           MEXACULORO INTACE         1747-4         S.0E+001 a         4.0E-01 C           MEXACULORO INTACE         1747-4         S.0E+001 a         4.0E-01 C           MEXACULORO INTAL         1940s74-3         I         a         1.0E-03 C           MEXACULORO INTAL         1940s74-3         S.0E+001a         4.7E+03 C           MEXACULORO INTAL         1940s74-3         S.0E+001a         4.7E+03 C           MEXACULORO INTALE         7.0E+021 A         2.3E+01 C         T           MEXACULORO INTALE         100-943 Z         1.2E+021 C         2.1E-01 C           MEXACULORO INTALE	GLYCIDALDEHYDE (2,3-EPOXYPROPANAL)	1765-34-4	5.0E+01 a	3.1E+01 C
CROSS BETA AROLATION         INA         1000pC/L         d           GUALFERSIM         /33-14-1         S DE+01/d           GUALFERSIM         /33-14-1         S DE+01/d           MEPTACHLOR         76-44-8         ND         is         1.4E-01 C           MEPTACHLOR         FOX.10E         1024-57-3         ND         is         7.0E-02.0           MEXABROMSENZENE         107-42-1         3.5E-01 a         4.0E-01 C         is         1.0E-02.0           MEXABROMSENZENE         118-74-1         3.5E-01 a         4.0E-01 C         is         is<	GROSS ALPHA RADIATION	NA	5Cpi/L ib	
CHATFENESIN         (93)-14-1         S DE+01 d           MEPTACHLOR         76-44-3         ND         14E-011C           MEPTACHLOR FOXIDE         1024-57-3         ND         14E-011C           MEXABREMOBENZENE         197-82-1         S.DE-00.0         1.6E-021C           MEXABREMOBENZENE         197-82-1         S.DE-00.0         1.6E-021C           MEXABREMOBENZENE         116-77-1         S.DE-00.0         8.2E-00.0           MEXACHLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE         177-47-4         S.DE-00.0         8.2E-00.0           MEXACHLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE         177-47-4         S.DE-00.0         8.2E-00.0           MEXACHLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE         177-47-4         S.DE-00.0         8.2E-00.0           MEXACHLOROCHORON BRUZO-POLOXIN         19408-74-3         1         a         1.0E-03.0           MEXACHLOROCHOROPALE         703-04         7.0E-00.1         2.3E+01.0           MEXACHLOROPROPENE         110-54-3         S.DE-00.1         4.7E+03.0           MEMARE         110-64-3         S.DE-00.1         4.7E+03.0           MEXACULOROPHONE         110-322         1.2E-02.1         2.1E-01.0           MURDAZINE         1024-03-         7.0E+02.1         1.6E+03.0           MURDAZINE         312-032	GROSS BETA RADIATION	NA	1000pCi/L id	
ND         a         14.601 C           NEPTACHLOR         1024-57-3         ND         a         7.0E-02.C           NEPTACHLOR EPONDE         1024-57-3         ND         a         7.0E-02.C           NEXABRUDGENZENE         116-74-1         3.5E-01 a         4.0E-01 C           NEXACHLORO-1, 3-BUTADIENE         87-68-3         5.0E+001 a         8.2E+00]C           NEXACHLORO-1, 0-DEVIDENE         177-74-4         5.0E+001 a         4.5E+01 C           NEXACHLOROC-DEPOIDXIN         19408-74-3         f         a         1.0E-03.C           NEXACHLOROCHENE         177-74-4         5.0E+001 a         4.5E+01 C           NEXACHLOROCHAME         170-30-4         7.0E+001 a         4.5E+01 C           NEXACHLOROCHAME         170-30-4         7.0E+001 a         4.5E+01 C           NEXACHLOROCHAME         1983-71-7         5.0E+001 a         4.7E+03.C           NEXACHLOROPOPENE         1983-71-7         5.0E+001 a         2.3E+01 C           ANDE         1983-71-7         5.0E+001 a         2.3E+01 C           ANDE         1983-71-7         5.0E+001 a         2.3E+01 C           ANDE         1983-71-7         5.0E+001 a         2.3E+01 C           NPRACENCOMPHENE         1002-4-32	GUAIFENESIN	193-14-1	5.0E+01,d	
NEPTACHLOR       FOXIDE       1024-57-3       ND       a       7.0E-02.C         MEXARMOBERZENE       67-82-1       5.0E+00:a       1.6E+02.C         MEXARMOBERZENE       116-74-1       3.5E-01 a       4.0E-01:C         MEXACHLORGERZENE       116-74-1       3.5E-01 a       4.0E-01:C         MEXACHLORGERZENE       177-47-4       5.0E+00:a       5.5E+02         MEXACHLORGERZO-p-DIXIN       19408-74-3       f       a       0.0E-03.C         MEXACHLORGERZO-p-DIXIN       19408-74-3       f       a       0.0E-03.C         MEXACHLORGERZO-p-DIXIN       19408-74-3       f       a       0.0E-03.C         MEXACHLORGERLAC-p-DIXIN       19408-74-3       f       a       0.0E-03.C         MEXACHLORGERLAC-p-DIXIN       19808-71-7       5.0E+00:a       2.3E+01.C         MEXACHLORGERLENC       70:30-4       7.0E+02:a       1.0E+03.C         MEXACHLORGERLENC       110-54-3       5.0E+01:a       4.7E+03.C         ANONE       591-78-6       5.0E+01:d       -         MEXALINGERMENC       302-01-2       1.2E-02:e       2.1E-01:C         MEXACHLORGERLE       100-34-32       2.2E-02:e       2.1E-01:C         MEXALINGERUNCLE       7783-06-4       1.1E+02:e	HEPTACHLOR	76-44-8	ND a	1.4E-01 C
NEXABROMOSENZENE       97-82-1       5.0E + 001a       1.6E+02.C         MEXABROMOSENZENE       116-74-1       3.5E-01a       4.0E-01c         MEXACHLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE       176-74-1       5.0E+001a       8.2E+00,c         MEXACHLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE       177-47-4       5.0E+001a       8.2E+00,c         MEXACHLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE       1747-4       5.0E+001a       4.6E+01,c         MEXACHLOROCENTANE       1747-4       5.0E+001a       4.6E+01,c         MEXACHLOROCENTANE       1747-4       5.0E+001a       4.6E+01,c         MEXACHLOROROFENE       1703-04       7.0E+001a       4.6E+01,c         MEXACHLOROROPENE       110-54.3       5.0E+001a       4.7E+03,cC         ANDRE       591-78-6       5.0E+001a       4.7E+03,cC         NORAZINE       502-01.2       1.2E+02,c       2.1E-01.C         ANDRE       592-01.2       1.2E+02,c       2.1E-01.C         NORAZINE       502-01.2       1.2E+02,c       2.5E+03.C         NORAZINE       502-01.2       1.2E+02,c       2.5E+03.C         NORAZINE SULFATE       10034-93-2       1.2E+02,c       2.5E+03.C         NORAZINE SULFATE       10034-93-2       1.2E+02,c       2.5E+03.C         NORAZINE SULFATE       10	HEPTACHLOR EPOXIDE	1024-57-3	ND a	7.0E-02 C
NEXACHLOROBERZENE         116-74-1         3.5E-01 a         4.0E-01 c           MEXACHLOROBERZENE         167-68-3         5.0E+001 a         8.2E+00] c           MEXACHLOROBEL         177-47-4         5.0E+001 a         8.2E+00] c           MEXACHLOROBELOPENT DIENE         177-47-4         5.0E+001 a         4.6E+01 c           MEXACHLOROBIENZO-p-DIDXIN         19408-74-3         f         a         1.0E-03.c           MEXACHLOROPHENE         70-30-4         7.0E+001 a         4.5E+01 c           MEXACHLOROPHENE         10563-71-7         5.0E+001 a         4.5E+01 c           N - MEXANE         110-54-3         5.0E+011 a         4.7E+03.c           N - NEXANE         502-10 a         2.1E+01 c         2.1E+01 c           MUDAZINE         502-012         1.2E+02 le         2.1E+01 c           MUDAZINE         10034-93-2         1.2E+02 le         2.1E+01 c           MUDAZINE         174-00-8         7.0E+02 le         1.5E+03 lc           MUDROSEN CVANIDE         778-06-4         1.1E+02 le         2.3E+02 lC           MUDROSEN SULFIDE         778-30-64         1.1E+02 le         2.3E+02 lC           MUDROSEN SULFIDE         726-35-1         5.0E+01 ld         1.2E+02 le           1-MUDROXFTENTLID	HEXABROMOBENZENE	87-82-1	5.0E+001a	1.6E+02 C
NEXACHLORO-1, 3-BUTADIENE         187-68-3         5.0E+001a         8.2E+00, C           MEXACKLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE         [77-47-4]         5.0E+001a         5.5E+02           MEXACKLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE         [77-47-4]         5.0E+001a         4.5E+02, C           MEXACKLOROCHENE         [67-72-1]         5.0E+001a         4.5E+01, C           MEXACHLOROPENE         [70-30-4]         7.0E+001a         2.3E+01, C           MEXACHLOROPRENE         [105-43.3]         5.0E+001a         4.7E+03, C           MEXACHLOROPRENE         [105-43.3]         5.0E+001a         4.7E+03, C           MEXACHLOROPRENE         [105-43.3]         5.0E+011a         4.7E+03, C           MEXACHLOROPRENE         [105-43.2]         [2.60.1 C         1.7E+021e         2.1E-01 C           MEXACULOROPROPENE         [10034-93-2]         [2.60.2]e         2.1E-01 C         1.7PROQUENCE         [2.50.2]e         2.1E-01 C           MEXACULOROULINONE         [74-90.5]         7.0E+021e         2.3E+021 C         1.7PROQUENCE         [2.50.2]e         2.1E-01 C           MEXACULOROULINONE         [74-90.5]         7.0E+021e         2.3E+021 C         1.7E+021e         2.3E+021 C           MEXACULOROULINONE         [74-90.5]         7.0E+021e         2.3E+021 C	HEXACHLOROBENZENE	118-74-1	3.5E-01 a	4.0E-01 C
HEXACHLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE         17.47.4         5.0E+00;a         5.5E+02           HEXACULORODIEXZO-P-DIDXIN         19408-74.3         f         a         1.0E-03.C           HEXACULOROPENE         70-30-4         7.0E+00;a         2.3E+01;C           HEXACULOROPENE         70-30-4         7.0E+00;a         2.3E+01;C           HEXACULOROPENE         110-54-3         5.0E+00;a         4.7E+03;C           ANNE         110-54-3         5.0E+01;a         4.7E+03;C           ANNE         502-01;Z         1.2E-02;e         2.1E-01;C           MYDRAZINE         1002493-2         1.2E-02;e         2.1E-01;C           MYDROEN         7749-06         7.0E+02;e         1.5E+03;C           MYDROEN         7749-08         7.0E+02;e         1.5E+03;C           MYDROEN         7749-08         7.0E+02;e         1.5E+03;C           MYDROEN         7783-06-4         1.1E+02;e         2.3E+02;C           MYDROEN         7.2E+03;E         1.5E+03;C         1.1E+02;e         2.3E+02;C           MYDROEN         7.2E+04;E         1.5E+03;C         1.1E+02;e         2.3E+04;C           MYDROEN KYNER         19339-5         2.0E-03;d         9.0E-01;G          1.4YDROXYTENYLIDENE-1, 1-DIPNOSPHONIC ACID	HEXACHLORO-1, 3-BUTADIENE	87-68-3	5.0E+001a	8.2E+00 C
HEXACHLOROD IBENZO - p-DIOXIN         19408-74-3         f         a         1.0E-03.C           MEXACULOROD HANE         67.72-1         5.0E+001a         4.5E-011.C           MEXACHLOROP HAVE         70.62+001a         2.3E+01.C           MEXACULOROP HAVE         110-54.3         5.0E+001a         4.7E+03.C           N HEXANE         110-54.3         5.0E+001a         4.7E+03.C           N HEXANE         110-54.3         5.0E+011a         4.7E+03.C           N HEXANE         302-01-2         1.2E-021e         2.1E-011C           MYDRAZINE         302-01-2         1.2E-021e         2.1E-011C           MYDRAZINE         70.84-93-2         1.2E-021e         2.1E-011C           MYDRAZINE         70.84-93-2         1.2E-021e         2.1E-011C           MYDRAZINE         70.84-93-2         1.2E-021e         2.1E-011C           MYDRAZINE         70.84-93-2         1.2E-021e         2.1E-011C           MYDRAZINE         1783-06-4         1.1E+021e         2.3E+021C           MYDRADUINONE         123-31-9         5.0E+011d         1           1-MYDRADUINONE         123-31-9         5.0E+011d         1           2-22-HYDRAVE         1.93-39-5         2.0E-031d         9.0E-011C <td>HEXACHLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE</td> <td>177-47-4</td> <td>5.0E+00;a</td> <td>5.5E+02</td>	HEXACHLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE	177-47-4	5.0E+00;a	5.5E+02
NEXACHLOROPENANE       67.72.1       \$ 0 E+00]a       4 6E+01, C         MEXACHLOROPRENE       70.30.4       7.02+00]a       2.3E+01, C         MEXACHLOROPROPENE       1883-71.7       \$ 50E+00]a       2.3E+01, C         MEXACHLOROPROPENE       1883-71.7       \$ 50E+00]a       4 7E=03, C         ANONE       \$ 591-78-6       \$ 50E+01]a       4 7E=03, C         ANONE       \$ 302-01.2       1 2E=02]e       2.1E=01; C         MYDRAZINE       302-01.2       1 2E=02]e       2.1E=01; C         MYDRODEC (7ANIDE       74:90-8       7.0E+02]e       1 5E=03; C         MYDRODEN (7ANIDE       778:306-4       1 1E+02]e       2.3E+02; C         MYDRODEN (7ANIDE       778:306-4       1 1E+02]e       2.3E+02; C         MYDRODEN (7ANIDE       708:400; A       5.0E+01; d       3.1E+03; C         1-MYDROSEN (7ANIDE       123:31:9       \$ 50E+01; d       3.1E+03; C         1-MYDROSEN (7, 2, 5-01; FERPENTYLPMENYL)-BENZOTRIAZOLE       25973:55:1       \$ 50E+01; d       50E+01; d         1       100EN0(1, 2, 3-cd)PYRENE       193-39-5       2.06-03; d       9.0E-01; C         100RON, TOTAL       '1       3.0E+02; a       2       i         1500ENDIL       10ENZON       5.0E+01; a	HEXACHLORODIBENZO-p-DIOXIN	19408-74-3	f a	1.0E-03+C
NEXACHLOROPHENE       70.30-4       7.0E+00]a       2.3E+01.C         MEXACHLOROPROPENE       11883-71.7       5.0E+00.a	HEXACHLOROETHANE	67-72-1	5.0E+001a	4.6E+01 C
HEXACHLOROPROPENE       1883-71-7       5.0E+00:a         N+REXARE       1110-54-3       5.0E+00:a         ANONE       591-78-6       5.0E+01:a       4.7E+03:C         ANONE       591-78-6       5.0E+01:a       4.7E+03:C         ANONE       591-78-6       5.0E+01:a       4.7E+03:C         ANONE       302-01-2       1.2E-02:e       2.1E-01:C         HYDRAZINE SULFATE       1.0034-93-2       1.2E-02:e       2.1E-01:C         HYDROGEN CYANIDE       74-90-8       7.0E+02:e       1.6E+03:C         HYDROGEN CYANIDE       7783-06-4       1.1E+02!e       2.3E+02!C         HYDRODUINONE()       1/23-31-9       5.0E+01!d       3.1E+03!C         HYDRODUINONE (p-HYDRODUINONE)       1/23-31-9       5.0E+01!d       3.1E+03!C         HYDRODUINONE (p-HYDRODUINONE)       1/23-31-9       5.0E+01!d       3.1E+03!C         1NDENO(1,2,3-cd)PYRENE       193-39-5       2.0E+03!d       9.0E-01!C         IRON, TOTAL       '1       3.0E+02!a, *2       i         ISOBUTY, ALCONCL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       178-83-1       5.0E+01!a       2.3E+04!C         ISODECYL DIPHENYL PHOSPNATE       129761-21-5       5.0E+01!a       1         ISOPROPYLEXZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5	HEXACHLOROPHENE	70-30-4	7.0E+00ia	2.3E+01:C
N+HEXANE       110-54-3       5.0E+01 a       4.7E+03, C         IANOME       591-78-6       5.0E+01 d       1         NUDRAZINE       302-01-2       1.2E-02 e       2.1E-01 C         NUDRAZINE SULFATE       10034-93-2       1.2E-02 e       2.1E-01 C         NUDRAZINE SULFATE       10034-93-2       1.2E-02 e       2.1E-01 C         NUDROGEN SULFIDE       7783-06-4       1.1E+02 e       2.3E+02 C         NUDROGUNONE (p-NUDROCULINONE)       123-31-9       5.0E+01 d       3.1E+03 C         1-NUDROXTETMYLIDENE-1, 1-DIPHOSPHONIC ACID       2805-21-4       5.0E+01 d       3.1E+03 C         2-(2-HUDROXY-3, 5-DI-TERTPENTYLPHENYL)-SENZOTRIAZOLE       25073-55-1       5.0E+01 d       1         NDENO(1, 2, 3-cd)PYRENE       193-39-5       2.0E-03 d       9.0E-01 C         IRON, TOTAL       '1       3.0E+02 a, '2       i         ISOBUTYL ALCONOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       178-83-1       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 i C         ISODRIN       1650-73-6       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 i C         ISODRIN       13320-53-0       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         ISOPROPYLENCE       198-87-5       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         ISOPROPYLOLUENE       198-87-5       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C	HEXACHLOROPROPENE	,1888-71-7	5.0E+00:a	<u>;</u>
ANONE         591-78-6         5.0E+011d           HYDRAZINE         302-01-2         1.2E-021e         2.1E-011C           HYDRAZINE         10034-93-2         1.2E-021e         2.1E-011C           HYDROGEN CYANIDE         74-90-8         7.0E+021e         2.1E-011C           HYDROGEN CYANIDE         7783-06-4         1.1E+021e         2.3E+021C           HYDROQUINONE (p-HYDROQUINONE)         123-31-9         5.0E+011d         3.1E+031C           HYDROXTETHYLIDENE-1, 1-DIPHOSPHONIC ACID         2805-21-4         5.0E+011d         1           2.(2.HYDROXY-3, 5-01 - TERIPENTYLPHENYL)-BENZOTRIAZOLE         25973-55-1         5.0E+011d         1           INDENO(1, 2, 3-cd)PYRENE         193-39-5         2.0E-03]d         9.0E-011C           IRON, TOTAL         '1         3.0E+02]a         2         1           ISOBUTYL ALCONOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)         178-83-1         5.0E+01]a         2.3E+041C           ISOBECYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE         129761-21-5         5.0E+01]a         2.3E+041C           ISOBORIN         33820-53-0         5.0E+00]a         1.2E+032C           ISOPROPYLIN         33820-53-0         5.0E+00]a         1.2E+032C           ISOPROPYLOULENE         199-87-5         5.0E+00]a         1.2E+032C	N-HEXANE	110-54-3	5.0E+01 a	4.7E+03;C
NYDRAZINE       302-01-2       1.2E-02 ie       2.1E-01 C         NYDRAZINE SULFATE       10034-93-2       1.2E-02 ie       2.1E-01 iC         NYDROGEN CAMIDE       74.90-8       7.0E+02 ie       1.5E+03 iC         NYDROGEN SULFIDE       7783-06-4       1.1E+02 ie       2.3E+02 iC         NYDROGUINONE)       1/23-31-9       5.0E+01 id       3.1E+03 iC         1-NYDROXUTNONE)       1/2808-21-4       5.0E+01 id       3.1E+03 iC         2-(2-HYDROXY-3,5-DI-TERTPENTYLPHENYL)-BENZOTR IAZOLE       1/25973-55-1       5.0E+01 id       1.1E         1NDENO(1, 2, 3-cd)PYRENE       193-39-5       2.0E-03 id       9.0E-01 iC         IRON, TOTAL       '1       3.0E+02 ia, '2       i       1.500E+01 ia         ISOBCYL LACOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       178-83-1       5.0E+01 ia       1.50E+01 ia         ISOBCYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE       129761-21-5       5.0E+01 ia       1.50E+00 ia       1.50E+02 iC         ISOPROPLENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00 ia       3.1E+03 iC       1.50F+00 ia<	ANONE	591-78-6	5.0E+011d	
HYDRAZINE SULFATE       10034-93-2       1.2E-02       e       2.1E-011C         HYDROGEN CYANIDE       74-90-8       7.0E+02       e       1.6E+03:C         HYDROGEN CYANIDE       7783-06-4       1.1E+02       2.3E+02'C       HYDROGEN SULFIDE       2.3E+02'C         HYDROGUINONE (p-HYDROULINONE)       123-31-9       5.0E+01!d       3.1E+03!C         1.HYDROXYTETHYLIDENE-1,1-DIPHOSPHONIC ACID       2805-21.4       5.0E+01!d       1         2.(2-HYDROXY-3,5-01:TERTPENTYLPHENYL)-SENZOTRIAZOLE       12973-55.1       5.0E+01!d       1         1.HYDROXY-3,5-01:TERTPENTYLPHENYL)-SENZOTRIAZOLE       129761-21-5       5.0E+01!d       2.3E+04!C         1.SODEYL ALCOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       178-83-1       5.0E+01!a       2.3E+04!C         ISODEYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE       129761-21-5       5.0E+01!a       2.3E+04!C         ISODEYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE       129761-21-5       5.0E+01!a       1.3E+04!C         ISOPROPALIN       33820-53-0       5.0E+00!a       1.2E+03!C         ISOPROPYLENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00!a       1.2E+03!C         ISOPROPYLOLUENE       199-87-5       5.0E+00!a       1.2E+03!C         ISOPROPYLOLUENE       199-87-5       5.0E+00!a       1.2E+03!C         ISOPROPYLOLUENE	HYDRAZINE	302-01-2	1.2E-02ie	2.1E-01:C
HYDROGEN CYANIDE       74.90-8       7.0E+02 e       1.6E+03:C         HYDROGEN SULFIDE       7783-06-4       1.1E+02 e       2.3E+02 C         HYDROXENDE (p-HYDROQUINONE)       1/23-31-9       5.0E+011 d       3.1E+03:C         1-HYDROXTETHYLIDEME -1, 1-DIPHOSPHONIC ACID       2805-21-4       5.0E+011 d       3.1E+03:C         2-(2-HYDROXY-3, 5-DI-TERTPENTYLPHENYL)-BENZOTRIAZOLE       25973-55-1       5.0E+011 d       1         INDENO(1, 2, 3-cd)PYRENE       193-39-5       2.0E-03 d       9.0E-011 C         IRON, TOTAL       '1       3.0E+02 a, *2       i         ISOBUTYL ALCOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       78-83-1       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 IC         ISODECYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE       129761-21-5       5.0E+01 a       1.2E+03 C         ISOPROPALIN       33820-53-0       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         ISOPROPALENE       198-82-8       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         ISOPROPUENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         P-ISOPROPYLTOLUENE       198-82-5       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         P-ISOPROPYLTOLUENE       198-82-5       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 a       1.EE+03 C         KEPOME       143-50-0	HYDRAZINE SULFATE	10034-93-2	1.2E-02 e	2.1E-01 C
HYDROGEN SULFIDE       7783-06-4       1.1E+02 e       2.3E+02 c         HYDROQUINONE (p-HYDROQUINONE)       123-31-9       5.0E+01 id       3.1E+03 ic         1-HYDROXYETHYLIDENE -1, 1-DIPHOSPHONIC ACID       2805-21-4       5.0E+01 id       .         2-(2-HYDROXY-3,5-01 - TERTPENTYLPHENYL)-BENZOTRIAZOLE       25973-55-1       5.0E+01 id       .         2-(2-HYDROXY-3,5-01 - TERTPENTYLPHENYL)-BENZOTRIAZOLE       193-39-5       2.0E-03 id       9.0E-01 ic         INDENO(1, 2, 3-cd)PYRENE       193-39-5       2.0E-03 id       9.0E-01 ic         IRON, TOTAL       *1       3.0E+02 ia, *2       i         ISOBUYL ALCOHOL (2-WETHYL-1-PROPANOL)       78-83-1       5.0E+01 ia       2.3E+04 iC         ISOOPCYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE       129761-21-5       5.0E+01 ia       2.3E+04 iC         ISOOPCAL IN       33620-53-0       5.0E+00 ia       1.2E+03 c         ISOPROPAL IN       33820-53-0       5.0E+00 ia       3.1E+03 C         P- ISOPROPYLTOLUENE       199-87-6       5.0E+00 ia       1.2E+03 c         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 ia       1.EE+03 c         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 ia       1.EE+03 c         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 ia       1.EE+03 c         LEAD, TOTAL<	HYDROGEN CYANIDE	74-90-8	7.0E+02;e	1.6E+03:C
HYDROQUINONE (p-HYDROQUINONE)       123-31-9       5.0E+01id       3.1E+031C         1-HYDROXYETHYLIDENE-1,1-DIPHOSPHONIC ACID       2805-21-4       5.0E+01id	HYDROGEN SULFIDE	7783-06-4	1.1E+02 e	2.3E+02 C
1-HYDROXYETHYLIDENE-1,1-DIPHOSPHONIC ACID       2805-21-4       5.0E+01 d         2-(2-HYDROXY-3,5-DI-TERTPENTYLPHENYL)-BENZOTRIAZOLE       25973-55-1       5.0E+01 d         INDENO(1,2,3-cd)PYRENE       193-39-5       2.0E-03 d       9.0E-01 C         IRON, TOTAL       ''1       3.0E+02 a, *2       i         ISOBUTYL ALCOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       '78-83-1       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 C         ISODECYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE       129761-21-5       5.0E+01 a       1.2E+03 C         ISODRONE       '78-59-1       5.0E+01 a       6.7E+02 C         ISOPROPALIN       33820-53-0       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         ISOPROPYLBENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         ISOPROPYLTOLUENE       199-87-5       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         ISOSAFROLE       130-50-0       ND       ia         ILAND       '1 <td>HYDROQUINONE (p-HYDROQUINONE)</td> <td>123-31-9</td> <td>5.0E+01 d</td> <td>3.1E+03 C</td>	HYDROQUINONE (p-HYDROQUINONE)	123-31-9	5.0E+01 d	3.1E+03 C
2-(2-HYDROXY-3,5-DI-TERTPENTYLPHENYL)-BENZOTRIAZOLE       :25973-55-1       5.0E+01 d         INDENO(1, 2, 3-cd)PYRENE       193-39-5       2.0E-03 d       9.0E-01 C         IRON, TOTAL       ''1       3.0E+02 a,*2       i         ISOBUTYL ALCOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       '78-83-1       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 C         ISODECYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE       :29761-21-5       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 C         ISODECYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE       :29761-21-5       5.0E+00 a       1         ISOPRORNE       '78-59-1       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         ISOPROPALIN       33820-53-0       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         ISOPROPYLBENZEWE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         P-ISOPROPYLTOLUENE       !99-87-6       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         ISOSAFROLE       :120-58-1       5.0E+00 a       1         ISOSAFROLE       :120-58-1       5.0E+00 a       1         ISOSAFROLE       :143-50-0       ND       ia       1         LEAD, TOTAL       '1       1.5E+01 b       4.0E+02 h       1         LINDANE (gamma-BHC)       :58-89-9       ND       ia       4.9E-01 C         LINURON       :30-55-2       :5.EH00 a       1.6E+02 C       1.6	1-HYDROXYETHYLIDENE-1,1-DIPHOSPHONIC ACID	2809-21-4	5.0E+01 d	
INDENO(1,2,3-cd)PYRENE       193-39-5       2.0E-03 d       9.0E-01 lc         IRON, TOTAL       '1       3.0E+02 a. '2       i         ISOBUTYL ALCOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       78-83-1       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 lc         ISOBUTYL ALCOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       78-83-1       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 lc         ISOBUTYL ALCOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       78-83-1       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 lc         ISODECYL DIPMENYL PHOSPHATE       129761-21-5       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 lc         ISODRIN       465-73-6       5.0E+00 a       1       2.5E+04 lc         ISOPROPALIN       33820-53-0       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 lC       1         ISOPROPYLBENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00 la       3.1E+03 lC       1         P-ISOPROPYLBENZENE (CUMENE)       99-87-6       5.0E+00 la       3.1E+03 lC       1         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 la       1       1         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 la       1       1         ILEAD, TOTAL       '1       1.5E+01 lb       4.0E+02 lh       1         LEAD, TOTAL       '1       1.5E+01 lb       4.0E+02 lh       1         LINDANE (gairma-BHC)       58-89-9       ND       a	2-(2-HYDROXY-3,5-DI-TERTPENTYLPHENYL)-BENZOTRIAZOLE	25973-55-1	5.0E+01jd	
IRON, TOTAL       *1       3.0E+02 a, *2       1         ISOBUTYL ALCOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       78-83-1       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 iC         ISOBUTYL ALCOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       78-83-1       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 iC         ISODECYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE       29761-21-5       5.0E+01 ia       1         ISODENE       78-59-1       5.0E+00 ia       1         ISOPROPALIN       33820-53-0       5.0E+00 ia       1.2E+03 iC         ISOPROPYLBENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00 ia       3.1E+03 C         p-ISOPROPYLENZENE (CUMENE)       99-87-6       5.0E+00 ia       1         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 ia       1       1         KARBUTILATE       4849-32-5       5.0E+00 ia       1       1       1         KARBUTILATE       143-50-0       ND       ia       1       1       1       1       1       0       1       1       1       1       1       0       1       1       1       1       0       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1       1	INDENO(1,2,3-cd)PYRENE	. 193-39-5	2.0E-03 d	9.0E-01 C
ISOBUTYL ALCOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)       78-83-1       5.0E+01 a       2.3E+04 c         ISODECYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE       129761-21-5       5.0E+01 a       1         ISODRIN       465-73-6       5.0E+00 a       1         ISOPHORONE       78-59-1       5.0E+00 a       1         ISOPROPAL IN       33820-53-0       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 c         ISOPROPYLBENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 c         p-ISOPROPYLTOLUENE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 c         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 c         KARBUTILATE       4849-32-5       5.0E+00 a       1         KEPONE       143-50-0       ND       a       1         LEAD, TOTAL       *1       1.5E+01 b       4.0E+02 h         LINDANE (gamma-BHC)       58-89-9       ND       a       4.9E-01 c         LINURON       330-55-2       5.0E+00 a       1.6E+02 c       1.6E+02 c	IRON, TOTAL		3.0E+02ja, *2	
ISODECYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE       :29761-21-5       5.0E+01 a         ISODR IN       :465-73-6       5.0E+00 a         ISOPHORONE       '78-59-1       5.0E+01 d       6.7E+02 C         ISOPROPALIN       :33820-53-0       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         ISOPROPYLBENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         P- ISOPROPYLTOLUENE       199-87-6       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         ISOSAFROLE       :120-58-1       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         ISOSAFROLE       :120-58-1       5.0E+00 a       .         KARBUTILATE       :4849-32-5       5.0E+00 a       .         KEPONE       :143-50-0       ND       a       .         LEAD, TOTAL       :1       1.5E+01 b       4.0E+02 h         LINDANE (gamma-BHC)       :58-89-9       ND       a       4.9E-01 C         LINURON       :30-55-2       :5.0E+00 a       1.6E+02 C       C         *****ESIUM, TOTAL       :1       :5.5E+00 a       1.6E+02 C	ISOBUTYL ALCOHOL (2-METHYL-1-PROPANOL)	78-83-1	5.0E+01 a	2.3E+041C
I SODR IN       465-73-6       5.0E+00 a         I SOPHORONE       78-59-1       5.0E+01 d       6.7E+02 C         I SOPROPAL IN       33820-53-0       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         I SOPROPYLBENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         p-1 SOPROPYLTOLUENE       199-87-6       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         I SOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 a       1         KARBUTILATE       14849-32-5       5.0E+00 a       1         KEPONE       143-50-0       ND       a       1         LEAD, TOTAL       *1       1.5E+01 b       4.0E+02 h         LINURON       330-55-2       5.0E+00 a       1.6E+02 C         M****ESTUM, TOTAL       *1       3.5E+04 e       1.6E+03 C	ISODECYL DIPHENYL PHOSPHATE	29761-21-5	5.0E+01ia	······································
I SOPHORONE       78-59-1       5.0E+01 d       6.7E+02 C         I SOPROPAL IN       33820-53-0       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         I SOPROPYLBENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         p- I SOPROPYLTOLUENE       99-87-6       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         I SOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 a       1         KARBUTILATE       4849-32-5       5.0E+00 la       1         KARBUTILATE       143-50-0       ND       ia         LEAD, TOTAL       1       1.5E+01 lb       4.0E+02 h         LINDANE (gamma-BHC)       58-89-9       ND       a       4.9E-01 C         LINURON       330-55-2       5.0E+00 ia       1.6E+02 C       1         Machine Study, TOTAL       1       3.5E+04 ie       1       1.6E+03 C	ISODRIN	465-73-6	5.0E+00ja	
ISOPROPALIN       33820-53-0       5.0E+00 a       1.2E+03 C         ISOPROPYLBENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         p-ISOPROPYLTOLUENE       99-87-6       5.0E+00 a       3.1E+03 C         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00 a       1         KARBUTILATE       4849-32-5       5.0E+00 a       1         KARBUTILATE       143-50-0       ND       a       1         LEAD, TOTAL       1       1.5E+01 b       4.0E+02 h         LINDANE (gamma-BHC)       58-89-9       ND       a       4.9E-01 C         LINURON       330-55-2       5.0E+00 a       1.6E+02 C         M*^*HESIUM, TOTAL       *1       3.5E+04 e       1.6E+03 C	ISOPHORONE	'78-59-1	5.0E+01 d	6.7E+02 C
ISOPROPYLBENZENE (CUMENE)       98-82-8       5.0E+00   a       3.1E+03   C         p-1SOPROPYLTOLUENE       199-87-6       5.0E+00   a       1         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00   a       1         KARBUTILATE       14849-32-5       5.0E+00   a       1         KARBUTILATE       143-50-0       ND       ia       1         LEAD, TOTAL       *1       1.5E+01   b       4.0E+02   h         LINDANE (gamma-BHC)       58-89-9       ND       ia       4.9E-01   C         LINURON       330-55-2       5.0E+00   a       1.6E+02   C         M* CHESIUM, TOTAL       *1       3.5E+04   e       1.6E+03   C	I SOPROPAL IN	33820-53-0	5.0E+00ja	1.2E+03 C
p-ISOPROPYLTOLUENE       199-87-6       5.0E+00   a         ISOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+00   a         KARBUTILATE       4849-32-5       5.0E+00   a         KEPONE       143-50-0       ND       ia         LEAD, TOTAL       *1       1.5E+01   b       4.0E+02   h         LINDANE (gamma-BHC)       58-89-9       ND       a       4.9E-01   C         LINURON       330-55-2       5.0E+00   a       1.6E+02   C         M*^**ESIUM, TOTAL       *1       3.5E+04   e       1.6E+03   C	ISOPROPYLBENZENE (CUMENE)	98-82-8	5.0E+00 a	3.1E+03 C
I SOSAFROLE       120-58-1       5.0E+01/a       Image: state	p-1SOPROPYLTOLUENE	99-87-6	5.0E+00 a	
KARBUTILATE       14849-32-5       5.0E+001a         KEPONE       143-50-0       ND       ia         LEAD, TOTAL       11       1.5E+011b       4.0E+021h         LINDANE (gamma-BHC)       58-89-9       ND       ia       4.9E-011C         LINURON       330-55-2       5.0E+001a       1.6E+02 C         Manual Control       11       3.5E+041e       1.6E+03 C	ISOSAFROLE	120-58-1	5.0E+01 a	
KEPONE         143-50-0         ND         ia           LEAD, TOTAL         1         1.5E+01 b         4.0E+02 h           LINDANE (gamma-BHC)         58-89-9         ND         ia         4.9E-01 C           LINURON         330-55-2         5.0E+00;a         1.6E+02 C           M****ESIUM, TOTAL         *1         3.5E+04;e           FHION         121-75-5         7.0E+00;a         1.6E+03 C	KARBUTILATE	4849-32-5	5.0E+001a	i
LEAD, TOTAL     1     1.5E+01 b     4.0E+02 h       LINDANE (gamma-BHC)     58-89-9     ND     a     4.9E-01 C       LINURON     330-55-2     5.0E+00;a     1.6E+02 C       M****ESTUM, TOTAL     1     3.5E+04;e       FHION     121-75-5     7.0E+00;a     1.6E+03 C	KEPONE	143-50-0	ND la	
LINDANE (gamma-BHC)         58-89-9         ND         a         4.9E-01 C           LINURON         330-55-2         5.0E+00 a         1.6E+02 C           Machine         1         3.5E+04 a           FHION         121-75-5         7.0E+00 a         1.6E+03 C	LEAD, TOTAL	•1	1.5E+01 b	4.0E+021h
LINURON         330-55-2         5.0E+00;a         1.6E+02 C           Machine         1         3.5E+04;e         1.6E+03 C           FHION         121-75-5         7.0E+00;a         1.6E+03 C	LINDANE (gamma-BHC)	58-89-9	ND a	4.9E-01 C
M****ESIUM, TOTAL         1         3.5E+04.e           FHION         121-75-5         7.0E+00.a         1.6E+03.C	LINURON	330-55-2	5.CE+001a	1.6E+02 C
THION 121-75-5 7.0E+00 a 1.6E+03 C	Manuesium, Total	•1	3.5E+04,e	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	CHION CHION	121-75-5	7.0E+00:a	1.6E+03 C

----

Page 7

......

- --

8/26/97

.

;

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media and media's leachate cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.

		Groundwater R	Soil/ Sediment R
		Action Level E	Action Level E
SUBSTANCE		(ug/L)	(mg/kg)
MALEIC ANHYDRIDE (2,5-FURANDIONE)	108-31-6	5.0E+01;a	7.8E+03.C
MALEIC HYDRAZIDE	122-33-1	5.0E+01:a	3.9E+04.C
MALONONITRILE	109-77-3	5.0E+011a	1.6E+00 C
MANCOZEB (DITHANE M-45)	8018-01-7	5.0E+01 a	2.3E+03 C
MANEB	12427-38-2	1.8E+00 a	3.9E+02'C
MANGANESE, TOTAL		3.0E+02 a, *2	1.1E+04 C
MCPA	94-74-6	4.4E-01 a	3.9E+01 C
МСРВ	194-81-5	5.0E+00 a	8.6E+02;C
МСРР	93-65-2	5.0E+00 a	7.8E+01 C
MEPHOSFOLAN	950-10-7	5.0E+00(a	7.0E+00.C
MERCAPTOBENZOTHIAZOLE	149-30-4	5.0E+01!d	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
MERCURY, TOTAL	<sup>'</sup> *1	V 2.0E+00;a	0 2.3E+01.C
METHACRYLIC ACID	79-41-4	5.0E+01 d	· · · ·
METHACRYLONITRILE (2-METHYL-2-PROPENENITRILE)	126-98-7	5.0E+00 a	7.8E+01 C
METHANOL	67-56-1	5.0E+01 a	3.9E+04 C
METHAPYRILENE	91-80-5	5.0E+01 d	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
METHOMYL	16752-77-5	5.0E+01 a	2.0E+03;C
METHOXYCHLOR	72-43-5	3.5E+01 a	3.9E+02 C
THOXYETHANOL	109-86-4	5.0E+01 a	7.8E+01 C
2-METHOXYETHANOL ACETATE	110-49-6	5.0E+01,a	1.5E+02 C
2-METHOXYETHYLBENZENE	3558-60-9	5.0E+01 id	
1-METHOXYETHYLBENZENE	4013-34-7	5.0E+01 Id	
2-METHOXY-5-NITROANILINE	99-59-2	5.0E+001a	1.4E+01 C
METHYL ACRYLATE	196-33-3	5.0E+01;a	2.3E+03.C
2-METHYLANILINE	-100-61-8	5.0E+00¦a	2.7E+00 C
2-METHYLANILINE HYDROCHLORIDE	636-21-5	5.0E+00 a	3.6E+00 C
METHYL CHLORIDE (CHLOROMETHANE)	74-87-3	5.0E+00.a	4.9E+01:C
3-METHYL CHOLANTHRENE	156-49-5	5.0E+011a	6.8E-02:C
4,4-METHYLENE-BIS-(2-CHLOROANILINE)	101-14-4	5.0E+00 a	4.9E+00 C
4,4'-METHYLENEBIS(N,N'-DIMETHYL)ANALINE	1807-55-2	5.0E+00 a	1.4E+01 C
METHYLENE BISTHIOCYANATE	6317-18-6	5.0E+01 d	:
METHYLENE CHLORIDE (DICHLOROMETHANE)	:75-09-2	5.0E+00ja	8.5E+01.C
4-(1-METHYLETHOXY)-1-BUTANOL	31600-69-8	5.0E+01 d	
2-METHYLETHYL-1, 3-DIOXOLANE	126-39-6	5.0E+01ja	
METHYL ETHYL KETONE (2-BUTANONE)	78-93-3	5.0E+01 d	4.7E+04 C
METHYL 10DIDE (10DOMETHANE)	:74-88-4	5.0E+00 a	
METHYL ISOBUTYL KETONE (4-METHYL-2-PENTANONE)	:108-10-1	5.0E+01 d	6.3E+03;C
METHYL MERCURY	22967-92-6	5.0E+01 a	2.3E+01 C
METHYL METHACRYLATE	80-62-6	5.0E+01 a	6.3E+03.C
METHYL METHANESULFONATE	66-27-3	5.0E+011a	
2-METHYLNAPHTHALENE	.91-57-6	5.0E+01;a	
IETHYL-5-NITROANILINE (5-NITRO-O-TOLUIDINE)	:99-55-8	5.0E+00ia	1.9E+02 C
HYL PARATHION	298-00-0	1.5E+00 a	2.0E+01 C

Page 8

.

cannot adverse	ly impact groundwater; see	TAGM p. 13.	
SUBSTANCE	CASNUM	Groundwater R Action Level E (ug/L) F	Soil/ Sediment R Action Level E (mg/kg) F
METHYL STYRENE	25013-15-4	5.0E+001a	4.7E+02 C
MEVINPHOS (PHOSDRIN)	7786-34-7	5.0E+00 a	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
MIREX	2385-85-5	5.0E+00 a	3.6E-01 C
MOLINATE ,	2212-67-1	5.0E+01 a	1.6E+02 C
MOLYBDENUM, TOTAL	*1	1.6E+02 e	3.9E+02+C
NAPHTHALENE	91-20-3	1.0E+01 <sup>f</sup> d	3 1E+02 C
1,4-NAPHTHOOUINONE	:130-15-4	5.0E+01÷a	······································
1-NAPHTHYLAMINE (1-NAPHITHALENAMINE)	134-32-7	5.0E+00_a	
2-NAPHTHYLAMINE (2-NAPHITHALENAMINE)	191-59-8	5.0E+00;a	
NIACINAMIDE	98-92-0	5.0E+01+a	· · ·
NICKEL, TOTAL	-1	1.0E+02:b	1.6E+03 C
NITRALIN	4726-14-1	3.5E+01 a	1
NITRATES (as N)	NA	1.0E+04:b	1.3E+05 C
NITRIC OXIDE	10102-43-9	3.5E+03 e	7.8E+03 C
NITRITE	INA	1.0E+03ib	7.8E+03 C
NITRILOTRIACETIC ACID	139-13-9	3.0E+00id	
m-NITROANILINE (3-NITROBENZENAMINE)	99-09-2	5.0E+001a	
O-NITROANILINE (2-NITROBENZENAMINE)	88-74-4	5.0E+00 a	i
TROANILINE (4-NITROBENZENAMINE)	100-01-6	5.0E+001a	·
NITROBENZENE	98-95-3	5.0E+00;a	3.9E+01 C
NITROFURANTOIN	67-20-9	5.0E+01;a	5.5E+03 C
NITROFURAZONE	<sup>2</sup> 59-87-0	5.0E+01 a	4.3E-01 C
NITROGEN DIOXIDE	10102-44-0	3.5E+04 e	7.8E+04 C
O-NITROPHENOL (2-NITROPHENOL)	88-75-5	*3 .a	
P-NITROPHENOL (4-NITROPHENOL)	100-02-7	*3 :a	
2-NITROPROPANE	79-46-9	5.0E+01.a	6.7E-02 C
4-NITROQUINOLINE 1-OXIDE	56-57-5	5.0E+01:a	
n-NITROSODI-n-BUTYLAMINE	924-16-3	5.0E+01 a	1.2E-01 C
n-NITROSODI-ETHANOLAMINE	:1116-54-7	5.0E+01 a	2.3E-011C
n-NITROSODIETHYLAMINE		5.0E+01+a	4.3E-03 C
n-NITROSODIMETHYLAMINE	62-75-9	5.0E+01;a	1.3E-02!C
n-NITROSODIPHENYLAMINE	186-30-6	5.0E+011d	1.3E+02.C
n-NITROSO-n-DIPROPYLAMINE (DI-n-PROPYLNITROSAMINE)	621-64-7	5.0E+01;a	9.1E-021C
n-NITROSOMETHYLETHYLAMINE	10595-95-6	5.0E+01:a	2.9E-02.C
n-NITROSO-n-METHYL UREA	684-93-5	5.0E+01 a	2.1E-02.C
	59-89-2	5.0E+01ia	
n-NITROSOPIPERIDINE	100-75-4	5.0E+01 a	
	930-55-2	5.0E+01,a	3.0E-01°C
NITROTOLUENES, TOTAL	INA	5.0E+00 a	7.8E+021C
UCIAMEIHYLPYROPHOSPHORAMIDE	152-16-9	5.0E+C0;a	1.6E+02 C
	4685-14-7	3.0E+00 a	3.5E+02;C
Provilition	56-38-2	1.5E+00\a	4.7E+02 C
ATE	1114-71-2	5.0E+01 a	3.9E+03 C

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media and media's leachate cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.

Page 9

- . - .

<ul> <li>cannot advers</li> </ul>	ely impact groundwater; see	TAGM p. 13.	
		Groundwater R Action Level E	Soil/ Sediment R Action Level E
SUBSTANCE	CASNUM	(Ug/L)	(mg/kg)
PENDIMETHALIN	40487-42-1	5.0E+00[a	3.1E+03.C
PENTACHLOROBENZENE	608-93-5	5.0E+00ra	6.3E+01 C
PENTACHLOROETHANE	75-01-7	5.0E+00 a	·
PENTACHLORONITROBENZENE	82-68-8	ND a	2.5E+00 C
PENTACHLOROPHENOL	87-86-5	*3 ia	3.0E+00 C
PHENACETIN	62-44-2	5.0E+00 a	;
PHENANTHRENE	85-01-8	; 5.0E+011d	·
PHENOL	108-95-2	i*3 ;a	4.7E+041C
PHENOLS, TOTAL	INA	*3 1.0E+00 a	
O-PHENYLENEDIAMINE (1,2-BENZENEDIAMINE)	95-45-5	5.0E+001a	1.4E+011C
m-PHENYLENEDIAMINE (1,3-BENZENEDIAMINE)	108-45-2	5.0E+00 a	4.7E+02 C
p-PHENYLENEDIAMINE (1,4-BENZENEDIAMINE)	106-50-3	5.0E+00ia	•
PHENYL ETHER	101-84-8	1.0E+01 <sup>3</sup> d	
PHENYL MERCURIC ACETATE	62-38-4	5.0E+01 a	6.3E+00¦C
2-PHENYL PHENOL	90-43-7	*3 :a	3.4E+021C
PHENYLPROPANOLAMINE	14838-15-4	5.0E+01;d	
PHORATE	298-02-2	ND a	•
PHOSPHINE	7803-51-2	1.1E+01 e	2.3E+01 C
ALIC ANHYDRIDE	85-44-9	5.0E+01.a	1.6E+05:C
COLINE (2-METHYL PYRIDINE)	109-06-8	5.0E+01 a	
POLYBROMINATED BIPHENYLS (PBBs)	59536-65-1	5.0E+00+a	7.2E-02 C
POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS (PCBs)	1336-36-3	1.0E-01 a	1.0E+00 1,j
POTASSIUM CYANIDE	151-50-8	1.8E+03 e	3.9E+03 C
POTASSIUM SILVER CYANIDE	506-61-6	7.0E+03 e	1.6E+04 C
PROFLURALIN	26399-36-0	5.0E+00ia	4.7E+02!C
PRONAMIDE	23950-58-5	5.0E+01 a	5.9E+03 C
PROPACHLOR	1918-16-7	3.5E+011a	1.0E+03 C
PROPANIL	709-98-8	7.0E+001a	3.9E+02 C
PROPAZINE	139-40-2	1.6E+01 a	1.6E+03 C
PROPIONITRILE (ETHYL CYANIDE)	107-12-0	5.0E+011a	
PROPOXUR	114-26-1	5.0E+01;a	3.1E+02.C
n-PROPYLBENZENE	103-65-1	5.0E+00¦a	1
PROPYLENE GLYCOL (1,2-PROPANEDIOL)	57-55-6	5.0E+01 a	1.6E+06 C
PROPYLENE GLYCOL MONOETHYL ETHER	19089-47-5	5.0E+01 a	5.5E+04 C
PROPYLENE GLYCOL MONOMETHYL ETHER	1589-49-7	5.0E+01 a	5.5E+04;C
PROPYLENE OXIDE	75-56-9	5.0E+01:a	2.7E+00 C
PYRENE	129-00-0	2.0E-01 b	2.3E+03 C
PYRIDINE	110-86-1	5.0E+01;a	7.8E+01 C
	91-22-5	5.0E+01ia	5.1E-02 C
RADIUM 226	NA NA	3 pCi/L 1d	1
RADIUM 226 PLUS RADIUM 228	:NA	15 pCi/L b	
RDY (CYCLONITE)	121-82-4	5.0E+01 a	5.8E+00 C
PINE	50-55-5	5.0E+01 a	6.1E-02 C

## Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media and media's leachate cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.

Page 10

- ---

 $\gamma \rightarrow 0$ 

8/26/97

• . - -

cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.				
		Groundwater Action Level	RE	Soil/ Sediment R Action Level E
SUBSTANCE		(ug/L)		(mg/kg)
RONNEL	299-84-3	5.0E+00	a	3.9E+03 C
ROTENONE	83-79-4	5.0E+01	12	3.1E+02 C
SAFROLE	[94-59-7	5.0E+01	a	
SELENIOUS ACID	7783-00-8	1.8E+02		3.9E+02 C
SELENTUM, TOTAL		1.0E+01	a	3.9E+02 C
	1630-10-4	1.8E+02	e	3.9E+02/C
SILVER, TOTAL		5.0E+01	a	3.9E+02 C
	506-64-9	3.5E+03	e	7.8E+031C
SIMAZINE	122-34-9	4.00E+00	b	5.3E+00 C
SODIUM, TOTAL	1•1	<20000	а	
SODIUM CYANIDE	143-33-9	1.4E+03	e	3.1E+03 C
SODIUM DIETHYLDITHIOCARBAMATE	148-18-5	5.0E+01	a	2.4E+00 C
SODIUM METAVANADATE	13718-26-8	3.5E+01	e	7.8E+01 C
STRONTIUM 90	NA	10pCi/L	d	
STRYCHNINE AND SALTS	57-24-9	5.0E+01	a	2.3E+011C
STYRENE (ETHENYLBENZENE)	100-42-5	5.0E+00	а	2.1E+01iC
SULFATES	NA	2.5E+05	a	<u> </u>
SULFIDES (as H2S)		5.0E+01	d	
HOS	3383-96-8	5.0E+01	а	1.6E+03 C
	13071-25-6	9.0E-02	d	7.8E+00\C
1,2,4,5-TETRACHLOROBENZENE	95-94-3	5.0E+00	a	2.3E+01 C
2,3,7,8-TETRACHLORODIBENZO-p-DIOXIN (2,3,7,8-TCDD) *2	1746-01-6	3.50E-05	a	4.1E-06 C
1,1,1,2-TETRACHLOROETHANE	630-20-6	5.0E+00	a	2.5E+01 C
1,1,2,2-TETRACHLOROETHANE	79-34-5	5.0E+00	а	3.2E+00 C
TETRACHLOROETHYLENE (PERCHLOROETHYLENE)	127-18-4	5.0E+00	а	1.2E+01 C
2,3,4,6-TETRACHLOROPHENOL	58-90-2	*3	a	2.3E+03 C
p,alpha,alpha,alpha-TETRACHLOROTOLUENE	5216-25-1	5.0E+00	a	3 2E-02 C
TETRACHLORVINPHOS (STIROFOS)	961-11-5	5.0E+00	a	2.7E+01 C
TETRAETHYL DITHIOPYROPHOSPHATE (SULFOTEPP)	3689-24-5	5.0E+01	а	3.9E+01 C
TETRAETHYL LEAD	78-00-2	3.5E-03	e	7.8E-03 C
TETRAHYDROFURAN	109-99-9	5.0E+01	d	
THALLIC OXIDE	1314-32-5	3.5E+00	e	7.8E+001C
THALLIUM, TOTAL	*1	2.0E+00	Ъ	7.8E+00 C
THALLIUM ACETATE	1563-68-8	3.2E+00	e	7.0E+00 C
THALLIUM CARBONATE	16533-73-9	2.8E+00	e	6.3E+00 C
THALLIUM CHLORIDE	7791-12-0	2.8E+00	e	6.3E+001C
THALLIUM NITRATE	10102-45-1	3.2E+00	e	7.0E+00 C
THALLIUM SELENITE	12039-52-0	3.5E+00	e	7.8E+00 C
THALLIUM SULFATE	10031-59-1	3.5E+00	e	7.8E+00 C
	[58-55-9	4.0E+01	d	l
2-(THIOCYANOMETHYLTHIO)-BENZOTHIAZOLE (TCMTB)	21564-17-0	5.0E+01	а	2.3E+03 C
	39196-18-4	5.0E+01	a	2.3E+011C
REA	62-56-6	5.0E+01	а	3.3E-01iC

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media and media's leachate cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.

Page 11

-

----

.....

cannot adverse	ly impact groundwater; see	ТАСМ р. 13.	
	· · · · ·	Groundwater R	Soil/ Sediment R
		Action Level E	Action Level E
SUBSTANCE	CASNUM	(ug/L) F	(mg/kg) F
THIRAM	137-26-8	1.8E+00 a	3.9E+02 C
TIN, TOTAL	7440-31-5	2.1E+04ie	1.6E+04 C
TOLUENE (METHYL BENZENE)	108-88-3	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+04 C
2,4-TOLUENEDIAMINE	95-80-7	5.0E+00 a	2.0E-01 C
2,5-TOLUENEDIANINE	95-70-5	5.0E+00 a	4.7E+04 C
2,6-TOLUENEDIAMINE -	823-40-5	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+041C
TOLUENE DIISOCYANATE	584-84-9	5.0E+00 a	
O-TOLUIDINE (2-METHYL BENZENAMINE)	95-53-4	5.0E+00 a	2.7E+001C
P-TOLUIDINE (4-METHYL BENZENAMINE)	106-49-0	5.0E+00 a	3.4E+00 C
TOLYLTRIAZOLE	29385-43-1	5.0E+01 d	
TOXAPHENE	8001-35-2	ND a	5.8E-01 C
2,4,5-TP (SILVEX)	93-72-1	2.6E-01 a	6.3E+02 C
TRIALLATE	2303-17-5	4.6E+02 e	1.0E+03 C
1,2,4-TRIBROMOBENZENE	NA	5.0E+00 a	3.9E+02 C
TRIBUTYLTIN OXIDE	56-35-9	5.0E+01 d	2.3E+00 <sup>1</sup> C
2,4,6-TRICHLORDANILINE	634-93-5	5.0E+00∶a	1.9E+01 C
2,4,6-TRICHLOROANILINE HYDROCHLORIDE	NA	5.0E+001a	2.2E+01!C
1,2,3-TRICHLOROBENZENE	87-61-6	5.0E+00 a	
4-TRICHLOROBENZENE	120-82-1	5.0E+00 a	7.8E+02 C
1-TRICHLOROETHANE (METHYL CHLOROFORM)	71-55-6	5.0E+001a	7.0E+031C
1, 1, 2-TRICHLOROETHANE	79-00-5	5.0E+00 a	1.1E+01 C
TRICHLOROETHYLENE (TRICHLOROETHENE)	79-01-6	5.0E+00 b	5.8E+01 C
TRICHLOROFLUOROMETHANE (F-11)	75-69-4	5.0E+00 a	2.3E+04 C
2,4,5-TRICHLOROPHENOL	95-95-4	*3 a	7.8E+03 C
2,4,6-TRICHLOROPHENOL	88-06-2	*3 a	5.8E+01 C
2,4,5-TRICHLOROPHENOXY ACETIC ACID (2,4,5-T)	93-76-5	1.0E+01 b	7.8E+02 C
1,1,2-TRICHLOROPROPANE	598-77-6	5.0E+00 a	3.9E+02 C
1,2,3-TRICHLOROPROPANE	96-18-4	5.0E+00 a	4.7E+02 C
1,2,3-TRICHLOROPROPENE	96-19-5	5.0E+00 a	3.9E+02 C
1,1,2-TRICHLORO-1,2,2-TRIFLUOROETHANE	76-13-1	5.0E+00 a	2.3E+05 C
0,0,0-TRIETHYL PHOSPHORDTHIDATE	126-68-1	5.0E+01 a	
TRIFLURALIN	1582-09-8	3.5E+01 a	8.3E+01 C
1,2,4-TRIMETHYLBENZENE	95-63-6	5.0E+00 a	
1,3,5-TRIMETHYLBENZENE	108-67-8	5.0E+00 a	
TRIMETHYL PHOSPHATE	512-56-1	5.0E+01 a	1.7E+01iC
2,4,6-TRIMETHYLPYRIDINE (2,4,6-COLLIDINE)	108-75-8	5.0E+01 d	
2,3,6-TRINETHYLPYRIDINE	1462-84-6	5.0E+01 d	
SYM-TRINITROBENZENE (1,3,5-TRINITROBENZENE)	99-35-4	5.0E+00 a	3.9E+00 C
2,4,6-TRINITROTOLUENE (TNT)	118-96-7	5.0E+00 a	3.9E+01 C
TRITHION (CARBOPHENOTHION)	786-19-6	5.0E+01 a	
TRIPHENYLPHOSPHATE	115-86-6	5.0E+01 d	
VANADIUM, TOTAL	*1	2.5E+02ie	5.5E+021C
IUM PENTOXIDE	1314-62-1	3.2E+02 e	7.0E+02.C

. . . . .

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media and media's leachate cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.

Page 12

8/26/97

. .

cannot adv	ersely impact_groundwater; see T	'AGM p. 13.	
SUBSTANCE	CASNUM	Groundwater R Action Level E (ug/L) F	Soil/ Sediment R Action Level E (mg/kg) F
VANADYL SULFATE	27774-13-6	7.0E+02 e	1.6E+03 C
VERNOLATE	1929-77-7	3.5E+01 e	7.8E+01 C
VINYL ACETATE	108-05-4	5.0E+01 a	7.8E+04 C
VINYL CHLORIDE (CHLOROETHENE)	75-01-4	2.0E+00 b	3.4E-01 C
WARFARIN	81-81-2	5.0E+01 a	2.3E+01 C
XYLENE, TOTAL (DIMETHYL BENZENE)	1330-20-7	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+05 C
M-XYLENE (3-DIMETHYL BENZENE)	108-38-3	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+05 C
O-XYLENE (2-DIMETHYL BENZENE)	95-47-6	5.0E+00 a	1.6E+05 C
p-XYLENE (4-DIMETHYL BENZENE)	106-42-3	5.0E+00 a	
ZINC, TOTAL	*1	3.0E+02 e	2.3E+04 C
ZINC CYANIDE	557-21-1	1.8E+03 e	3.9E+03 C
ZINC PHOSPHIDE	1314-84-7	1.1E+01 e	2.3E+C0 C
ZINEB	12122-67-7	1.8E+00 a	3.9E+03 C
ZIRAM .	137-30-4	4.2E+00 a	

Soil/Sediment "Contained-In" Criteria: cannot exceed ingestion action levels in media and media's leachate cannot adversely impact groundwater; see TAGM p. 13.

Page 13

#### Footnotes

- a Total concentration of iron and manganese should not exceed 500 ug/1.
- b Total concentration of these four trihalomethanes shall not exceed 100 ug/1.
- c All species in the groundwater and/or soil that contain this element are included in the total.
- d Guidance value for total chlorinated dibenzo-p-dioxins and chlorinated dibenzofurans is 0.0000002 µg/L equivalents of 2,3,7,8tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin (2,3,7,8-TCDD). The 2,3,7,8-TCDD equivalent for a congener is obtained by multipling the contentration of that congener by its toxicity equivalence factor (TEF) from the table below. The Guidance value for Class GA waters does not include the congener 2,3,7,8-TCDD.

A guidance value for an idividual congener value can be calculated by dividing 0.0000002  $\mu$ g/L by the TEF for that congener.

0.000035 µg/L applies only to 2,3,7,6-TCDD

Congener	
2,3,7,8-TETRACHLORODIBENZO-p-DIOXIN	1
Other tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxins	0.01
2,3,7,8-PENTACHLORODIBENZO-p-DIOXIN	0.5
Other pentachlorodibenzo-p-dioxins	C.005
2,3,7,8-HEXACHLORODIBENZO-p-DIOXINS	0.05
Other hexachlorodibenzo-p-dioxins	0.0005
2, 1, 7, 5-HEPTACHLORODIBENZO-p-DIOXIN	0.005
Other heptachlorodibenzo-p-dioxins	0.00005
OCTACHLORODIBENZO-p-DIOXIN	0.005
1,3,7,6-TETRACHLORODIBENZOFURAN	0.1
Other tetrachlorodibenzofurans	0.001
2,3,4,7,8-PENTACHLORODIBENZOFURAN	0.5
1, 2, 3, 7, 8-PENTACHLORODIBENZOFURAN	0.05
Other pentachlorodibenzofurans	0.005
2,3,7,8-HEXACHLORODIBENZOFURAN	0.1
Other hexachlorodibenzofurans	0.001
2,3,7,8-HEPTACHLORODIBENZOFURAN	0.005
Other heptachlorodibenzofurans	0.00005
OCTACHLORODIBENZOFURAN	0.005

- e This value has been adopted by the New York State and USEPA Region II RCRA programs. USEPA promulgated under TSCA a clean soil standard of one (1) part per million for PCBs.
- f All phenolic compounds (total phenols) shall not exceed 1 µg/L [NY TOGS (1.1.1)].
- g Since 6NYCRR a Part 703 GA Standard does not exist for this constituent, Guidance value from NY T.O.G.S. 1.1.1 was used.
- h Since 6NYCRR a Part 703 GA Standard and/or Guidance value does not exist for this constituent, a Health Based value from the EPA Health Effects Assessment Summary Tables was used.
- i The effective date for these EPA MCLs is January 31, 1994
- j Refer to footnotes in the NYSDEC Division of Water Technical and Operational Guidance Series (TOGS) 1.1.1.
- k This is EPA's recommendation based on the Uptake/Biokinetic (UBK) model in assessing total lead exposure and developing a soil lead cleanup level at CERCLA and RCRA sites.
- NA Not Available
- ND Not Detectable by tests or analytical determinations. The groundwater protection concentration should be written as non-detectable (ND) with a footnote specifying the method detection limit (MDL) for the most sensitive analytical technique (e.g., benzene ND by USEPA Method 602 or 8020 with an NDL = 0.2 ug/l).

#### References

6 NYCRR Part 703.5(a)(3) - September 15, 1991
10 NYCRR Part 5 - January 6, 1993
EPA MCL - January 31, 1994
NY TOGS (1.1.1) - October 1, 1993
EPA HEAST - August 1,1954

RD WORK PLAN Seneca Market Site

# **APPENDIX C**

SITE HEALTH AND SAFETY PLAN

were manufact on the second contract to many the



անու ու չպաշ պաշու ու հետ հետ անությունները։

0092-002-100

- ···

# SITE HEALTH AND SAFETY PLAN for BROWNFIELD CLEANUP PROGRAM REMEDIAL DESIGN

SENECA MARKET I SITE WATKINS GLEN, NY

5.00 **5.66** - 5.6

Revised June 2005

• •

0092-002-100

## ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

## Plan Reviewed by (initial):

Corporate Health and Safety Director:	Thomas H. Forbes, P.E.	
Project Manager:	Thomas H. Forbes, P.E.	
Designated Site Safety and Health Officer:	Bryan C. Hann	

## Acknowledgement:

I acknowledge that I have reviewed the information contained in this site-specific Health and Safety Plan, and understand the hazards associated with performance of the field activities described herein. I agree to comply with the requirements of this plan.

NAME (PRINT)	SIGNATURE	DATE
······		

. ....

-----



.....

ht/Benchmark [Chents/JGrog/Wattins Glen/HASP/Health and Safety Plandoe

....

0092-002-100

.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 General	1
1.2 Background	1
1.3 Known and Suspected Environmental Conditions	2
1.4 Parameters of Interest	
1.5 Overview of RD Activities	4
2.0 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE	6
2.1 Roles and Responsibilities	6
2.1.1 Corporate Health and Safety Director	6
2.1.2 Project Manager	6
2.1.3 Site Safety and Health Officer	7
2.1.4 Site Workers	
2.1.5 Other Site Personnel	
3.0 HAZARD EVALUATION	9
3.1 Chemical Hazards	9
3.2 Physical Hazards	
4.0 TRAINING	13
4.1 Site Workers	13
4.1.1 Initial and Refresher Training	
4.1.2 Site Training	14
4.2 Supervisor Training	15
4.3 Emergency Response Training	
4.4 Site Visitors	16
5.0 MEDICAL MONITORING	17
6.0 SAFE WORK PRACTICES	19
7 Ο ΒΕΡΩΝΙΑΙ ΒΡΟΤΕΛΤΙΝΕ ΕΛΙΠΡΜΕΝΙΤ	01
7.1 Equipment Solution	
7.1 Equipment Selection	
7.2 Frotection Ensembles	22
7.2.1 Level A/D Flotection Ensemble	22 73
7.2.2 Level D Protection Ensemble	25 23
7.2.5 Recommended Level of Protection for Site Tasks	25 24
· 2. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

-----

· · · · ·



· • • • •

. . .

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

8.0	EXPOSURE MONITORING	
8.1	General	
8.1	1.1 On-Site Work Zone Monitoring	
8.1	1.2 Off-Site Community Air Monitoring	25
8.2	Monitoring Action Levels	
8.2	2.1 On-Site Work Zone Action Levels	
8.2	2.2 Community Air Monitoring Action Levels	
9.0	SPILL RELEASE/RESPONSE	
9.1	Potential Spills and Available Controls	
9.2	Initial Spill Notification and Evaluation	
9.3	Spill Response	
9.4	Post-Spill Evaluation	
10.0	HEAT/COLD STRESS MONITORING	
10.1	Heat Stress Monitoring	
10.2	2 Cold Stress Monitoring	
11.0	WORK ZONES AND SITE CONTROL	41
12.0	DECONTAMINATION	43
12.1	Decontamination for Benchmark Employees	
12.2	2 Decontamination for Medical Emergencies	
12.3	B Decontamination of Field Equipment	
13.0	CONFINED SPACE ENTRY	45
14.0	FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION	
14.1	General Approach	
14.2	2 Equipment and Requirements	
14.3	B Flammable and Combustible Substances	
14.4	Hot Work	
15.0	EMERGENCY INFORMATION	
16.0	REFERENCES	



------

The second statement of the second statement



. .....

**1**1.1.1

----

---

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

## LIST OF TABLES

Table 1	Constituents of Potential Concern
Table 2	Toxicity Data for Constituents of Potential Concern
Table 3	Potential Routes of Exposure to Constituents of Potential Concern
Table 4	Required Levels of Protection for RD Tasks

## LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1Site Vicinity and Location MapFigure 2Site MapFigure 3Hospital Route Map

## **APPENDICES**

- Appendix A Emergency Response Plan
- Appendix B Hot Work Permit Form
- Appendix C NYSDOH Generic Community Air Monitoring Plan



## **1.0 INTRODUCTION**

#### 1.1 General

In accordance with OSHA requirements contained in 29 CFR 1910.120, this Health and Safety Plan (HASP) describes the specific health and safety practices and procedures to be employed by Benchmark Environmental Engineering & Science, PLLC (Benchmark) employees during Remedial Design (RD) activities on the Seneca Market 1 Site located in the Village of Watkins Glen, New York.. This HASP presents procedures for Benchmark employees who will be involved with RD field activities; it does not cover the activities of other contractors, subcontractors or other individuals on the site. These firms will be required to develop and enforce their own HASPs as discussed in Section 2.0. Benchmark accepts no responsibility for the health and safety of contractors, subcontractors or other personnel.

This HASP presents information on known site health and safety hazards using available historical information, and identifies the equipment, materials and procedures that will be used to eliminate or control these hazards. Environmental monitoring will be performed during the course of field activities to provide real-time data for on-going assessment of potential hazards.

## 1.2 Background

0092-002-100

Seneca Market I, LLC and Seneca Market II, LLC (hereafter referred to jointly as Seneca Market) own 0.29 and 0.2-acre parcels, respectively within the block bounded by Franklin, First, Decatur Streets, and the Finger Lakes Railway right-of-way in the Village of Watkins Glen, Schuyler County, New York (see Figures 1 and 2). Seneca Market has an option on a 1.76-acre parcel and 0.13-acre parcel within this same block. The approximately 0.29-acre parcel, located along on North Franklin Street, contains the Seneca Market building, a multipurpose shopping and office building located along the northern side of the property. The approximately 0.2-acre parcel contains the former Glen Vintage Auto Museum (presently unoccupied). The western portion of the 1.76-acre parcel contains a large block building that was formerly used as a bus garage and is currently leased to Seneca Hardwoods, a manufacturer of custom flooring. A building foundation, reputedly a remnant of a former Welch's Grape facility, also remains on the 1.76-acre parcel.



1

The 0.13-acre parcel contains a structure deemed the "former dry cleaning building." This is a two-story brick building that includes two (2) unoccupied single-story brick sheds to the east. A VFW building is located immediately south of the former dry cleaning building, but is outside of the 0.13-acre property limits. The former dry cleaning building is presently occupied by a real estate firm.

The parcels have a history of use that dates back to the 1860s. The Seneca Market building has formerly been used as a foundry; a flour and grist mill; and most recently retail shops on the first floor and professional office space on the second and third floors. A marble works building was formerly present just south of Seneca Market until it was destroyed in 1970. The former Auto Museum was previously used for miscellaneous storage, in particular auto parts. The dry cleaning building has mainly been used for retail businesses, a machine shop, and for dry cleaning operations.

Seneca Market intends to remediate the residual VOC and petroleum contamination and redevelop the 2.78-acre property under the New York State Brownfield Cleanup Program (BCP). Given the extensive nature of the investigations performed to date, Seneca Market has elected to enter the BCP at the remedial design stage. This Remedial Design (RD) Work Plan identifies the means by which remedial measures will be undertaken, including remedial measures to be employed, target site-specific cleanup levels, confirmatory sampling requirements, and post-remediation soil management practices.

## 1.3 Known and Suspected Environmental Conditions

A 1991 Environmental Assessment of the Site revealed that groundwater under a portion of the property (i.e., 20 Franklin Street at the corner of North Franklin and First) was contaminated with chlorinated organic compounds associated with the former dry cleaning operations. NYSDEC subsequently listed a 0.3-acre portion of the property as a Class 2 inactive hazardous waste site (i.e., "the North Franklin Street Site" - NYSDEC Registry No. 8-49-002). The inactive hazardous waste site encompasses the 0.14-acre parcel, including the former dry clearer building, and a portion of the 0.49-acre parcel. A Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study (RI/FS) performed and completed in 1993 by URS Consultants under a Standby Contract with the NYSDEC delineated the extent of soil and groundwater contamination on and adjacent to the Franklin Street site. URS subsequently designed remediation systems to treat soil and groundwater, pursuant to a Record of Decision (ROD) signed in 1994. The remedial measures included a soil vapor extraction



2

(SVE) system to treat shallow VOC-impacted soil, and a groundwater pump and treat system to extract and treat groundwater adjacent to the former dry cleaner. The systems were placed into operation in fall of 1996. Confirmatory soil samples collected during remediation indicated that SVE had effectively cleaned up the soil near the extraction wells, underneath the former auto museum, and to the rear of the former dry cleaning building. However, in the process of collecting the confirmatory soil samples, it was discovered that the soil contaminant concentrations in the immediate vicinity of the dry cleaning building were much higher and extended deeper into clay than previously thought. SVE did not clean up this area of highly contaminated soil to cleanup objectives despite subsequent modifications to and extended operation of the SVE system. Operation of the SVE system was suspended in March 1998 and operation of the groundwater treatment system was suspended at the end of April 1998, pending the results of further investigations.

In 1998/1999, URS performed additional soil investigations and cleanup technology feasibility studies to evaluate deeper soil contamination. It was concluded that chlorinated organic compounds remained on-site in a small area directly adjacent to and outside the former dry cleaning building, as well as beneath the dry cleaner building at depths greater than 16 feet. A chemical oxidation pilot study conducted from March through May 2000 significantly reduced the mass of chlorinated organic contamination remain in soils. Despite the reduction, localized areas of residual chlorinated organic contamination remain in soils and groundwater adjacent to and beneath the former dry cleaner building. In March 2004, an active venting system was installed within the former dry cleaner building to control the potential indoor migration of vapors from the residual contamination. In addition, deed restrictions were placed on the property to prevent usage of groundwater and contact with residual soil contamination.

At the direction of NYSDEC, URS collected air samples within the Seneca Market Building and beneath the concrete floor slab in 2005. The air samples collected beneath the concrete slab contained elevated levels of chlorinated organic compounds. As a result, NYSDEC has contracted URS to design and install an active subslab venting system in the Seneca Market Building.

A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was performed in November 1991 for the parcels on the eastern portion of the Site. The ESA identified several potential environmental conditions including possible underground storage tanks, drums, an inoperable piston arrangement for a hydraulic lift, and oil spills near the corner of First and



0092-002-100

Decatur Streets. Petroleum hydrocarbons, lower levels of chlorinated hydrocarbons, and several elevated inorganic compounds related to the above described conditions were detected in the soil and groundwater during the RI/FS. Two areas on the larger parcel that contained soil heavily contaminated with BTEX were excavated and bioremediated off-site in the late 1990s. As such, residual BTEX contamination in soil and groundwater may exist proximate to these historic source areas.

## **1.4** Parameters of Interest

Based on the investigative findings, constituents of potential concern (COPCs) at the site include:

- Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) VOCs present at elevated concentrations in site soils and groundwater include chlorinated and petroleum hydrocarbons. The chlorinated organic contaminants include 1,2-dichloroethene (1,2-DCE), tetrachloroethene (PCE), trichloroethene (TCE), and vinyl chloride (VC). The former source of these chlorinated VOCs was disposal of dry cleaning solvents used by the former dry cleaning operation. The petroleum hydrocarbons include benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and xylene (i.e., BTEX). The former source of petroleum contamination was underground storage tanks and reported oil spills. Secondary sources of chlorinated and petroleum hydrocarbons appear to have migrated on-site from apparent off-site sources.
- Inorganic Compounds Inorganic COPCs potentially present at elevated concentrations in site soils include arsenic, cadmium, chromium, lead, and mercury. Past site activities do not appear to have significantly affected metals concentrations in soils.

## 1.5 Overview of RD Activities

0092-002-105

Benchmark personnel will be on-site to observe and perform RD activities. The field activities to be completed as part of the RD are described below. Planned RD activities are more fully described in the RD Work Plan for the site (Reference 1).

- **1. Soil Excavation:** Benchmark will direct soil excavation activities and coordinate disposal of excavated soil.
- 2. Confirmatory Soil Sampling: Benchmark will collect confirmatory soil samples from the side-walls and bottom of the excavations using a backhoe.



**3. Groundwater Management:** Benchmark will direct groundwater collection during soil excavation activities and coordinate disposal of the collected groundwater.

- -



----

• •

## 2.0 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

This chapter of the HASP describes the lines of authority, responsibility and communication as they pertain to health and safety functions at the site. The purpose of this chapter is to identify the personnel who impact the development and implementation of the HASP and to describe their roles and responsibilities. This chapter also identifies other contractors and subcontractors involved in work operations, and establishes the lines of communications among them for health and safety matters. The organizational structure described in this chapter is consistent with the requirements of 29 CFR 1910.120(b)(2). This section will be reviewed by the Project Manager and updated as necessary to reflect the current organizational structure at this site.

## 2.1 Roles and Responsibilities

All Benchmark personnel on the site must comply with the minimum requirements of this HASP. The specific responsibilities and authority of management, safety and health, and other personnel on this site are detailed in the following paragraphs.

## 2.1.1 Corporate Health and Safety Director

The Benchmark Corporate Health and Safety Director is *Mr. Thomas H. Forbes, P.E.* The Corporate Health and Safety Director is responsible for developing and implementing the Health and Safety program and policies for Benchmark Environmental Engineering & Science, PLLC and consulting with corporate management to ensure adequate resources are available to properly implement these programs and policies. The Corporate Health and Safety Director coordinates Benchmark's Health and Safety training and medical monitoring programs and assists project management and field staff in developing site-specific health and safety plans.

## 2.1.2 Project Manager

The Project Manager for this site is *Mr. Thomas H. Forbes, P.E.* The Project Manager has the responsibility and authority to direct all Benchmark work operations at the site. The Project Manager coordinates safety and health functions with the Site Safety and Health Officer, and bears ultimate responsibility for proper implementation of this HASP. He may delegate authority to expedite and facilitate any application of the program,

0092-032-100

-- . .

. . . .

6

including modifications to the overall project approach as necessary to circumvent unsafe work conditions. Specific duties of the Project Manager include:

- Preparing and coordinating the site work plan.
- Providing Benchmark workers with work assignments and overseeing their performance.
- Coordinating health and safety efforts with the Site Safety and Health Officer (SSHO).
- Reviewing the emergency response coordination plan to assure its effectiveness.
- Serving as the primary liaison with site contractors and the property owner.

## 2.1.3 Site Safety and Health Officer

The Site Safety and Health Officer (SSHO) for this site is *Mr. Bryan C. Hann*. The qualified alternate SSHO is *Mr. Richard L. Dubisz*. The SSHO reports to the Project Manager. The SSHO is on-site or readily accessible to the site during all work operations and has the authority to halt site work if unsafe conditions are detected. The specific responsibilities of the SSHO are:

- Managing the safety and health functions for Benchmark personnel on the site.
- Serving as the point of contact for safety and health matters.
- Ensuring that Benchmark field personnel working on the site have received proper training (per 29 CFR Part 1910.120(e)), that they have obtained medical clearance to wear respiratory protection (per 29 CFR Part 1910.134), and that they are properly trained in the selection, use and maintenance of personal protective equipment, including qualitative respirator fit testing.
- Performing or overseeing site monitoring as required by the HASP.
- Assisting in the preparation and review of the HASP

0092-002-00

Maintaining site-specific safety and health records as described in this HASP

7



 Coordinating with the Project Manager, Site Workers, and Contractor's SSHO as necessary for safety and health efforts.

## 2.1.4 Site Workers

Site workers are responsible for: complying with this HASP or a more stringent HASP, if appropriate (i.e., Contractor and Subcontractor's HASP); using proper PPE; reporting unsafe acts and conditions to the SSHO; and following the safety and health instructions of the Project Manager and SSHO.

#### 2.1.5 Other Site Personnel

Other site personnel with health and safety responsibilities include the Drilling and Test Pit Contractors, who will be responsible for developing, implementing and enforcing a Health and Safety Plan equally stringent or more stringent than Benchmark's HASP. Benchmark assumes no responsibility for the health and safety of anyone outside its direct employ. Each Contractor's HASP shall cover all non-Benchmark site personnel. Each Contractor shall assign a SSHO who will coordinate with Benchmark's SSHO as necessary to ensure effective lines of communication and consistency between contingency plans.

In addition to Benchmark and Contractor personnel, other individuals who may have responsibilities in the work zone include subcontractors and governmental agencies performing site inspection work (e.g., the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation). The Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that these individuals have received OSHA-required training (29 CFR 1910.120(e)), including initial, refresher and site-specific training, and shall be responsible for the safety and health of these individuals while they are on-site.





## 3.0 HAZARD EVALUATION

Due to the presence of certain contaminants at the site, the possibility exists that workers will be exposed to hazardous substances during field activities. The principal points of exposure would be through direct contact with and incidental ingestion of fill/soils, and through the inhalation of contaminated particles or vapors. Other points of exposure may include direct contact with groundwater. In addition, the use of drilling and/or medium to large-sized construction equipment (e.g., excavator) will also present conditions for potential physical injury to workers. Further, since work will be performed outdoors, the potential exists for heat/cold stress to impact workers, especially those wearing protective equipment and clothing. Adherence to the medical evaluations, worker training relative to chemical hazards, safe work practices, proper personal protection, environmental monitoring, establishment work zones and site control, appropriate decontamination procedures and contingency planning outlined herein will reduce the potential for chemical exposures and physical injuries.

## 3.1 Chemical Hazards

As discussed in Section 1.3, historic activities related to former operations and facilities at the site have resulted in elevated concentrations of chlorinated organics, petroleum products, and inorganic compounds in site soils and to a lesser extent in site groundwater. Table 1 identifies concentration ranges for constituents of potential concern (COPCs) detected in site soils during previous investigations at the site as identified in Section 1.4 of this HASP. Table 2 lists exposure limits for airborne concentrations of the COPCs identified in Section 1.4 of this HASP. Brief descriptions of the toxicology of the prevalent COPCs and related health and safety guidance and criteria are provided below.

- Arsenic (CAS #7440-38-2) is a naturally occurring element and is usually found combined with one or more elements, such as oxygen or sulfur. Inhalation is a more important exposure route than ingestion. First phase exposure symptoms include nausea, vomiting, diarrhea and pain in the stomach. Prolonged contact is corrosive to the skin and mucus membranes. Arsenic is considered a Group A human carcinogen by the USEPA. Exposure via inhalation is associated with an increased risk of lung cancer. Exposure via the oral route is associated with an increased risk of skin cancer.
- Benzene (CAS #71-43-2) poisoning occurs most commonly through inhalation



0092-002--00

.....

of the vapor, however, benzene can also penetrate the skin and poison in that way. Locally, benzene has a comparatively strong irritating effect, producing erythema and burning and, in more severe cases, edema and blistering. Exposure to high concentrations of the vapor (i.e., 3,000 ppm or higher) may result in acute poisoning characterized by the narcotic action of benzene on the central nervous system. In acute poisoning, symptoms include confusion, dizziness, tightening of the leg muscles, and pressure over the forehead. Chronic exposure to benzene (i.e., long-term exposure to concentrations of 100 ppm or less) may lead to damage of the blood-forming system. Benzene is very flammable when exposed to heat or flame and can react vigorously with oxidizing materials.

- Cadmium (CAS #7440-43-9) is a natural element and is usually combined with one or more elements, such as oxygen, chloride or sulfur. Breathing high levels of cadmium severely damages the lungs and can cause death. Ingestion of high levels of cadmium severely irritates the stomach, leading to vomiting and diarrhea. Long term exposure to lower levels of cadmium leads to a buildup of this substance in the kidneys and possible kidney disease. Other potential long term effects are lung damage and fragile bones. Cadmium is suspected to be a human carcinogen.
- Chromium (CAS #7440-47-3) is used in the production of stainless steel, chrome plated metals, and batteries. Two forms of chromium, hexavalent (CR+6) and trivalent (CR+3) are toxic. Hexavalent chromium is an irritant and corrosive to the skin and mucus membranes. Chromium is a potential occupational carcinogen. Acute exposures to dust may cause coughing, wheezing, headaches, pain and fever.
- **1,2-Dichloroethene (CAS #540-59-0)** is a solvent for phenols it is also as a additive to dye and lacquer solutions. Symptoms of exposure to this compound may include irritation of the skin, eyes, mucous membranes and upper respiratory tract. May cause dizziness and nausea. This compound is flammable and will react with alkalis.
- Ethylbenzene (CAS #100-41-4) is a component of automobile gasoline. Overexposure may cause kidney, skin liver and/or respiratory disease. Signs of exposure may include dermatitis, irritation of the eyes and mucus membranes, headache. Narcosis and coma may result in more severe cases.
- Lead (CAS #7439-92-1) can affect almost every organ and system in our bodies. The most sensitive is the central nervous system, particularly in children. Lead also damages kidneys and the immune system. The effects are the same whether it is breathed or swallowed. Lead may decrease reaction time, cause weakness in

0092-002-1-H)



fingers, wrists or ankles and possibly affect memory. Lead may cause anemia.

- Mercury (CAS #7439-97-6) is used in industrial applications for the production of caustic and chlorine, and in electrical control equipment and apparatus. Over-exposure to mercury may cause coughing, chest pains, bronchitis, pneumonia, indecision, headaches, fatigue and salivation. Mercury is a skin and eye irritant.
- Tetrachloroethene (CAS #127-18-4) is used a solvent for greases, waxes and rubbers. It is harmful by ingestion inhalation and skin absorption. Exposure can cause dermatitis, dizziness, nausea, liver and kidney damage. This compound is a suspected carcinogen.
- Toluene (CAS #108-88-3) is a common component of paint thinners and automobile fuel. Acute exposure predominantly results in central nervous system depression. Symptoms include headache, dizziness, fatigue, muscular weakness, drowsiness and coordination loss. Repeated exposures may cause removal of lipids from the skin, resulting in dry, fissured dermatitis.
- Trichloroethene (CAS #79-01-6) was used in dry cleaning operations. It is toxic by inhalation and skin absorption. It is an irritant to the skin, eyes and mucous membranes. Symptoms of exposure may include headache, dizziness and nausea. Exposure may cause liver and kidney damage. TCE is a suspected human carcinogen.
- Vinyl Chloride (CAS #75-01-4) is a synthetic chlorinated organic chemical used in the manufacture of polyvinyl chloride (PVC). Its presence in site-specific circumstances may be attributable to breakdown of the halogenated aliphatic hydrocarbons TCE and 1,2-trans-dichloroethene to vinyl chloride, In high concentrations, vinyl chloride may cause reversible narcosis similar to alcohol intoxication. Skin contact with undiluted vinyl chloride results in frostbite by rapid evaporation and subsequent freezing. It is unlikely that these acute effects would be observed at the concentrations and site-specific exposure scenarios expected. Chronic exposure to vinyl chloride through inhalation has been associated with liver toxicity, fatty deposition in particular. Vinyl chloride is considered to be a suspect carcinogen.
- Xylenes (o, m, and p) (CAS #95-47-6, 108-38-3, and 106-42-3) are colorless, flammable liquids present in paint thinners and fuels. Acute exposure may cause central nervous system depression, resulting in headache, dizziness, fatigue, muscular weakness, drowsiness, and coordination loss. Repeated exposures may also cause removal of lipids from the skin, producing dry, fissured dermatitis. Exposure of high concentrations of vapor may cause eye irritation and damage, as



BENCHMARK

Environmental Engineering & Science, PLLC
well as irritation of the mucus membranes.

With respect to the anticipated RD activities discussed in Section 1.4, possible routes of exposure to the above-mentioned contaminants are presented in Table 3. The use of proper respiratory equipment, as outlined in Section 7.0 of this HASP, will minimize the potential for exposure to airborne contamination. Exposure to contaminants through dermal and other routes will also be minimized through the use of protective clothing (Section 7.0), safe work practices (Section 6.0), and proper decontamination procedures (Section 12.0).

#### 3.2 Physical Hazards

RD field activities at the site may present the following physical hazards:

- The potential for physical injury during heavy construction equipment use, such as backhoes and excavators.
- The potential for heat/cold stress to employees during the summer/winter months (see Section 10.0).
- The potential for slip and fall injuries due to rough, uneven terrain and/or open excavations.

These hazards represent only some of the possible means of injury that may be present during RD activities at the site. Since it is impossible to list all potential sources of injury, it shall be the responsibility of each individual to exercise proper care and caution during all phases of the work.



## 4.0 TRAINING

### 4.1 Site Workers

All personnel performing RD activities at the site (such as, but not limited to, equipment operators, general laborers, and drillers) who may be exposed to hazardous substances, health hazards, or safety hazards, including their supervisors/managers responsible for the site, shall receive training in accordance with 29 CFR 1910.120(e) before they are permitted to engage in operations in the exclusion zone or contaminant reduction zone. This training includes an initial 40-hour Hazardous Waste Site Worker Protection Course, an 8-hour Annual Refresher Course subsequent to the initial 40-hour training, and 3 days of actual field experience under the direct supervision of a trained, experienced supervisor. Additional site-specific training shall also be provided by the SSHO prior to the start of field activities. A description of topics to be covered by this training is provided below.

## 4.1.1 Initial and Refresher Training

Initial and refresher training is conducted by a qualified instructor as specified under OSHA 29 CFR 1910.120(e)(5), and is specifically designed to meet the requirements of OSHA 29 CFR 1910.120(e)(3) and 1910.120(e)(8). The training covers, as a minimum, the following topics:

- OSHA HAZWOPER regulations.
- Site safety and hazard recognition, including chemical and physical hazards.
- Medical monitoring requirements.
- Air monitoring, permissible exposure limits, and respiratory protection level classifications.
- Appropriate use of personal protective equipment (PPE), including chemical compatibility and respiratory equipment selection and use.
- Work practices to minimize risk.
- Work zones and site control.

0092-002-1-0



- Safe use of engineering controls and equipment.
- Decontamination procedures.
- Emergency response and escape.
- Confined space entry procedures.
- Heat and cold stress monitoring.
- Elements of a Health and Safety Plan.
- Spill containment.

Initial training also incorporates workshops for PPE and respiratory equipment use (Levels A, B and C), and respirator fit testing. Records and certification received from the course instructor documenting each employee's successful completion of the training identified above are maintained on file at Benchmark's Buffalo, NY office. Contractors and Subcontractors are required to provide similar documentation of training for all their personnel who will be involved in on-site work activities.

Any employee who has not been certified as having received health and safety training in conformance with 29 CFR 1910.120(e) is prohibited from working in the exclusion and contamination reduction zones or engaging in any on-site work activities that may involve exposure to hazardous substances or wastes.

#### 4.1.2 Site Training

Site workers are given a copy of the HASP and provided a site-specific briefing prior to the commencement of work to ensure that employees are familiar with the HASP and the information and requirements it contains. The site briefing shall be provided by the SSHO prior to initiating field activities and shall include:

- Names of personnel and alternates responsible for site safety and health
- Safety, health and other hazards present on the site
- The site lay-out including work zones and places of refuge



- The emergency communications system and emergency evacuation procedures.
- Use of PPE.
- Work practices by which the employee can minimize risks from hazards.
- Safe use of engineering controls and equipment on the Site.
- Medical surveillance, including recognition of symptoms and signs of overexposure as described in Chapter 5 of this HASP.
- Decontamination procedures as detailed in Chapter 12 of this HASP.
- The emergency response plan as detailed in Chapter 15 of this HASP.
- Confined space entry procedures, if required, as detailed in Chapter 13 of this HASP.
- The spill containment program as detailed in Chapter 9 of this HASP.
- Site control as detailed in Chapter 11 of this HASP

Supplemental health and safety briefings will also be conducted by the SSHO on an as-needed basis during the course of the work. Supplemental briefings are provided as necessary to notify employees of any changes to this HASP. Conditions for which the SSHO may schedule additional briefings include, but are not limited to: a change in site conditions (i.e., based on monitoring results); changes in the work schedule/plan; newly discovered hazards; and safety incidents occurring during site work.

#### 4.2 Supervisor Training

On-site safety and health personnel who are directly responsible for or supervise the safety and health of workers engaged in hazardous waste operations (i.e., SSHO) shall receive, in addition to the appropriate level of worker training described in Section 4.1, an additional 8 hours of specialized supervisory training, in compliance with 29 CFR 1910.120(e)(4).



## 4.3 Emergency Response Training

Emergency response training is addressed in Appendix A of this HASP, Emergency Response Plan.

## 4.4 Site Visitors

Each Contractor's SSHO will provide a site-specific briefing to all site visitors and other non-Benchmark personnel who enter the site beyond the site entry point. The sitespecific briefing will provide information about site hazards; the site layout including work zones and places of refuge; the emergency communications system and emergency evacuation procedures; and other pertinent safety and health requirements as appropriate.

Site visitors will not be permitted to enter the exclusion zone or contaminant reduction zones unless they have received the level of training required for site workers as described in Section 4.1.



-10. 8



# 5.0 MEDICAL MONITORING

Medical monitoring examinations are provided to Benchmark employees as stipulated under 29 CFR Part 1910.120(f). These exams include initial employment, annual, and employment termination physicals for employees involved in hazardous waste site field operations. Post-exposure examinations are also provided for employees who may have been injured, received a health impairment, or developed signs or symptoms of over-exposure to hazardous substances or were accidentally exposed to substances at concentrations above the permissible exposure limits without the necessary PPE. Such exams are performed as soon as possible following development of symptoms or the known exposure event.

Medical evaluations are performed by ADP Screening & Selection Services, an occupational health care provider under contract with Benchmark. ADP's local facility is Health Works WNY, Seneca Square Plaza, 1900 Ridge Road, West Seneca, New York 14224. The facility can be reached at (716) 823-5050 to schedule routine appointments or post-exposure examinations.

Medical evaluations are conducted according to the Benchmark Medical Monitoring Program and include an evaluation of the workers' ability to use respiratory protective equipment. The examinations include:

- Occupational/medical history review.
- Physical exam, including vital sign measurement.
- Spirometry testing.
- Eyesight testing.

0092-002-100

----

- Audio testing (minimum baseline and exit, annual for employees routinely exposed to greater than 85db).
- EKG (for employees >40 yrs age or as medical conditions dictate).
- Chest X-ray (baseline and exit, and every 5 years).
- Blood biochemistry (including blood count, white cell differential count, serum multiplastic screening).
- Medical certification of physical requirements (i.e., sight, musculoskeletal,

BENCHMARK ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING & SCIENCE, PLLC

. . . . . . .

cardiovascular) for safe job performance and to wear respiratory protection equipment.

The purpose of the medical evaluation is to determine an employee's fitness for duty on hazardous waste sites and to establish baseline medical data.

In conformance with OSHA regulations, Benchmark will maintain and preserve medical records for a period of 30 years following termination of employment. Employees are provided a copy of the physician's post-exam report, and have access to their medical records and analyses.

0092-002-1-0



# 6.0 SAFE WORK PRACTICES

All Benchmark employees shall conform to the following safe work practices during all on-site work activities conducted within the exclusion and contamination reduction zones:

- Eating, drinking, chewing gum or tobacco, smoking, or any practice that increases the probability of hand-to-mouth contact is strictly prohibited.
- The hands and face must be thoroughly washed upon leaving the work area and prior to engaging in any activity indicated above.
- Respiratory protective equipment and clothing must be worn by all personnel entering the site as required by the HASP or as modified by the site safety officer. Excessive facial hair (i.e., beards, long mustaches or sideburns) that interferes with the satisfactory respirator-to-face seal is prohibited.
- Contact with surfaces/materials either suspected or known to be contaminated will be avoided to minimize the potential for transfer to personnel, cross contamination and need for decontamination.
- Medicine and alcohol can synergize the effects of exposure to toxic chemicals. Due to possible contraindications, use of prescribed drugs should be reviewed with the Benchmark occupational physician. Alcoholic beverage and illegal drug intake are strictly forbidden during the workday.
- All personnel shall be familiar with standard operating safety procedures and additional instructions contained in this Health and Safety Plan.
- On-site personnel shall use the "buddy" system. No one may work alone (i.e., out of earshot or visual contact with other workers) in the exclusion zone.
- Personnel and equipment in the contaminated area shall be minimized, consistent with effective site operations.
- All employees have the obligation to immediately report and if possible, correct unsafe work conditions.
- Use of contact lenses on-site will not be permitted. Spectacle kits for insertion into full-face respirators will be provided for Benchmark employees, as requested and required.



The recommended specific safety practices for working around the Contractor's equipment (e.g., backhoes, bulldozers, excavators, drill rigs etc.) are as follows:

- Although the Contractor and subcontractors are responsible for their equipment and safe operation of the site, Benchmark personnel are also responsible for their own safety.
- Subsurface work will not be initiated without first clearing underground utility services.
- Heavy equipment should not be operated within 20 feet of overhead wires. This distance may be increased if windy conditions are anticipated or if lines carry high voltage. The site should also be sufficiently clear to ensure the project staff can move around the heavy machinery safely.
- Care should be taken to avoid overhead wires when moving heavy equipment from location to location.
- Hard hats, safety boots and safety glasses should be worn at all times in the vicinity of heavy equipment. Hearing protection is also recommended.
- The work site should be kept neat. This will prevent personnel from tripping and will allow for fast emergency exit from the site.
- Proper lighting must be provided when working at night.
- Construction activities should be discontinued during an electrical storm or severe weather conditions.
- The presence of combustible gases should be checked before igniting any open flame.
- Personnel shall stand upwind of any construction operation when not immediately involved in sampling/logging/observing activities.
- Personnel will not approach the edge of an unsecured trench/excavation closer than 2 feet.

BENCHMARK ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 8 SCIENCE FLLC

# 7.0 PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT

## 7.1 Equipment Selection

0092-002-1-0

N Bernis

.....

Personal protective equipment (PPE) will be donned when work activities may result in exposure to physical or chemical hazards beyond acceptable limits, and when such exposure can be mitigated through appropriate PPE. The selection of PPE will be based on an evaluation of the performance characteristics of the PPE relative to the requirements and limitations of the site, the task-specific conditions and duration, and the hazards and potential hazards identified at the site.

Equipment designed to protect the body against contact with known or suspect chemical hazards are grouped into four categories according to the degree of protection afforded. These categories, designated A through D consistent with United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) Level of Protection designation, are:

- Level A: Should be selected when the highest level of respiratory, skin and eye protection is needed.
- Level B: Should be selected when the highest level of respiratory protection is needed, but a lesser level of skin protection is required. Level B protection is the minimum level recommended on initial site entries until the hazards have been further defined by on-site studies. Level B (or Level A) is also necessary for oxygen-deficient atmospheres.
- Level C: Should be selected when the types of airborne substances are known, the concentrations have been measured and the criteria for using air-purifying respirators are met. In atmospheres where no airborne contaminants are present, Level C provides dermal protection only.
- Level D: Should not be worn on any site with elevated respiratory or skin hazards. This is generally a work uniform providing minimal protection.

OSHA requires the use of certain PPE under conditions where an immediate danger to life and health (IDLH) may be present. Specifically, OSHA 29 CFR 1910.120(g)(3)(iii) requires use of a positive pressure self-contained breathing apparatus, or positive pressure air-line respirator equipped with an escape air supply when chemical exposure levels present a substantial possibility of immediate serious injury, illness or death, or impair the ability to escape. Similarly, OSHA 29 CFR 1910.120(g)(3)(iv) requires donning totally encapsulating



chemical protective suits (with a protection level equivalent to Level A protection) in conditions where skin absorption of a hazardous substance may result in a substantial possibility of immediate serious illness, injury or death, or impair the ability to escape.

In situations where the types of chemicals, concentrations, and possibilities of contact are unknown, the appropriate level of protection must be selected based on professional experience and judgment until the hazards can be further characterized. The individual components of clothing and equipment must be assembled into a full protective ensemble to protect the worker from site-specific hazards, while at the same time minimizing hazards and drawbacks of the personal protective gear itself. Ensemble components are detailed below for levels A/B, C, and D protection.

### 7.2 **Protection Ensembles**

### 7.2.1 Level A/B Protection Ensemble

Level A/B ensembles include similar respiratory protection; however, Level A provides a higher degree of dermal protection than Level B. Use of Level A over Level B is determined by: comparing the concentrations of identified substances in the air with skin toxicity data, and assessing the effect of the substance (by its measured air concentrations or splash potential) on the small area of the head and neck unprotected by Level B clothing.

The recommended PPE for level A/B is:

- Pressure-demand, full-face piece self-contained breathing apparatus (MSHA/-NIOSH approved) or pressure-demand supplied-air respirator with escape selfcontained breathing apparatus (SCBA).
- Chemical-resistant clothing. For Level A, clothing consists of totallyencapsulating chemical resistant suit. Level B incorporates hooded one-or twopiece chemical splash suit.
- Inner and outer chemical resistant gloves.
- Chemical-resistant safety boots/shoes.
- Hardhat.

0092-092-100

## 7.2.2 Level C Protection Ensemble

Level C protection is distinguished from Level B by the equipment used to protect the respiratory system, assuming the same type of chemical-resistant clothing is used. The main selection criterion for Level C is that conditions permit wearing an air-purifying device. The device (when required) must be an air-purifying respirator (MSHA/NIOSH approved) equipped with filter cartridges. Cartridges must be able to remove the substances encountered. Respiratory protection will be used only with proper fitting, training and the approval of a qualified individual. In addition, an air-purifying respirator can be used only if: oxygen content of the atmosphere is at least 19.5% in volume; substances are identified and concentrations measured; substances have adequate warning properties; the individual passes a qualitative fit-test for the mask; and an appropriate cartridge/canister is used, and its service limit concentration is not exceeded.

Recommended PPE for Level C conditions includes:

- Full-face piece, air-purifying respirator equipped with MSHA and NIOSH approved organic vapor/acid gas/dust/mist combination cartridges or as designated by the SSHO.
- Chemical-resistant clothing (hooded, one or two-piece chemical splash suit or disposable chemical-resistant one-piece suit).
- Inner and outer chemical-resistant gloves.
- Chemical-resistant safety boots/shoes.
- Hardhat.

An air-monitoring program is part of all response operations when atmospheric contamination is known or suspected. It is particularly important that the air be monitored thoroughly when personnel are wearing air-purifying respirators. Continual surveillance using direct-reading instruments is needed to detect any changes in air quality necessitating a higher level of respiratory protection.

## 7.2.3 Level D Protection Ensemble

As indicated above, Level D protection is primarily a work uniform. It can be worn in areas where only boots can be contaminated, where there are no inhalable toxic substances



----



and where the atmospheric contains at least 19.5% oxygen.

Recommended PPE for Level D includes:

- Coveralls.
- Safety boots/shoes.
- Safety glasses or chemical splash goggles.
- Hardhat.
- Optional gloves; escape mask; face shield.

## 7.2.4 Recommended Level of Protection for Site Tasks

Based upon current information regarding both the contaminants suspected to be present at the site and the various tasks that are included in the remedial activities, the minimum required Levels of Protection for these tasks shall be as identified in Table 4.



-----



## 8.0 EXPOSURE MONITORING

#### 8.1 General

Based on the results of historic sample analysis and the nature of the proposed work activities at the site, the possibility exists that organic vapors and/or particulates may be released to the air during intrusive construction activities. Ambient breathing zone concentrations may at times, exceed the permissible exposure limits (PELs) established by OSHA for the individual compounds (see Table 2), in which case respiratory protection will be required. Respiratory and dermal protection may be modified (upgraded or downgraded) by the SSHO based upon real-time field monitoring data.

#### 8.1.1 On-Site Work Zone Monitoring

Benchmark personnel will conduct routine, real-time air monitoring during all intrusive construction phases such as excavation, backfilling, drilling, etc. The work area will be monitored at regular intervals using a photo-ionization detector (PID), combustible gas meter and a particulate meter. Observed values will be recorded and maintained as part of the permanent field record.

Additional air monitoring measurements may be made by Benchmark personnel to verify field conditions during subcontractor oversight activities. Monitoring instruments will be protected from surface contamination during use. Additional monitoring instruments may be added if the situations or conditions change. Monitoring instruments will be calibrated in accordance with manufacturer's instructions before use.

#### 8.1.2 Off-Site Community Air Monitoring

In addition to on-site monitoring within the work zone(s), monitoring at the downwind portion of the site perimeter will be conducted. This will provide a real-time method for determination of substantial vapor and/or particulate releases to the surrounding community as a result of ground intrusive work.

Ground intrusive activities are defined by NYSDOH Appendix 1A Generic Community Air Monitoring Plan (Reference 2) and attached as Appendix C. Ground intrusive activities include soil/waste excavation and handling; test pitting or trenching; and the installation of soil borings or monitoring wells. Non-intrusive activities include the



collection of soil, sediment, and groundwater samples. Continuous monitoring is required for ground intrusive activities and periodic monitoring is required for non-intrusive activities. Periodic monitoring consists of taking a reading upon arrival at a sample location, monitoring while opening a well cap or overturning soil; monitoring while bailing a well; and taking a reading prior to leaving a sampling location. This may be upgraded to continuous if the sampling location is in close proximity to individuals not involved in the site activity (i.e., on a curb of a busy street). The action levels below will be used during periodic monitoring.

## 8.2 Monitoring Action Levels

0092-002-1-0

.

### 8.2.1 On-Site Work Zone Action Levels

The PID, or other appropriate instrument(s), will be used by Benchmark personnel to monitor organic vapor concentrations as specified in this HASP. Combustible gas will be monitored with the "combustible gas" option on the combustible gas meter or other appropriate instrument(s). In addition, fugitive dust/particulate concentrations will be monitored during major soil intrusion (e.g., soil excavation) using a real-time particulate monitor as specified in this plan. In the absence of such monitoring, appropriate respiratory protection for particulates shall be donned. Sustained readings obtained in the breathing zone may be interpreted (with regard to other site conditions) as follows for Benchmark personnel:

- Total atmospheric concentrations of unidentified vapors or gases ranging from 0 to 1 ppm above background on the PID) - Continue operations under Level D (see Appendix A).
- Total atmospheric concentrations of unidentified vapors or gases yielding sustained readings from >1 ppm to 5 ppm above background on the PID (vapors not suspected of containing high levels of chemicals toxic to the skin) - Continue operations under Level C (see Appendix A).
- Total atmospheric concentrations of unidentified vapors or gases yielding sustained readings of >5 ppm to 50 ppm above background on the PID -Continue operations under Level B (see Attachment 1), re-evaluate and alter (if possible) construction methods to achieve lower vapor concentrations.
- Total atmospheric concentrations of unidentified vapors or gases above 50 ppm



on the PID - Discontinue operations and exit the work zone immediately.

The explosimeter will be used to monitor levels of both combustible gases and oxygen during RD activities. Action levels based on the instrument readings shall be as follows:

- Less than 10% LEL Continue engineering operations with caution.
- 10-25% LEL Continuous monitoring with extreme caution, determine source/cause of elevated reading.
- Greater than 25% LEL Explosion hazard, evaluate source and leave the Work Zone.
- 19.5% 21% oxygen Proceed with extreme caution; attempt to determine potential source of oxygen displacement.
- Less than 19.5% oxygen Leave work zone immediately.
- 21-25% oxygen Continue engineering operations with caution.
- Greater than 25% oxygen Fire hazard potential, leave Work Zone immediately.

The particulate monitor will be used to monitor respirable dust concentrations during all intrusive activities and during handling of site soil/fill. Action levels based on the instrument readings shall be as follows:

- Less than 50 mg/m<sup>3</sup> Continue field operations.
- 50-150 mg/m<sup>3</sup> Don dust/particulate mask or equivalent
- Greater than 150 mg/m<sup>3</sup> Don dust/particulate mask or equivalent. Initiate engineering controls to reduce respirable dust concentration (e.g., wetting of excavated soils or tools at discretion of SHSO).

Readings with the organic vapor analyzer, combustible gas meter, and particulate monitor will be recorded and documented on the appropriate Project Field Forms. All



instruments will be calibrated before use on a daily basis and the procedure will be documented on the appropriate Project Field Forms.

### 8.2.2 Community Air Monitoring Action Levels

In addition to the action levels prescribed in Section 8.2.1 for Benchmark personnel on-site, the following criteria shall also be adhered to for the protection of downwind receptors consistent with NYSDOH requirements (Appendix C):

## O ORGANIC VAPOR PERIMETER MONITORING:

- If the <u>sustained</u> ambient air concentration of organic vapors at the downwind perimeter of the exclusion zone <u>exceeds 5 ppm</u> above background, work activities will be halted and monitoring continued. If the <u>sustained</u> organic vapor decreases below 5 ppm over background, work activities can resume but more frequent intervals of monitoring, as directed by the Site Health and Safety Officer, must be conducted.
- If the <u>sustained</u> ambient air concentration of organic vapors at the downwind perimeter of the exclusion zone are <u>greater than 5 ppm</u> over background <u>but</u> less than 25 ppm, activities can resume provided that: the organic vapor level 200 feet downwind of the working site or half the distance to the nearest off-site residential or commercial structure, whichever is less, is below 5 ppm over background; and more frequent intervals of monitoring, as directed by the Site Health and Safety Officer, are conducted.
- If the <u>sustained</u> organic vapor level is <u>above 25 ppm</u> at the perimeter of the exclusion zone, the Site Health and Safety Officer must be notified and work activities shut down. The Site Health and Safety Officer will determine when re-entry of the exclusion zone is possible and will implement downwind air monitoring to ensure vapor emissions do not impact the nearest off-site residential or commercial structure at levels exceeding those specified in the *Organic Vapor Contingency Monitoring Plan* below. All readings will be recorded and will be available for New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) and Department of Health (DOH) personnel to review.

#### O ORGANIC VAPOR CONTINGENCY MONITORING PLAN:

0092-002-1-0

------

• If the <u>sustained</u> organic vapor level is <u>greater than 5 ppm</u> over background 200 feet downwind from the work area or half the distance to the nearest off-



site residential or commercial property, whichever is less, all work activities must be halted.

- If, following the cessation of the work activities or as the result of an emergency, <u>sustained</u> organic levels <u>persist above 5 ppm</u> above background 200 feet downwind or half the distance to the nearest off-site residential or commercial property from the work area, then the air quality must be monitored within 20 feet of the perimeter of the nearest off-site residential or commercial structure (20-foot zone).
- If efforts to abate the emission source are unsuccessful and if <u>sustained</u> organic vapor levels approach or exceed 5 ppm above background within the 20-foot zone for more than 30 minutes, or are sustained at levels greater than 10 ppm above background for longer than one minute, then the *Major Vapor Emission Response Plan* (see below) will automatically be placed into effect.

## 0 MAJOR VAPOR EMISSION RESPONSE PLAN:

Upon activation, the following activities will be undertaken:

- 1. All Emergency Response Contacts as listed in this Health and Safety Plan and the Emergency Response Plan (Appendix A) will be advised.
- 2. The local police authorities will immediately be contacted by the Site Health and Safety Officer and advised of the situation.
- 3. Frequent air monitoring will be conducted at 30-minute intervals within the 20-foot zone. If two <u>sustained</u> successive readings below action levels are measured, air monitoring may be halted or modified by the Site Health and Safety Officer.

The following personnel are to be notified in the listed sequence in the event that a Major Vapor Emission Plan is activated:

Responsible Person	Contact	Phone Number
SSHO	Police	911
SSHO	State Emergency Response Hotline	(800) 457-7362



0092-002-1-0

Additional emergency numbers are listed in the Emergency Response Plan included as Appendix A.

#### • EXPLOSIVE VAPORS:

- <u>Sustained</u> atmospheric concentrations of greater than 10% LEL in the work area Initiate combustible gas monitoring at the downwind portion of the site perimeter.
- <u>Sustained</u> atmospheric concentrations of greater than 10% LEL at the downwind site perimeter – Halt work and contact local Fire Department.

#### o Airborne Particulate Community Air Monitoring

Respirable (PM-10) particulate monitoring will be performed on a continuous basis at the upwind and downwind perimeter of the exclusion zone. The monitoring will be performed using real-time monitoring equipment capable of measuring PM-10 and integrating over a 15-minute period for comparison to the airborne particulate action levels. The equipment will be equipped with an audible alarm to indicate exceedance of the action level. In addition, fugitive dust migration will be visually assessed during all work activities. All readings will be recorded and will be available for NYSDEC and NYSDOH review. Readings will be interpreted as follows:

- If the downwind PM-10 particulate level is 100 micrograms per cubic meter (ug/m<sup>3</sup>) greater than the background (upwind perimeter) reading for the 15-minute period or if airborne dust is observed leaving the work area, then dust suppression techniques must be employed. Work may continue with dust suppression provided that the downwind PM-10 particulate levels do not exceed 150 ug/m<sup>3</sup> above the upwind level and that visible dust is not migrating from the work area.
- If, after implementation of dust suppression techniques downwind PM-10 levels are greater than 150 ug/m<sup>3</sup> above the upwind level, work activities must be stopped and dust suppression controls re-evaluated. Work can resume provided that supplemental dust suppression measures and/or other controls are successful in reducing the downwind PM-10 particulate concentration to within 150 ug/m<sup>3</sup> of the upwind level and in preventing visible dust migration.



Pertinent emergency response information including the telephone number of the Fire Department is included in the Emergency Response Plan (Appendix A).

----

• •

-----

-----



-- --

·· ·

# 9.0 SPILL RELEASE/RESPONSE

This chapter of the HASP describes the potential for and procedures related to spills or releases of known or suspected petroleum and/or hazardous substances on the site. The purpose of this Section of the HASP is to plan appropriate response, control, countermeasures and reporting, consistent with OSHA requirements in 29 CFR 1910.120(b)(4)(ii)(J) and (j)(1)(viii). The spill containment program addresses the following elements:

- Potential hazardous material spills and available controls.
- Initial notification and evaluation.
- Spill response.
- Post-spill evaluation.

## 9.1 Potential Spills and Available Controls

An evaluation was conducted to determine the potential for hazardous material and oil/petroleum spills at this site. For the purpose of this evaluation, hazardous materials posing a significant spill potential are considered to be:

- CERCLA Hazardous Substances as identified in 40 CFR Part 302, where such materials pose the potential for release in excess of their corresponding Reportable Quantity (RQ).
- Extremely Hazardous Substances as identified in 40 CFR Part 355, Appendix A, where such materials pose the potential for release in excess of their corresponding Reportable Quantity (RQ).
- Hazardous Chemicals as defined under Section 311(e) of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act of 1986, where such chemicals are present or will be stored in excess of 10,000 lbs.
- Toxic Chemicals as defined in 40 CFR Part 372, where such chemicals are present or will be stored in excess of 10,000 lbs.
- Chemicals regulated under 6NYCRR Part 597, where such materials pose the potential for release in excess of their corresponding Reportable Quantity (RQ).



Oil/petroleum products are considered to pose a significant spill potential whenever the following situations occur:

- The potential for a "harmful quantity" of oil (including petroleum and non-petroleum-based fuels and lubricants) to reach navigable waters of the U.S. exists (40 CFR Part 112.4). Harmful quantities are considered by USEPA to be volumes that could form a visible sheen on the water or violate applicable water quality standards.
- The potential for any amount of petroleum to reach any waters of NY State, including groundwater, exists. Petroleum, as defined by NY State in 6NYCRR Part 612, is a petroleum-based heat source, energy source, or engine lubricant/maintenance fluid.
- The potential for any release, to soil or water, of petroleum from a bulk storage facility regulated under 6NYCRR Part 612. A regulated petroleum storage facility is defined by NY State as a site having stationary tank(s) and intra-facility piping, fixtures and related equipment with an aggregate storage volume of 1,100 gallons or greater.

The evaluation indicates that, based on site history and decommissioning records, a hazardous material spill and/or a petroleum product spill is not likely to occur during RD efforts.

## 9.2 Initial Spill Notification and Evaluation

Any worker who discovers a hazardous substance or oil/petroleum spill will immediately notify the Project Manager and SSHO. The worker will, to the best of his/her ability, report the material involved, the location of the spill, the estimated quantity of material spilled, the direction/flow of the spill material, related fire/explosion incidents, if any, and any associated injuries. The Emergency Response Plan presented in Attachment H2 of this HASP will immediately be implemented if an emergency release has occurred.

Following initial report of a spill, the Project Manager will make an evaluation as to whether the release exceeds RQ levels. If an RQ level is exceeded, the Project Manager will notify the site owner and NYSDEC at 1-800-457-7362 within 2 hours of spill discovery. The Project Manager will also determine what additional agencies (e.g., USEPA) are to be contacted regarding the release, and will follow-up with written reports as required by the applicable regulations.



#### 9.3 Spill Response

For all spill situations, the following general response guidelines will apply:

- Only those personnel involved in overseeing or performing containment operations will be allowed within the spill area. If necessary, the area will be roped, ribboned or otherwise blocked off to prevent unauthorized access.
- Appropriate PPE, as specified by the SSHO, will be donned before entering the spill area.
- Ignition points will be extinguished/removed if fire or explosion hazards exist.
- Surrounding reactive materials will be removed.
- Drains or drainage in the spill area will be blocked to prevent inflow of spilled materials or applied materials.

For minor spills, the Contractor will maintain a Spill Control and Containment Kit in the Field Office or other readily accessible storage location. The kit will consist of, at a minimum, a 50-lb bag of "speedy dry" granular absorbent material, absorbent pads, shovels, empty 5-gallon pails and an empty open-top 55-gallon drum. Spilled materials will be absorbed, and shoveled into a 55-gallon drum for proper disposal (NYSDEC approval will be secured for on-site treatment of the impacted soils/absorbent materials, if applicable). Impacted soils will be hand-excavated to the point that no visible signs of contamination remains, and will be drummed with the absorbent.

In the event of a major release or a release that threatens surface water, a spill response contractor will be called to the site. The response contractor may use heavy equipment (e.g., excavator, backhoe, etc.) to berm the soils surrounding the spill site or create diversion trenching to mitigate overland migration or release to navigable waters. Where feasible, pumps will be used to transfer free liquid to storage containers. Spill control/cleanup contractors in the Western New York area that may be contacted for assistance include:

- The Environmental Service Group of NY, Inc.: (716) 695-6720
- C&W Environmental, Inc.: (716) 597-0001
- Op-Tech: (607) 565-8891 (Waverly, NY) or (800) 225-6750



0092-002-100

- - -

## 9.4 Post-Spill Evaluation

If a reportable quantity of hazardous material or oil/petroleum is spilled as determined by the Project Manager, a written report will be prepared as indicated in Section 9.2. The report will identify the root cause of the spill, type and amount of material released, date,'time of release, response actions, agencies notified and/or involved in cleanup, and procedures to be implemented to avoid repeat incidents. In addition, all re-useable spill cleanup and containment materials will be decontaminated, and spill kit supplies/disposable items will be replenished.





# 10.0 HEAT/COLD STRESS MONITORING

Although it is anticipated that work activities at the site will be completed during the summer months, measures to be taken to minimize cold stress to Benchmark employees have also been included in the event that work activities extend to the winter months. The Site Safety and Health Officer and/or his or her designee will be responsible for monitoring Benchmark field personnel for symptoms of heat/cold stress.

## 10.1 Heat Stress Monitoring

Personal protective equipment may place an employee at risk of developing heat stress, a common and potentially serious illnesses often encountered at construction, landfill, waste disposal, industrial or other unsheltered sites. The potential for heat stress is dependent on a number of factors, including environmental conditions, clothing, workload, physical conditioning and age. Personal protective equipment may severely reduce the body's normal ability to maintain temperature equilibrium (via evaporation and convection), and require increased energy expenditure due to its bulk and weight.

Proper training and preventive measures will mitigate the potential for serious illness. Heat stress prevention is particularly important because once a person suffers from heat stroke or heat exhaustion, that person may be predisposed to additional heat related illness. To avoid heat stress, the following steps should be taken:

- Adjust work schedules.
- Modify work/rest schedules according to monitoring requirements.
- Mandate work slowdowns as needed.
- Perform work during cooler hours of the day if possible or at night if adequate lighting can be provided.
- Provide shelter (air-conditioned, if possible) or shaded areas to protect personnel during rest periods.
- Maintain worker's body fluids at normal levels. This is necessary to ensure that the cardiovascular system functions adequately. Daily fluid intake must approximately equal the amount of water lost in sweat (i.e., eight fluid ounces must be ingested for approximately every 1 lb of weight lost). The normal thirst mechanism is not sensitive enough to ensure that enough water will be consumed





to replace lost perspiration. When heavy sweating occurs, workers should be encouraged to drink more.

Train workers to recognize the symptoms of heat related illness.

### Heat-Related Illness - Symptoms:

- Heat rash may result from continuous exposure to heat or humid air.
- Heat cramps are caused by heavy sweating with inadequate electrolyte replacement. Signs and symptoms include: muscle spasms; pain in the hands, feet and abdomen.
- Heat exhaustion occurs from increased stress on various body organs including inadequate blood circulation due to cardiovascular insufficiency or dehydration. Signs and symptoms include: pale, cool, moist skin; heavy sweating; dizziness; nausea; fainting.
- Heat stroke is the most serious form of heat stress. Temperature regulation fails and the body temperature rises to critical levels. Immediate action must be taken to cool the body before serious injury and death occur. Competent medical help must be obtained. Signs and symptoms are: red, hot, usually dry skin; lack of or reduced perspiration; nausea; dizziness and confusion; strong, rapid pulse; coma.

The monitoring of personnel wearing protective clothing should commence when the ambient temperature is 70 degrees Fahrenheit or above. For monitoring the body's recuperative ability to excess heat, one or more of the following techniques should be used as a screening mechanism.

- Heart rate may be measured by the radial pulse for 30 seconds as early as possible in the resting period. The rate at the beginning of the rest period should not exceed 100 beats per minute. If the rate is higher, the next work period should be shortened by 10 minutes (or 33%), while the length of the rest periods stay the same, If the pulse rate is 100 beats per minute at the beginning of the nest rest period, the following work cycle should be further shortened by 33%.
- Body temperature may be measured orally with a clinical thermometer as early as possible in the resting period. Oral temperature at the beginning of the rest period should not exceed 99.6 degrees Fahrenheit. If it does, the next work period



0092-002-1-0

-----

should be shortened by 10 minutes (or 33%), while the length of the rest period remains the same. However, if the oral temperature exceeds 99.6 degrees Fahrenheit at the beginning of the next period, the work cycle may be further shortened by 33%. Oral temperature should be measured at the end of the rest period to make sure that it has dropped below 99.6 degrees Fahrenheit. No Benchmark employee will be permitted to continue wearing semi-permeable or impermeable garments when his/her oral temperature exceeds 100.6 degrees Fahrenheit.

#### **10.2** Cold Stress Monitoring

Exposure to cold conditions may result in frostbite or hypothermia, each of which progresses in stages as shown below.

- **Frostbite** occurs when body tissue (usually on the extremities) begins to freeze. The three states of frostbite are:
  - 1) **Frost Nip** This is the first stage of the freezing process. It is characterized by a whitened area of skin, along with a slight burning or painful sensation. Treatment consists of removing the victim from the cold conditions, removal of boots and gloves, soaking the injured part in warm water (102 to 108 degrees Fahrenheit) and drinking a warm beverage. Do not rub skin to generate friction/ heat.
  - 2) **Superficial Frostbite** This is the second stage of the freezing process. It is characterized by a whitish gray area of tissue, which will be firm to the touch but will yield little pain. The treatment is identical for Frost nip.
  - 3) **Deep Frostbite** In this final stage of the freezing process the affected tissue will be cold, numb and hard and will yield little to no pain. Treatment is identical to that for Frost nip.
- Hypothermia is a serious cold stress condition occurring when the body loses heat at a rate faster than it is produced. If untreated, hypothermia may be fatal. The stages of hypothermia may not be clearly defined or visible at first, but generally include:
  - 1) Shivering

0092-002-1-0

2) Apathy (i.e., a change to an indifferent or uncaring mood)



- 3) Unconsciousness
- 4) Bodily freezing

Employees exhibiting signs of hypothermia should be treated by medical professionals. Steps that can be taken while awaiting help include:

- 1) Remove the victim from the cold environment and remove wet or frozen clothing. (Do this carefully as frostbite may have started.)
- 2) Perform active re-warming with hot liquids for drinking (Note: do not give the victim any liquid containing alcohol or caffeine) and a warm water bath (102 to 108 degrees Fahrenheit).
- 3) Perform passive re-warming with a blanket or jacket wrapped around the victim.

In any potential cold stress situation, it is the responsibility of the Site Health and Safety Officer to encourage the following:

- Education of workers to recognize the symptoms of frostbite and hypothermia.
- Workers should dress warmly, with more layers of thin clothing as opposed to one thick layer.
- Personnel should remain active and keep moving.
- Personnel should be allowed to take shelter in a heated area, as necessary.
- Personnel should drink warm liquids (no caffeine or alcohol if hypothermia has set in).
- For monitoring the body's recuperation from excess cold, oral temperature recordings should occur:
  - At the Site Safety Technicians discretion when suspicion is based on changes in a worker's performance or mental status.
  - At a workers request.
  - As a screening measure, two times per shift, under unusually hazardous



conditions (e.g., wind chill less than 20 degrees Fahrenheit or wind chill less than 30 degrees Fahrenheit with precipitation).

- As a screening measure whenever anyone worker on site develops hypothermia.

Any person developing moderate hypothermia (a core body temperature of 92 degrees Fahrenheit) will not be allowed to return to work for 48 hours without the recommendation of a qualified medical doctor.





.....

# 11.0 WORK ZONES AND SITE CONTROL

Work zones around the areas designated for construction activities will be established on a daily basis and communicated to all employees and other site users by the SSHO. It shall be each Contractor's SSHO's responsibility to ensure that all site workers are aware of the work zone boundaries and to enforce proper procedures in each area. The zones will include:

- Exclusion Zone ("Hot Zone") The area where contaminated materials may be exposed, excavated or handled and all areas where contaminated equipment or personnel may travel. The zone will be delineated by flagging tape. All personnel entering the Exclusion Zone must wear the prescribed level of PPE identified in Section 7.
- Contamination Reduction Zone The zone where decontamination of personnel and equipment takes place. Any potentially contaminated clothing, equipment and samples must remain in the Contamination Reduction Zone until decontaminated.
- Support Zone The part of the site that is considered non-contaminated or "clean." Support equipment will be located in this zone, and personnel may wear normal work clothes within this zone.

In the absence of other task-specific work zone boundaries established by the SSHO, the following boundaries will apply to all remedial activities involving disruption or handling of site soils or groundwater:

- Exclusion Zone: 50 foot radius from the outer limit of the sampling/construction activity.
- **Contaminant Reduction Zone**: 100 foot radius from the outer limit of the sampling/construction activity.
- **Support Zone**: Areas outside the Contaminant Reduction Zone.

Access of non-essential personnel to the Exclusion and Contamination Reduction Zones will be strictly controlled by the SSHO. Only personnel who are essential to the



0092-002-1-0

completion of the task will be allowed access to these areas and only if they are wearing the prescribed PPE. Entrance of all personnel must be approved by the SSHO.

The SSHO will maintain a Health and Safety Logbook containing the names of Benchmark workers and their level of protection. The zone boundaries may be changed by the SSHO as environmental conditions warrant, and to respond to the necessary changes in work locations on-site.



42



# 12.0 DECONTAMINATION

## 12.1 Decontamination for Benchmark Employees

The degree of decontamination required is a function of a particular task and the environment within which it occurs. The following decontamination procedure will remain flexible, thereby allowing the decontamination crew to respond appropriately to the changing environmental conditions that may arise at the site. All Benchmark personnel onsite shall follow the procedure below, or the Contractor's procedure (if applicable), whichever is more stringent.

Station 1 - Equipment Drop: Deposit visibly contaminated (if any) re-useable equipment used in the contamination reduction and exclusion zones (tools, containers, monitoring instruments, radios, clipboards, etc.) on plastic sheeting.

Station 2 - Boots and Gloves Wash and Rinse: Scrub outer boots and outer gloves. Deposit tape and gloves in waste disposal container.

Station 3 - Tape, Outer Boot and Glove Removal: Remove tape, outer boots and gloves. Deposit tape and gloves in waste disposal container.

Station 4 - Canister or Mask Change: If worker leaves Exclusion Zone to change canister (or mask), this is the last step in the decontamination procedure. Worker's canister is exchanged, new outer gloves and boot cover donned, and worker returns to duty.

Station 5 - Outer Garment/Face Piece Removal: Protective suit removed and deposited in separate container provided by Contractor. Face piece or goggles are removed if used. Avoid touching face with fingers. Face piece and/or goggles deposited on plastic sheet. Hard hat removed and placed on plastic sheet.

Station 6 - Inner Glove Removal: Inner gloves are the last personal protective equipment to be removed. Avoid touching the outside of the gloves with bare fingers. Dispose of these gloves in waste disposal container.

Following PPE removal, personnel shall wash hands, face and forearms with absorbent wipes. If field activities proceed for 6 consecutive months or longer, shower facilities will be provided for worker use in accordance with OSHA 29 CFR 1910.120(n).



### 12.2 Decontamination for Medical Emergencies

In the event of a minor, non-life threatening injury, personnel should follow the decontamination procedures as defined and then administer first-aid.

In the event of a major injury or other serious medical concern (e.g., heat stroke), immediate first-aid is to be administered and the victim transported to the hospital in lieu of further decontamination efforts unless exposure to a site contaminant would be considered "Immediately Dangerous to Life or Health."

## 12.3 Decontamination of Field Equipment

Decontamination of heavy equipment will be conducted by the Contractor in accordance with his approved Health and Safety Plan in the Contamination Reduction Zone. At a minimum, this will include manually removing heavy soil contamination, followed by steam cleaning on an impermeable pad.

Decontamination of all tools used for sample collection purposes will be conducted by Benchmark personnel. It is expected that all tools will be constructed of nonporous, nonabsorbent materials (i.e., metal), which will aid in the decontamination effort. Any tool or part of a tool made of porous, absorbent material (i.e., wood) will be placed into suitable containers and prepared for disposal.

Decontamination of bailers, split-spoons, spatula knives, and other tools used for environmental sampling and examination shall be as follows:

- Disassemble the equipment
- Wash with water to remove all visible foreign matter.
- Wash with detergent.
- Rinse all parts with distilled-deionized water.
- Allow to air dry.
- Wrap all parts in aluminum foil or polyethylene.



## **13.0 CONFINED SPACE ENTRY**

OSHA 29 CFR 1910.146 defines a confined space as a space that is large enough and so configured that an employee can physically enter and do assigned work; has limited or restricted means for entry and exit; and is not intended for continuous employee occupancy. Confined spaces include, but are not limited to, trenches, storage tanks, process vessels, pits, sewers, tunnels, underground utility vaults, pipelines, sumps, wells, and excavations.

Confined space entry by Benchmark employees is not anticipated to be necessary to complete the RD activities identified in Section 2.0. In the event that the scope of work changes or confined space entry appears necessary, the Project Manager will be consulted to determine if feasible engineering alternatives to confined space entry can be implemented. If confined space entry by Benchmark employees cannot be avoided through reasonable engineering measures, task-specific confined space entry procedures will be developed and a confined-space entry permit will be issued through Benchmark's corporate Health and Safety Director. Benchmark employees shall not enter a confined space without these procedures and permits in place.

0092-002-10-

- -

# 14.0 FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION

### 14.1 General Approach

Recommended practices and standards of the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) and other applicable regulations will be followed in the development and application of Project Fire Protection Programs. When required by regulatory authorities, the project management will prepare and submit a Fire Protection Plan for the approval of the contracting officers, authorized representative or other designated official. Essential considerations for the Fire Protection Plan will include:

- Proper site preparation and safe storage of combustible and flammable materials.
- Availability of coordination with private and public fire authorities.
- Adequate job-site fire protection and inspections for fire prevention.
- Adequate indoctrination and training of employees.

### 14.2 Equipment and Requirements

Fire extinguishers will be provided by each Contractor and are required on all heavy equipment and in each field trailer. Fire extinguishers will be inspected, serviced, and maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. As a minimum, all extinguishers shall be checked monthly, weighed semi-annually, and recharged if necessary. Recharge or replacement shall be mandatory immediately after each use.

## 14.3 Flammable and Combustible Substances

All storage, handling or use of flammable and combustible substances will be under the supervision of qualified persons. All tanks, containers and pumping equipment, whether portable or stationary, used for the storage and handling of flammable and combustible liquids, will meet the recommendations of the National Fire Protection Association.

#### 14.4 Hot Work

If the scope of work necessitates welding or blowtorch operation, the hot work permit presented in Appendix B will be completed by the SSHO and reviewed/issued by the Project Manager.

0092-002-100

46



# **15.0 EMERGENCY INFORMATION**

In accordance with OSHA 29 CFR Part 1910, an Emergency Response Plan is attached to this HASP as Appendix A. The hospital route map is presented as Figure 3.

0092-002-.00

-----

.

. . . . . .

----- -

---



. .....
# **16.0 REFERENCES**

- 1. Remedial Design Work Plan: Seneca Market 1 Site, Brownfield Cleanup Program, Benchmark Environmental Engineering & Science, PLLC, Revised June 2005.
- 2. New York State Department of Health Generic Community Air Monitoring Plan, Appendix 1A, Draft DER-10 Technical Guidance for Site Investigation and Remediation, December 2002.

-- ----

-- -



---

# **TABLES**

······



0092-002-100

------



#### TABLE 1

### CONSTITUENTS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN

		Maximum Detected Concentration <sup>1</sup>			
Parameter	CAS No.	Groundwater (mg/L)	Surface Soil/Fill (mg/kg)	Sub-Surface Soil/Fill (mg/kg)	
Volatile Organic Compounds (V	VOCs):				
Benzene	71-43-2	10		0.019	
1,2-Dichloroethene	540-59-0	4		13	
Ethylbenzene	100-41-4	·····		0.37	
Tetrachloroethene	127-18-4	72	430	3400	
Toluene	108-88-3	37		0.04	
Trichloroethene	79-01-6	15		13	
Vinyl Chloride	75-01-4	16		0.43	
o-Xylene	95-47-6			1.8 (total)	
m-Xylene	108-38-3				
p-Xylene	106-42-3	······································			
Inorganic Compounds:					
Arsenic	7440-38-2	****		15	
Cadmium	7440-43-9		1.3	1.9	
Chromium	7440-47-3			19.6	
Lead	7439-92-1		623	496	
Mercury	7439-97-6		0.48	0.55	

### Seneca Market 1 Site Seneca Market 1, LLC Watkins Glen, New York

Notes:

1. Maximum detected concentrations for soil and groundwater media from the RI, where available. The site has been partially remediated through post RI cleanup efforts. Accordingly, actual maximum concentrations may be lower.

Page 1 of 1

-----

.



#### TABLE 2

#### TOXICITY DATA FOR CONSTITUENTS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN

#### Seneca Market 1 Site Seneca Market 1, LLC Watkins Glen, New York

Parameter	Synonyms	CAS No.	Code	Concentration Limits'		
				PEL	TLV	IDLH
Volatile Organic Compounds	(VOCs): ppm					
Benzene	Benzol, Phenyl hydride	71-43-2	Ca	1	0.5	500
1,2-Dichloroethene	1,2-DCE	540-59-0	none	200	200	1000
Ethylbenzene	Ethylbenzol, Phenylethane	100-41-4	none	100	100	800
Tetrachloroethene	Perchloroethene, Perk, PCE	127-18-4	Ca	100	50	150
Toluene	Methyl benzene, Methyl benzol	108-88-3	C-300	200	50	500
Trichloroethene	Ethylene trichloride, TCE	79-01-6	Ca	100	50	1000
Vinyl Chloride	Chloroethene, VC	75-01-4	Ca	1	5	ND
Xylene, Total	o-, m-, p-isomers	1330-20-7	none	100	100	900
Inorganic Compounds: mg/m	Inorganic Compounds: mg/m <sup>1</sup>					
Arsenic	none	7440-38-2	Ca	0.01	0.01	5
Cadmium	none	7440-43-9	Ca	0.005	0.01	9
Chromium	none	7440-47-3	none	1	0.5	250
Lead	none	7439-92-1	none	0.05	0.15	100
Mercury	none	7439-97-6	C-0.1	0.1	0.05	1)

Notes

1. Concentration limits as reported by NIOSH Pocket Guide to Chemical Hazards, February 2004 (NIOSH Publication No. 97-140, fourth printing

with changes and updates).

2. "--" concentration limit not available; exposure should be minimized to the extent feasible through appropriate engineering controls & PPE.

Explanation:

- Ca NIOSH considers constituent to be a potential occupational carcinogen.
- C-## Ceiling Level equals the maximum exposure concentration allowable during the work day.

IDLH Immediately Dangerous to Life or Health.

ND indicates that an IDLH has not as yet been determined.

TLV Threshold Limit Value, established by American Conference of Industrial Hygienists (ACGIH), equals the maximum exposure concentration allowable for 8 hours, day @ 40 hours, week. TLVs are the amounts of chemicals in the air that almost all healthy adult workers are predicted to be able to tolerate without adverse effects. There are three types.

TLV-TWA (TLV-Time-Weighted Average) which is averaged over the normal eight-hour day/forty-hour work week. (Most TLVs.)

TLV-STEL or Short Term Exposure Limits are 15 minute exposures that should not be exceeded for even an instant. It is not a stand alone value but is accompanied by the TLV-TWA. It indicates a higher exposure that can be tolerated for a short time without adverse effect as long as the total time weighted average is not exceeded.

The second secon

Unless the mitials "STEL" or "C" appear in the Code column, the TLV value should be considered to be the eight-hour TLV-TWA.

PEL Permissible Exposure Limit, established by OSHA, equals the maximium exposure conconcentration allowable for 8 hours per day @ 40 hours per week

8.14 N

•••

\* \*\*



#### TABLE 3

# POTENTIAL ROUTES OF EXPOSURE TO THE CONSTITUENTS OF POTENTIAL CONCERN

#### Seneca Market 1 Site Seneca Market 1, LLC Watkins Glen, New York

Activity <sup>1</sup>	Direct Contact with Soil/Fill	Inhalation of Vapors or Dust	Direct Contact with Groundwater
1. Soil Excavation	x	X	
2. Confirmatory Soil Sampling	X	X	
3. Groundwater Management			X

Notes:

1. Activity as described in Section 1.5 of the Health and Safety Plan.

- ----

-



1

#### TABLE 4

#### REQUIRED LEVELS OF PROTECTION FOR RD TASKS

#### Seneca Market 1 Site Seneca Market 1, LLC Watkins Glen, New York

Activity	Respiratory Protection <sup>1</sup>	Clothing	Gloves <sup>2</sup>	Boots <sup>2,3</sup>	Other Required PPE/Modifications <sup>2,4</sup>
1. Soil Excavation	Level D (upgrade to Level C if necessary)	Work Uniform or Tyvek	L/N	outer: L inner: STSS	HH SGSS
2. Confirmatory Soil Sampling	Level D (upgrade to Level C if necessary)	Work Uniform or Tyvek	L/N	outer: L inner: STSS	HH SGSS
3. Groundwater Management	Level D (upgrade to Level C if necessary)	Poly-coated Tyvek or S	L/N	outer: L inner: STSS	HH SGSS

Notes:

1. Respiratory equipment shall conform to guidelines presented in Section 7.0 of this HASP. The Level C requirement is an air-purifying respirator equiped with organic compound/acid gas/dust cartridge.

2. HH hardhat; L Latex; L/N latex inner glove, nitrile outer glove; N Nitrile; S Saranex; SG safety glasses; SGSS safety glasses with sideshields; STSS steel toe safety shoes.

3. Latex outer boot (or approved overboot) required whenever contact with contaminated materials may occur. SSHO may downgrade to STSS (steel-toed safety shoes) if contact will be limited to cover/replacement soils.

4. Dust masks shall be donned as directed by the SSHO (site safety and health officer) or site safety technician whenever potentially contaminated airborne particulates (i.e., dust) are present in significant amounts in the breathing zone. Goggles may be substituted with safety glasses w/side-shields whenever contact with contaminated liquids is not anticipated.

# **FIGURES**

------



0092-002-1-0

------

## **FIGURE 1**





DATE: JUNE 2005 DRAFTED BY: BCH

## **FIGURE 3**



#### Start: 20 N Franklin St Watkins Glen, NY 14891-1221, US

End: 220 Steuben St Montour Falls, NY 14865-9740, US





HOSPITAL ROUTE MAP EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

SENECA HARBOR HOTEL SITE WATKINS GLEN, NY

# **APPENDIX A**

**EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN** 



0092-002-100

· 3 304 5 10000.0000

-----

# EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN for BROWNFIELD CLEANUP PROGRAM REMEDIAL DESIGN

at the SENECA MARKET 1 SITE WATKINS GLEN, NY

May 2005

ar 14 met

0092-002-100

Prepared for:

SENECA MARKET 1, LLC WATKINS GLEN, NY

# SENECA MARKET 1 SITE HEALTH AND SAFETY PLAN FOR RD ACTIVITIES APPENDIX A: EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0	GENERAL
2.0	PRE-EMERGENCY PLANNING2
3.0	ON-SITE EMERGENCY RESPONSE EQUIPMENT
4.0	EMERGENCY PLANNING MAPS
5.0	EMERGENCY CONTACTS
6.0	EMERGENCY ALERTING & EVACUATION
7.0	EXTREME WEATHER CONDITIONS
8.0	EMERGENCY MEDICAL TREATMENT & FIRST AID9
9.0	EMERGENCY RESPONSE CRITIQUE & RECORD KEEPING
10.0	EMERGENCY RESPONSE TRAINING11

## LIST OF FIGURES

Figure A-1	Hospital Route Map
------------	--------------------

0092-002-100

.....

A-i

 $\label{eq:benchmark} \mbox{Chen.s} \otimes \mbox{Frog} \mbox{Watkins Glenn} \mbox{HASP} \mbox{Appendix} \mbox{A; Emergency Response Plan.doc} \mbox{Plan.doc} \mbox{Frog} \mbox{Watkins Glenn} \mbox{HASP} \mbox{Appendix} \mbox{A; Emergency Response Plan.doc} \mbox{Frog} \mbox{Watkins Glenn} \mbox{HASP} \mbox{Appendix} \mbox{A; Emergency Response Plan.doc} \mbox{Frog} \mbox{Viscous} \mbox{Appendix} \mb$ 

\_---

-

### 1.0 GENERAL

This report presents the site-specific Emergency Response Plan (ERP) referenced in the Site Health and Safety Plan (HASP) prepared for Remedial Design (RD) activities at the proposed Seneca Market 1 Site located in Watkins Glen, NY. This appendix of the HASP describes potential emergencies that may occur at the Site; procedures for responding to those emergencies; roles and responsibilities during emergency response; and training all workers must receive in order to follow emergency procedures. This ERP also describes the provisions this site has made to coordinate its emergency response planning with other contractors on-site and with off-site emergency response organizations.

This ERP is consistent with the requirements of 29 CFR 1910.120(l) and provides the following site-specific information:

- Pre-emergency planning.
- Personnel roles, lines of authority, and communication.
- Emergency recognition and prevention.
- Safe distances and places of refuge.
- Evacuation routes and procedures.
- Decontamination procedures.
- Emergency medical treatment and first aid.
- Emergency alerting and response procedures.
- Critique of response and follow-up.
- Emergency personal protective equipment (PPE) and equipment.

# 2.0 PRE-EMERGENCY PLANNING

This Site has been evaluated for potential emergency occurrences, based on site hazards, the required work tasks, the site topography, and prevailing weather conditions. The results of that evaluation indicate the potential for the following site emergencies to occur at the locations indicated.

<u>Type of Emergency</u>: 1. Medical, due to physical injury

Source of Emergency: 1. Slip/trip/fall

Location of Source: 1. Non-specific

## 3.0 ON-SITE EMERGENCY RESPONSE EQUIPMENT

Emergency procedures may require specialized equipment to facilitate worker rescue; contamination control and reduction; or post-emergency clean up. Emergency response equipment available on the site is listed below. The equipment inventory and storage locations are based on the potential emergencies described above. This equipment inventory is designed to meet on-site emergency response needs and any specialized equipment needs that off-site responders might require because of the hazards at this site but not ordinarily stocked.

Any additional personal protective equipment (PPE) required and stocked for emergency response is also listed in below. During an emergency, the Emergency Response Coordinator (ERC) is responsible for specifying the level of PPE required for emergency response. At a minimum, PPE used by emergency responders will comply with Section 7.0, Personal Protective Equipment, of this HASP. Emergency response equipment is inspected at regular intervals and maintained in good working order. The equipment inventory is replenished as necessary to maintain response capabilities.

Emergency Equipment	Quantity	Location
Spill Response Kit	1	Field Trailer
First Aid Kit	1	Site Vehicle
Chemical Fire Extinguisher	2 (minimum)	All heavy equipment and Site Vehicle

Emergency PPE	Quantity	Location
Full-face respirator	1 for each worker	Site Vehicle
Chemical-resistant suits	4 (minimum)	Site Vehicle

### 4.0 EMERGENCY PLANNING MAPS

An area-specific map of the Seneca Market 1 area will be discussed on a daily basis during performance of field activities. The map will be marked to identify critical on-site emergency planning information, including: emergency evacuation routes, a place of refuge, an assembly point, and the locations of key site emergency equipment. Site zone boundaries will be shown to alert responders to known areas of contamination. There are no major topographical features that could affect emergency response planning; however, the directions of prevailing winds/weather conditions have been marked on the map. The map will be posted at site-designated place of refuge and inside the Benchmark personnel field vehicle.

## 5.0 Emergency Contacts

The following identifies the emergency contacts for this ERP.

#### Emergency Telephone Numbers:

#### Project Manager: Thomas H. Forbes

Work: (716) 856-0599 Mobile: (716) 864-1730

### Corporate Health and Safety Director: Thomas H. Forbes

Work: (716) 856-0599 Mobile: (716) 864-1730

#### Site Safety and Health Officer (SSHO): Bryan C. Hann

Work: (716) 856-0635 Home: (716) 870-1165

#### Alternate SSHO: Richard L. Dubisz

Work: (716) 856-0635 Home: (716) 655-7406

SCHUYLER HOSPITAL:	(607) 535-7121
FIRE:	911 or (607) 535-7700
AMBULANCE:	911
POLICE:	911
STATE EMERGENCY RESPONSE HOTLINE:	(800) 457-7362
NATIONAL RESPONSE HOTLINE:	(800) 424-8802
NYS COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT:	(607) 535-8140
NYSDEC:	(585) 226-5326
NYSDEC 24-HOUR SPILL HOTLINE:	(800) 457-7252

The site location is:

Seneca Market 1 Site 2-20 North Franklin Street Watkins Glen, New York 14891 Site Phone Number: (Insert Cell Phone or Field Trailer):

A-5

### 6.0 EMERGENCY ALERTING & EVACUATION

Internal emergency communication systems are used to alert workers to danger, convey safety information, and maintain site control. Any effective system can be employed. Two-way radio headsets or field telephones are often used when work teams are far from the command post. Hand signals and air-horn blasts are also commonly used. Every system <u>must</u> have a backup. It shall be the responsibility of each contractor's SSHO to ensure an adequate method of internal communication is understood by all personnel entering the site. Unless all personnel are otherwise informed, the following signals shall be used.

- 1) Emergency signals by portable air horn, siren, or whistle: two short blasts, personal injury; continuous blast, emergency requiring site excavation.
- 2) Visual signals: hand gripping throat, out of air/cannot breathe; hands on top of head, need assistance; thumbs up, affirmative/everything is OK; thumbs down, no/negative; grip partner's wrist or waist, leave area immediately.

If evacuation notice is given, site workers leave the worksite with their respective buddies, if possible, by way of the nearest exit. Emergency decontamination procedures detailed in Section 12.0 of the HASP are followed to the extent practical without compromising the safety and health of site personnel. The evacuation routes and assembly area will be determined by conditions at the time of the evacuation based on wind direction, the location of the hazard source, and other factors as determined by rehearsals and inputs from emergency response organizations. Wind direction indicators are located so that workers can determine a safe up wind or cross wind evacuation route and assembly area if not informed by the emergency response coordinator at the time the evacuation alarm sounds. Since work conditions and work zones within the site may be changing on daily basis, it shall be the responsibility of the construction SSHO to review evacuation routes and procedures as necessary and to inform all Benchmark workers of any changes.

Personnel exiting the site will gather at a designated assembly point. To determine that everyone has successfully exited the site, personnel will be accounted for at the assembly site. If any worker cannot be accounted for, notification is given to the SSHO (*Bryan Hann* or *Richard Dubisz*) so that appropriate action can be initiated. Contractors and

0092-002-1-0

subcontractors on this site have coordinated their emergency response plans to ensure that these plans are compatible and that source(s) of potential emergencies are recognized, alarm systems are clearly understood, and evacuation routes are accessible to all personnel relying upon them.

---

## 7.0 EXTREME WEATHER CONDITIONS

In the event of adverse weather conditions, the SSHO in conjunction with the Contractor's SSHO will determine if engineering operations can continue without sacrificing the health and safety of site personnel. Items to be considered prior to determining if work should continue include but are not limited to:

- Potential for heat/cold stress.
- Weather-related construction hazards (i.e., flooding or wet conditions producing undermining of structures or sheeting, high wind threats, etc).
- Limited visibility.
- Potential for electrical storms.
- Limited site access/egress (e.g., due to heavy snow).

-----

## 8.0 EMERGENCY MEDICAL TREATMENT & FIRST AID

#### Personnel Exposure:

The following general guidelines will be employed in instances where health impacts threaten to occur acute exposure is realized:

- <u>Skin Contact</u>: Use copious amounts of soap and water. Wash/rinse affected area for at least 15 minutes. Decontaminate and provide medical attention. Eyewash stations will be provided on site. If necessary, transport to Schuyler Hospital.
- <u>Inhalation</u>: Move to fresh air and, if necessary, transport to Schuyler Hospital.
- <u>Ingestion</u>: Decontaminate and transport to Schuyler Hospital.

#### Personal Injury:

Minor first-aid will be applied on-site as deemed necessary. In the event of a life threatening injury, the individual should be transported to Schuyler Hospital via ambulance. The SSHO will supply available chemical specific information to appropriate medical personnel as requested.

First aid kits will conform to Red Cross and other applicable good health standards, and shall consist of a weatherproof container with individually sealed packages for each type of item. First aid kits will be fully equipped before being sent out on each job and will be checked weekly by the SSHO to ensure that the expended items are replaced.

#### Directions to Schuyler Hospital (see Figure A-1):

The following directions describe the best route to Schuyler Hospital:

- Travel south on North Franklin Street (NY-14) toward First Street and continue on NY-14 for approximately 2.4 miles.
- Turn right onto N. Genesee Street.
- Turn right onto Steuben Street (CR-16).

0092-002-100

A-9

# 9.0 EMERGENCY RESPONSE CRITIQUE & RECORD KEEPING

Following an emergency, the SSHO and Project Manager shall review the effectiveness of this ERP in addressing notification, control and evacuation requirements. Updates and modifications to this ERP shall be made accordingly. It shall be the responsibility of each contractor to establish and assure adequate records of the following:

- Occupational injuries and illnesses.
- Accident investigations.
- Reports to insurance carrier or State compensation agencies.
- Reports required by the client.
- Records and reports required by local, state, federal and/or international agencies.
- Property or equipment damage.
- Third party injury or damage claims.
- Environmental testing logs.
- Explosive and hazardous substances inventories and records.
- Records of inspections and citations.
- Safety training.

## **10.0 Emergency Response Training**

All persons who enter the worksite, including visitors, shall receive a site-specific briefing about anticipated emergency situations and the emergency procedures by the SSHO. Where this site relies on off-site organizations for emergency response, the training of personnel in those off-site organizations has been evaluated and is deemed adequate for response to this site.

A-11

# **FIGURES**

-----

A MARK A MARK A

0092-002-100

.....

N. 1997 (1998) (1998)

### **FIGURE A-1**



SENECA HARBOR HOTEL SITE WATKINS GLEN, NY

# **APPENDIX B**

HOT WORK PERMIT FORM



0092-002-100

...

------

. ......

- ----



-

. . .

-----

------

. . ..

a - 7

----

teres and to a second

-

. . . .

PART 1 - INFORMATION	
Issue Date:	
Date Work to be Performed: Start:	Finish (permit terminated):
Performed By:	<u>v</u>
Work Area:	
Object to be Worked On:	
PART 2 - APPROVAL	
(for 1, 2 or 3: mark Yes, No or NA)*	
Will working be on or in:	Finish (permit terminated):
1. Metal partition, wall, ceiling covered by combustible mater	ial? yes no
2. Pipes, in contact with combustible material?	yes no
3. Explosive area?	yes no
PART 3 - REQUIRED CONDITIONS** (Check all conditions that must be met)	cequired signature below.
PROTECTIVE ACTION	PROTECTIVE EOUIPMENT
Specific Risk Assessment Required	Goggles/visor/welding screen
Fire or spark barrier	Apron/fireproof clothing
Cover hot surfaces	Welding gloves/gauntlets/other:
Move movable fire hazards, specifically	Wellintons/Knee pads
Erect screen on barrier	Ear protection: Ear muffs/Ear plugs
Restrict Access	B.A.: SCBA/Long Breather
Wet the ground	Respirator: Type:
Ensure adequate ventilation	Cartridge:
Provide adequate supports	Local Exhaust Ventilation
Cover exposed drain/floor or wall cracks	Extinguisher/Fire blanket
Fire watch (must remain on duty during duration of permit)	Personal flammable gas monitor
Issue additional permit(s):	
Other precautions:	
** Dermit will not be issued writh these conditions	
SUCNIA TUDESC	
51GNA I UKE5	
Orginating Employee:	Date:
Project Manager:	Date:
Part 2 Approval:	Date:
Hot Work Permit	

# APPENDIX C

# NYSDOH GENERIC COMMUNITY AIR MONITORING PLAN

-----

-----

......



.....

0092-002-100

#### **APPENDIX 1A**

#### New York State Department of Health Generic Community Air Monitoring Plan

A Community Air Monitoring Plan (CAMP) requires real-time monitoring for volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and particulates (i.e., dust) at the downwind perimeter of each designated work area when certain activities are in progress at contaminated sites. The CAMP is not intended for use in establishing action levels for worker respiratory protection. Rather, its intent is to provide a measure of protection for the downwind community (i.e., off-site receptors including residences and businesses and on-site workers not directly involved with the subject work activities) from potential airborne contaminant releases as a direct result of investigative and remedial work activities. The action levels specified herein require increased monitoring, corrective actions to abate emissions, and/or work shutdown. Additionally, the CAMP helps to confirm that work activities did not spread contamination off-site through the air.

The generic CAMP presented below will be sufficient to cover many, if not most, sites. Specific requirements should be reviewed for each situation in consultation with NYSDOH to ensure proper applicability. In some cases, a separate site-specific CAMP or supplement may be required. Depending upon the nature of contamination, chemical- specific monitoring with appropriately-sensitive methods may be required. Depending upon the proximity of potentially exposed individuals, more stringent monitoring or response levels than those presented below may be required. Special requirements will be necessary for work within 20 feet of potentially exposed individuals or structures and for indoor work with co-located residences or facilities. These requirements should be determined in consultation with NYSDOH.

Reliance on the CAMP should not preclude simple, common-sense measures to keep VOCs, dust, and odors at a minimum around the work areas.

#### **Community Air Monitoring Plan**

Depending upon the nature of known or potential contaminants at each site, real-time air monitoring for volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and/or particulate levels at the perimeter of the exclusion zone or work area will be necessary. Most sites will involve VOC and particulate monitoring; sites known to be contaminated with heavy metals alone may only require particulate monitoring. If radiological contamination is a concern, additional monitoring requirements may be necessary per consultation with appropriate NYSDEC/NYSDOH staff.

**Continuous monitoring** will be required for all <u>ground intrusive</u> activities and during the demolition of contaminated or potentially contaminated structures. Ground intrusive activities include, but are not limited to, soil/waste excavation and handling, test pitting or trenching, and the installation of soil borings or monitoring wells.

**Periodic monitoring** for VOCs will be required during <u>non-intrusive</u> activities such as the collection of soil and sediment samples or the collection of groundwater samples from existing monitoring wells. "Periodic" monitoring during sample collection might reasonably consist of taking a reading upon arrival at a sample location, monitoring while opening a well cap or overturning soil, monitoring during well baling/purging, and taking a reading prior to leaving a sample location. In some instances, depending upon the proximity of potentially exposed individuals, continuous monitoring may be required during sampling activities. Examples of such situations include groundwater sampling at wells on the curb of a busy urban street, in the midst of a public park, or adjacent to a school or residence.

**DRAFT** DER-10 Technical Guidance for Site Investigation and Remediation December 2002

Appendix 1A Page 1 of 2

-----

#### VOC Monitoring, Response Levels, and Actions

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) must be monitored at the downwind perimeter of the immediate work area (i.e., the exclusion zone) on a continuous basis or as otherwise specified. Upwind concentrations should be measured at the start of each workday and periodically thereafter to establish background conditions. The monitoring work should be performed using equipment appropriate to measure the types of contaminants known or suspected to be present. The equipment should be calibrated at least daily for the contaminant(s) of concern or for an appropriate surrogate. The equipment should be capable of calculating 15-minute running average concentrations, which will be compared to the levels specified below.

- If the ambient air concentration of total organic vapors at the downwind perimeter of the work area or exclusion zone exceeds 5 parts per million (ppm) above background for the 15-minute average, work activities must be temporarily halted and monitoring continued. If the total organic vapor level readily decreases (per instantaneous readings) below 5 ppm over background, work activities can resume with continued monitoring.
- If total organic vapor levels at the downwind perimeter of the work area or exclusion zone persist at levels in excess of 5 ppm over background but less than 25 ppm, work activities must be halted, the source of vapors identified, corrective actions taken to abate emissions, and monitoring continued. After these steps, work activities can resume provided that the total organic vapor level 200 feet downwind of the exclusion zone or half the distance to the nearest potential receptor or residential/commercial structure, whichever is less but in no case less than 20 feet, is below 5 ppm over background for the 15-minute average.
- If the organic vapor level is above 25 ppm at the perimeter of the work area, activities must be shutdown.

All 15-minute readings must be recorded and be available for State (DEC and DOH) personnel to review. Instantaneous readings, if any, used for decision purposes should also be recorded.

#### Particulate Monitoring, Response Levels, and Actions

Particulate concentrations should be monitored continuously at the upwind and downwind perimeters of the exclusion zone at temporary particulate monitoring stations. The particulate monitoring should be performed using real-time monitoring equipment capable of measuring particulate matter less than 10 micrometers in size (PM-10) and capable of integrating over a period of 15 minutes (or less) for comparison to the airborne particulate action level. The equipment must be equipped with an audible alarm to indicate exceedance of the action level. In addition, fugitive dust migration should be visually assessed during all work activities.

- If the downwind PM-10 particulate level is 100 micrograms per cubic meter (mcg/m<sup>3</sup>) greater than background (upwind perimeter) for the 15-minute period or if airborne dust is observed leaving the work area, then dust suppression techniques must be employed. Work may continue with dust suppression techniques provided that downwind PM-10 particulate levels do not exceed 150 mcg/m<sup>3</sup> above the upwind level and provided that no visible dust is migrating from the work area.
- If, after implementation of dust suppression techniques, downwind PM-10 particulate levels are greater than
  150 mcg/m<sup>3</sup> above the upwind level, work must be stopped and a re-evaluation of activities initiated. Work can
  resume provided that dust suppression measures and other controls are successful in reducing the downwind
  PM-10 particulate concentration to within 150 mcg/m<sup>3</sup> of the upwind level and in preventing visible dust
  migration.

All readings must be recorded and be available for State (DEC and DOH) personnel to review.

**DRAFT** DER-10 Technical Guidance for Site Investigation and Remediation December 2002

# APPENDIX D

SOIL/FILL MANAGEMENT PLAN



-----

0092-002-100

# SOIL/FILL MANAGEMENT PLAN for BROWNFIELD CLEANUP PROGRAM REMEDIAL DESIGN

SENECA MARKET I SITE WATKINS GLEN, NY

Revised June 2005

0092-002-100

Prepared for:

Seneca Market I, LLC

# SOIL/FILL MANAGEMENT PLAN

## Seneca Market 1 Site

## Table of Contents

1.0	INTI	RODUCTION	1
	1.1	Background and History	1
	1.2	Environmental Investigations and Remedial Efforts	2
		1.2.1 Chlorinated Organic-Impacted Area	2
		1.2.2 Other Areas	3
	1.3	Purpose and Scope	4
	1.4	Soil/Fill Management Program Responsibility	5
2.0	Soii	/FILL MANAGEMENT	6
	2.1	Excavation and Handling of On-Site Soil/Fill	6
	2.1	Subgrade Backfill Material	7
	4.4	2.2.1 Use Criteria	7
		2.2.2 Borrow Source Sampling Requirements	7
	2.3	Soil/Fill Sampling and Analysis Protocol	8
		2.3.1 Impacted Soil/Fill Characterization	8
		2.3.2 Verification Sampling	9
	2.4	Final Surface Coverage	9
	2.5	Erosion Controls1	0
	2.6	Dust Controls	0
	2.7	Fencing and Access Control	1
	2.8	Property Use Limitations	1
	2.9	Notification and Reporting Requirements1	2
3.0	HEA	ALTH AND SAFETY PROCEDURES	3
5.0			-
4.0	REF	ERENCES1	5



4.74.5

# SOIL/FILL MANAGEMENT PLAN

# Seneca Market 1 Site

## **Table of Contents**

# LIST OF TABLES

- Table 1Criteria for Use of Off-Site Backfill as Subgrade Material
- Table 2Site Specific Action Levels (SSALs)

# LIST OF FIGURES

- Figure 1 Site Vicinity and Location Map
- Figure 2 Site Plan

## APPENDICES

ü

- Appendix A Master Erosion Control Plan (MEC Plan)
- Appendix B NYSDOH Generic Community Air Monitoring Plan



## **1.0 INTRODUCTION**

### 1.1 Background and History

Seneca Market I, LLC and Seneca Market II, LLC (hereafter referred to jointly as Seneca Market) own 0.29 and 0.2-acre parcels, respectively within the block bounded by Franklin, First, Decatur Streets, and the Finger Lakes Railway right-of-way in the Village of Watkins Glen, Schuyler County, New York (see Figures 1 and 2). Seneca Market has an option on a 1.76-acre parcel and 0.13-acre parcel within this same block. The approximately 0.29-acre parcel, located along on North Franklin Street, contains the Seneca Market building, a multipurpose shopping and office building located along the northern side of the property. The approximately 0.2-acre parcel contains the former Glen Vintage Auto Museum (presently unoccupied). The western portion of the 1.76-acre parcel contains a large block building that was formerly used as a bus garage and is currently leased to Seneca Hardwoods, a manufacturer of custom flooring. A building foundation, reputedly a remnant of a former Welch's Grape facility, also remains on the 1.76-acre parcel.

The 0.13-acre parcel contains a structure deemed the "former dry cleaning building." This is a two-story brick building that includes two (2) unoccupied single-story brick sheds to the east. A VFW building is located immediately south of the former dry cleaning building, but is outside of the 0.13-acre property limits. The former dry cleaning building is presently occupied by a real estate firm.

The parcels have a history of use that dates back to the 1860s. The Seneca Market building has formerly been used as a foundry; a flour and grist mill; and most recently retail shops on the first floor and professional office space on the second and third floors. A marble works building was formerly present just south of Seneca Market until it was destroyed in 1970. The former Auto Museum was previously used for miscellaneous storage, in particular auto parts. The dry cleaning building has mainly been used for retail businesses, a machine shop, and for dry cleaning operations.


## 1.2 Environmental Investigations and Remedial Efforts

#### 1.2.1 Chlorinated Organic-Impacted Area

A 1991 Environmental Assessment of the Site revealed that groundwater under a portion of the property (i.e., 20 Franklin Street at the corner of North Franklin and First) was contaminated with chlorinated organic compounds associated with the former dry cleaning operations. NYSDEC subsequently listed a 0.3-acre portion of the property as a Class 2 inactive hazardous waste site (i.e., "the North Franklin Street Site" - NYSDEC Registry No. 8-49-002). The inactive hazardous waste site encompasses the 0.13-acre parcel, including the former dry cleaner building, and a portion of the 0.49-acre parcel. A Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study (RI/FS) performed and completed in 1993 by URS Consultants under a Standby Contract with the NYSDEC delineated the extent of soil and groundwater contamination on and adjacent to the Franklin Street site. URS subsequently designed remediation systems to treat soil and groundwater, pursuant to a Record of Decision (ROD) signed in 1994. The remedial measures included a soil vapor extraction (SVE) system to treat shallow VOC-impacted soil, and a groundwater pump and treat system to extract and treat groundwater adjacent to the former dry cleaner. The systems were placed into operation in Fall of 1996. Confirmatory soil samples collected during remediation indicated that SVE had effectively cleaned up the soil near the extraction wells, underneath the former auto museum, and to the rear of the former dry cleaning building. However, in the process of collecting the confirmatory soil samples, it was discovered that the soil contaminant concentrations in the immediate vicinity of the dry cleaning building were much higher and extended deeper into clay than previously thought. SVE did not clean up this area of highly contaminated soil to cleanup objectives despite subsequent modifications to and extended operation of the SVE system. Operation of the SVE system was suspended in March 1998 and operation of the groundwater treatment system was suspended at the end of April 1998, pending the results of further investigations.

In 1998/1999, URS performed additional soil investigations and cleanup technology feasibility studies to evaluate deeper soil contamination. It was concluded that chlorinated organic compounds remained on-site in a small area directly adjacent to and outside the former dry cleaning building, as well as beneath the dry cleaner building at depths greater than 16 feet. A chemical oxidation pilot study conducted from March through May 2000



significantly reduced the mass of chlorinated contaminants in Site soils. Despite the reduction, localized areas of residual chlorinated organic contamination remain in soils and groundwater adjacent to and beneath the former dry cleaner building. In March 2004, an active venting system was installed within the former dry cleaner building to control the potential indoor migration of vapors from the residual contamination. In addition, deed restrictions were placed on the property to prevent usage of groundwater and contact with residual soil contamination.

At the direction of NYSDEC, URS collected air samples within the Seneca Market Building and beneath the concrete floor slab in 2005. The air samples collected beneath the concrete slab contained elevated levels of chlorinated organic compounds. As a result, NYSDEC has contracted URS to design and install an active subslab venting system in the Seneca Market Building.

#### 1.2.2 Other Areas

A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was performed in November 1991 for the parcels on the eastern portion of the subject property. The ESA identified several potential environmental conditions including possible underground storage tanks, drums, an inoperable piston arrangement for a hydraulic lift, and oil spills near the corner of First and Decatur Streets. Petroleum hydrocarbons, lower levels of chlorinated hydrocarbons, and several elevated inorganic compounds related to the above described conditions were detected in the soil and groundwater during the RI/FS. Two areas on the larger parcel that contained soil heavily contaminated with benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and xvlene (BTEX) were excavated and bioremediated off-site in the late 1990s. As such, residual BTEX contamination in soil and groundwater may exist proximate to these historic source areas. In addition, the RI identified BTEX contamination in soil/fill and groundwater beneath the former bus garage near the former dry cleaner building. While SVE and/or insitu oxidation treatment of the chlorinated organic impacted soils may have partially addressed the BTEX impacted soils, there is likely residual BTEX contamination in soil/fill beneath the former bus garage.



0092-002-100 Fi\Benchmark\Chents\Krog\Watkins Glen\Soil-Fill Management Plan (SFMP)\Soil-Fill Management Plan - Seneca Harbor Hotel.doc

## **1.3** Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this Soil/Fill Management Plan (SFMP or Plan) is to protect both the environment and human health during redevelopment of the Site, subsequent to completion of Brownfield Cleanup activities to address the known and suspected areas of chlorinated organic and petroleum-impacted soil/fill.

While an assessment of surface and subsurface soil/fill and groundwater at the Site has already been performed, subsurface information is never 100 percent complete or accurate, especially on a site with a long and diverse history. As such, it is not unreasonable to anticipate the possibility that some quantity of impacted subsurface soil/fill may be encountered after completion of the Brownfield Cleanup (see Remedial Design Work Plan – Ref. 1). In particular, soil/fill impacts may be encountered during development activities such as infrastructure construction (i.e. roads, waterline, sewers, electric cable etc.) or foundation excavation and site grading.

Compliance with this SFMP is required to properly manage any impacted subsurface soil/fill encountered during redevelopment activities at the Site. This SFMP was developed with the express purpose of addressing unknown subsurface impacts if and when encountered. The SFMP also facilitates the transfer of responsibilities with property ownership.

This SFMP provides protocols for the proper handling of site soil/fill during development activities, including:

- Excavation, grading, sampling and handling of site soils.
- Acceptability of soil/fill from off-site sources for backfill or subgrade fill.
- Erosion and dust control measures.
- Fencing and other access controls.
- Health and safety procedures for subsurface construction work and the protection of the surrounding community.
- Acceptability and placement of final cover.
- Deed restrictions.
- BCP responsibilities.
- Notification and reporting requirements.



## 1.4 Soil/Fill Management Program Responsibility

The developer and property owner, Seneca Market will be responsible for all monitoring, implementation and reporting requirements of this Plan. The developer and owner will not perform, nor contract, nor permit their employees, agents, or assigns to perform any excavations or disturbance of site soils, except as delineated in this Plan. The property owner(s) or their agents will be responsible for proper notification and reporting to regulatory agencies (i.e., NYSDEC Region 8, Division of Environmental Remediation and NYS Department of Health) prior to and following site development as described in Section 2.8.

The NYSDEC may provide periodic construction oversight and monitoring during site redevelopment activities to verify that the requirements of this SFMP are adhered to.





## 2.0 SOIL/FILL MANAGEMENT

### 2.1 Excavation and Handling of On-Site Soil/Fill

During both the initial site redevelopment by Seneca Market and during future excavation work on the site (excluding minor landscaping maintenance), Benchmark Environmental Engineering & Science, PLLC or a Professional Engineer with experience in environmental site investigations and the New York State Brownfield Cleanup Program (BCP) will inspect soil/fill excavations or disturbances on behalf of the subject property owner. The soil/fill as well as the excavation sidewalls and floor will be inspected for staining or discoloration, and will be field screened for the presence of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) with a photoionization detector (PID). The PID detector will be calibrated as per the manufacturer's requirements.

Generally, soil/fill at the Site is characterized as either impacted with chlorinated volatile organic compounds (CVOCs) or petroleum organics, specifically benzene, toluene, and xylenes (BTEX). The known and suspected areas of CVOCs and BTEX-impacted soil/fill hot spots will be excavated and transported to a permitted off-site disposal facility in accordance with the remedial plan discussed in the Remedial Design (RD) Work Plan (Ref. 1). If, during redevelopment, soil/fill is encountered that is visibly stained, discolored or produces elevated PID readings (i.e. sustained readings of 5 ppm above background or greater), NYSDEC will be contacted and the excavation will be advanced to remove the impacted soils, to the extent feasible. Impacted material, if encountered, will be stockpiled on plastic sheeting in an area away from the primary work activities and then sampled to determine whether it is subject to special disposal/reuse requirements<sup>1</sup>. The length of time soil can be stockpiled should be limited to 90 days due to potential hazardous waste storage requirement concerns.

Sampling and analyses to verify excavation limits and analysis for disposal purposes will be in accordance with the protocols delineated in Section 2.3.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The presence of subsurface construction and demolition debris, such as brick, concrete, wood, miscellaneous metal products, etc. does not necessitate stockpiling in accordance with this SFMP.

## 2.2 Subgrade Backfill Material

#### 2.2.1 Use Criteria

Subgrade material used to backfill excavations or to increase site grades or elevations may be comprised of excavated on-site soil/fill or off-site soil/fill. The criteria under which these materials may be used as subgrade backfill are presented below.

- Excavated, On-Site Soil/Fill: Soil/fill that is excavated from the site, including soils excavated for the purpose of accessing impacted soils (e.g., shallow soils overlying deeper impacted soils) may be used on-site as subgrade backfill, provided that it does not exhibit evidence of staining, discoloration or elevated PID readings as described in Section 2.1.
- Off-site Soil/Fill: Off-site soil/fill may be used as subgrade backfill providing that it originates from known sources having no evidence of disposal or releases of hazardous substances, hazardous, toxic or radioactive wastes, or petroleum. If the off-site soil/fill is of unknown origin or it originates from a commercial, industrial or urban site then it must be tested in to meet the criteria identified on Table 1. In addition, no off-site materials meeting the definition of a solid waste as defined in 6 NYCRR, Part 360-1.2 (a) shall be used as backfill.

#### 2.2.2 Borrow Source Sampling Requirements

If an off-site soil/fill borrow source is of unknown origin or originates from a commercial, industrial or urban site, then it must be tested to meet the criteria identified on Table 1. A tiered approach based upon the volume of impacted soil/fill being excavated will be used to determine the frequency of characterization sampling. A minimum of one composite sample will be collected for each 250 cubic yards (CY) up to 1000 CY of material excavated. If more than 1,000 CY of soil/fill are excavated from the same general vicinity and all samples of the first 1,000 CY meet the criteria listed in Table 1, the sample collection frequency may be reduced to one composite for each additional 1,000 CY of soil/fill from the same general vicinity, up to 5,000 CY. For excavations that generate greater than 5,000 CY, sampling frequency may be reduced to one sample per 5,000 CY, providing all earlier samples met Table 1 criteria. A minimum of four grab samples will be collected for each composite in the grab samples will be collected for each composite of the grab samples will be collected for each composite in the grab samples will be collected for each composite for each samples will be collected for each samples will be collected for each samples met Table 1 criteria. A minimum of four grab samples will be collected for each composite sample.



the field using a stainless steel trowel and bowl. The trowel and bowl shall be decontaminated with a non-phosphate detergent (i.e., Alconox®) and potable water wash solution followed by a distilled water rinse between sampling locations. The composite soil/fill sample will be analyzed in accordance with USEPA SW-846 Methodology by a NYSDOH ELAP certified laboratory for the parameters listed on Table 1.

## 2.3 Soil/Fill Sampling and Analysis Protocol

Excavated soil/fill that is designated for off-site disposal (i.e., soil/fill that exhibits evidence of staining, discoloration or elevated PID readings as described in Section 2.1) shall be sampled in accordance with the requirements of the off-site disposal facility and the appropriate regulatory authorities. In addition, the resulting excavation following removal of impacted soil/fill will require verification sampling and analysis to determine the limits of impact. Both characterization and verification sampling and analysis are discussed in the following sections.

#### 2.3.1 Impacted Soil/Fill Characterization

The following procedure represents a suggested method for determining off-site disposal requirements for impacted soil/fill designated for off-site disposal. The sampling procedures, frequency and parameter list must be coordinated with the off-site disposal facility prior to undertaking characterization work.

Excavated soil/fill should be separately stockpiled in 250 CY or smaller piles. A single grab sample will be collected from each stockpile, with the grab biased toward the zone displaying the most elevated field PID reading. The grab sample will be analyzed by a NYSDOH ELAP certified laboratory for Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Protocol (TCLP) volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and ignitability (flashpoint) in accordance with USEPA SW-846 methodology. Additional parameters may be required for disposal characterization purposes.

If the stockpiles are from a single source area, sampling may be reduced to one sample per 1,000 cubic yards following receipt of data from four 250 cubic yard stockpiles.

Results will be compared to TCLP hazardous waste characteristic values (40 CFR Part 261). If TCLP criteria are exceeded, the soil/fill will be transported to a permitted Treatment Storage and Disposal Facility (TSDF). If TCLP analytical results are below



hazardous waste characteristic values, the soil/fill may be disposed off-site at a permitted solid waste disposal facility.

## 2.3.2 Verification Sampling

Verification sampling will be performed on the excavation sidewalls and bottom following removal of visibly impacted soil/fill. Lateral and vertical excavation will continue until visually impacted soil/fill is less than 0.5 feet thick, the Site-Specific Action Levels (SSALs) presented in Table 2 are met, or NYSDEC agrees that no further excavation is required. Verification sampling will be performed after excavation limits have been achieved and visibly impacted soil/fill has been removed. In general, one sidewall sample will be collected on each of the four sides of the excavation and one sample will be collected from the bottom of the excavation. The samples will be collected by retrieving a representative sample from across the excavation face. The backhoe bucket will be used to assist in sample collection and avoid the need for confined space entry. For excavations having lengths greater than 100 feet, an additional sample will be collected for each additional 100 feet of excavation length. Verification samples will be analyzed for TCL VOCs and Base-Neutral SVOCs in accordance with NYSDEC SW-846 Methodology.

## 2.4 Final Surface Coverage

Vegetative or other (e.g., asphalt, buildings, concrete) surface coverage over the entire redeveloped parcel will be required by the developer or owner as a pre-condition of occupancy. Six inches of vegetative soil cover or a minimum of 4-inches of impervious material (e.g., concrete, asphalt) will be placed by the developer prior to occupancy, as per the RD Work Plan. If cover is breached or found to be compromised (e.g., soil erosion) following redevelopment, it shall be replaced in kind. Topsoil used for final soil cover shall meet the following general specifications:

• Fertile, friable, natural loam surface soil, capable of sustaining plant growth, free of, clods of hard earth, plants or roots, sticks or other extraneous material harmful to plant growth. Supply a well-graded topsoil with the following approximate analysis:





Sieve Size	Percent Passing by Weight
3-inch	100
No. 4	>75
No. 200	>30
0.002 mm	<20

(b) pH 5.5 to pH 7.6.

(c) Minimum organic content of 2.5 percent as determined by ignition loss.

(d) Soluble salt content not greater than 500 ppm.

In addition to the above specifications, all topsoil must originate from a reputable supplier/source having no evidence of disposal or releases of hazardous substances, hazardous, toxic or radioactive wastes, or petroleum.

Grass seed used for the final soil cover shall be a perennial seed suitable for northeast climates. Non-grassed areas (e.g., landscaped plantings) should be covered with chip mulch to mitigate erosion.

## 2.5 Erosion Controls

An important element of soil/fill management on this site is the mitigation and control of surface erosion from stormwater runoff. For this reason a Master Erosion Control Plan to be used by all developers has been developed and incorporated as Appendix A.

## 2.6 Dust Controls

Particulate monitoring will be performed along the downwind-occupied perimeter of the Site during subgrade excavation, grading, and handling activities in accordance with the Community Monitoring Plan contained in the RD Work Plan. Dust suppression techniques will be employed as necessary to mitigate fugitive dust from unvegetated or disturbed



soil/fill during post-remediation construction and redevelopment. Techniques to be utilized may include one or more of the following:

- Applying water on haul roads.
- Wetting equipment and excavation faces.
- Spraying water on buckets during excavation and dumping.
- Hauling materials in properly tarped containers or vehicles.
- Restricting vehicle speeds on-site.
- Covering excavated areas and materials after excavation activity ceases.
- Reducing the excavation size and/or number of excavations.

All reasonable attempts will be made to keep visible and/or fugitive dust to a minimum.

## 2.7 Fencing and Access Control

The Site is naturally separated from adjacent properties by active streets on three sides (i.e., Franklin, First, and Decatur) and a railroad spur on one side. The Veterans of Foreign Wars (VFW) Post building located on the same city block and southwest of the Site only allows street access to either Franklin or First Streets. Interior temporary fencing shall be erected and maintained by the as necessary property owner as remediation/redevelopment proceeds to control access to open excavations and Temporary fencing will be relocated by the property owner(s) as construction areas. necessary as development proceeds. All temporary fencing will be posted with "No Trespassing" signs.

## 2.8 **Property Use Limitations**

Requirements for surface coverage over the site and limitations placed on the type of buildings to be constructed will be enforced through the issuance of building permits by the Village of Watkins Glenn. The Village of Watkins Glen has zoned the North Franklin Street Site for commercial, office, and light industrial use. Commercial use includes retail and wholesale establishments (e.g., shoe stores, gasoline service stations, food stores, etc.) while light industrial use includes manufacturing, warehousing, storing, etc. The zoning specifically prohibits residential use.



0092-002-100 F:\Benchmark\Clients\Krog\Warkuns Glen\Soil-Fill Management Plan (SFMP)\Soil-Fill Management Plan - Seneca Harbor Horel.doc A deed restriction presently exists on the former inactive hazardous waste site along North Franklin Street that precludes use of site groundwater and requires cover measures to mitigate contact with soil/fill constituents.

## 2.9 Notification and Reporting Requirements

The NYSDEC and NYSDOH will be notified that subgrade activities are being initiated a minimum of 5 working days in advance of construction. A NY State Licensed P.E. or his designated representative shall inspect all subsurface excavation work for conformance with this SFMP.

The site Owner shall complete and submit to the NYSDEC an annual report by January 15th of each year. Such annual report shall contain certification that: the institutional controls put in place are still in place, have not been altered and are still effective; the remedy and protective cover have been maintained; and the conditions at the site are fully protective of public health and the environment. If the cover system has been breached during the year covered by the Annual Report, the site Owner shall include a certification that all work was performed in conformance with the SMP.





## 3.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY PROCEDURES

During redevelopment activities, the developer shall be responsible for implementing suitable procedures to prevent both site construction workers and the community from adverse exposure to residual parameters of concern and other potential hazards posed by the redevelopment work. This will be accomplished through adherence to a written, parcel-specific worker Health and Safety Plan (HASP), prepared in accordance with the regulations contained in OSHA 29CFR 1910.120 and a Community Air Monitoring Plan prepared in conformance with NYSDOH requirements.

Although BFC remedial measures are anticipated to reduce the potential for encountering parameters of concern above SSALs, the redevelopment activities governed by this SFMP are a required element of the BFC Agreement for the site. Thus, 29CFR 1910.120(a)(1)(iii) indicates that these activities are subject to OSHA's hazardous waste operations and emergency response (Hazwopper) standard. This includes the requirement for preparation and implementation of a site-specific worker Health and Safety Plan addressing the following items:

- A safety and health or hazard analysis for each site task and operation.
- Employee training requirements.
- Personal protective equipment (PPE) to be used by employees for the site tasks.
- Medical surveillance requirements.
- Frequency and type of air monitoring, personnel monitoring, and environmental sampling techniques and instrumentation to be used, including methods of maintenance and calibration of equipment.
- Site control measures.
- Decontamination procedures.
- An emergency response plan.
- Confined space entry procedures.
- A spill containment program.



As an integral component of the worker HASP, the developer or site/parcel owner will be responsible for implementing a Community Air Monitoring Plan designed to prevent the surrounding community from adverse exposures due to potential release/migration of airborne particulates or vapors. The community as referenced herein includes potential receptors located off-site (e.g., neighboring residents or businesses) as well as on-site receptors not directly involved in redevelopment activities (e.g. businesses or contractors occupying the site prior to final redevelopment). The New York State Department of Health Generic Community Air Monitoring Plan (CAMP), presented as Appendix B. The CAMP will be implemented during redevelopment work involving disturbance or handling of Site soil/fill. The Plan includes appropriate monitoring, mitigation and response measures consistent with NYSDOH and NYSDEC guidelines.



## 4.0 **REFERENCES**

- 1. Benchmark Environmental Engineering and Science, PLLC, Remedial Design Work Plan for the Seneca Market 1 Site, Watkins Glenn, New York, Revised June 2005.
- 2. New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, Technical and Administrative Guidance Memorandum #4046: Determination of Soil Cleanup Objectives and Cleanup Levels, January 24, 1994.



15









a 1. may ...

### TABLE 1

## CRITERIA FOR USE OF OFF-SITE BACKFILL AS SUBGRADE MATERIAL

## Soil/Fill Management Plan Seneca Market 1, LLC Village of Watkins Glen, New York

Parameter	Individual Concentration (mg/kg)	Total Concentration (mg/kg)
TCL VOCs	1	10
TCL SVOCs	_	500
RCRA Metals (8)		
Arsenic	12	-
Barium	600	_
Cadmium	1	-
Chromium	40	-
Lead	500	-
Mercury	0.2	_
Selenium	3.9	-
Silver	10	_
Pesticides/Herbicides	less than TAGM #4046	-
TCL PCBs	-	1

-----



----

## TABLE 2

## SITE SPECIFIC ACTION LEVELS (SSALs)

## Soil/Fill Management Plan Seneca Market 1, LLC Village of Watkins Glen, New York

Parameter	Maximum Concentration in Soil/Fill (ppm)
Individual VOC	1
Total VOCs	10
Total SVOCs	500

---

------

----

· · · · · · · ·





## **FIGURE 1**







MASTER EROSION CONTROL PLAN (MEC PLAN)



.....



# MASTER EROSION CONTROL PLAN

SENECA MARKET I SITE WATKINS GLEN, NY

Revised June 2005

ապահ ամանան հետուանը, մասնել է հանց, այս հայ հ

-

0092-002-100

and the second second

Prepared for:

Seneca Market I, LLC

## MASTER EROSION CONTROL PLAN

## Seneca Market I Site

## Table of Contents

1.0	INTRODUCTION	1
	1.1 Background and History	1
	1.2 Purpose and Scope	1
2.0	GENERAL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS	3
3.0	POTENTIAL EROSION CONTROL CONCERNS	4
4.0	EROSION CONTROL MEASURES	5
	4.1 Background	5
	4.2 Temporary Measures	5
	4.2.1 Silt Fencing	5
	4.2.2 Straw and/or Hay Bales	6
	4.2.3 Cautious Placement of Stockpiles	6
	4.3 Permanent Control Measures During Site Redevelopment	7
5.0	CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PRACTICES	8
	5.1 General	8
	5.2 Monitoring, Inspection, and Maintenance Plan	8



- ----

\_

- - ---

a company and the second se

--

i

want can the same with the set

## MASTER EROSION CONTROL PLAN Seneca Market I Site

## Table of Contents

## LIST OF FIGURES

- Figure A-1 Site Vicinity and Location Map
- Figure A-2 Site Plan

.

## **APPENDICES**

- Appendix A-A Erosion Control Details
- Appendix A-B Monitoring, Inspection, and Maintenance Plan



#### 1.0INTRODUCTION

#### 1.1 **Background and History**

Seneca Market I, LLC and Seneca Market II, LLC (hereafter referred to jointly as Seneca Market) own 0.29 and 0.2-acre parcels, respectively within the block bounded by Franklin, First, Decatur Streets, and the Finger Lakes Railway right-of-way in the Village of Watkins Glen, Schuyler County, New York (see Figures 1 and 2). Seneca Market has an option on a 1.76-acre parcel and 0.13-acre parcel within this same block. The approximately 0.29-acre parcel, located along on North Franklin Street, contains the Seneca Market building, a multipurpose shopping and office building located along the northern side of the The approximately 0.2-acre parcel contains the former Glen Vintage Auto property. Museum (presently unoccupied). The western portion of the 1.76-acre parcel contains a large block building that was formerly used as a bus garage and is currently leased to Seneca Hardwoods, a manufacturer of custom flooring. A building foundation, reputedly a remnant of a former Welch's Grape facility, also remains on the 1.76-acre parcel.

The 0.13-acre parcel contains a structure deemed the "former dry cleaning building." This is a two-story brick building that includes two (2) unoccupied single-story brick sheds to the east. A VFW building is located immediately south of the former dry cleaning building, but is outside of the 0.13-acre property limits. The former dry cleaning building is presently occupied by a real estate firm.

The parcels have a history of use that dates back to the 1860s. The Seneca Market building has formerly been used as a foundry; a flour and grist mill; and most recently retail shops on the first floor and professional office space on the second and third floors. A marble works building was formerly present just south of Seneca Market until it was destroyed in 1970. The former Auto Museum was previously used for miscellaneous storage, in particular auto parts. The dry cleaning building has mainly been used for retail businesses, a machine shop, and for dry cleaning operations.

#### 1.2 **Purpose and Scope**

A Soil/Fill Management Plan (SFMP) was prepared as part of the Remedial Design (RD) Work Plan that describes protocols for the proper handling of site soil/fill during

1

CIENCE.

development activities. The property owner at the time of development will be responsible for all monitoring, implementation and reporting requirements of the SFMP.

Since erosion control will be a critical component of preventing the potential migration of contaminants onto developed property or off-site during development of the site, this Master Erosion Control Plan (MECP) was prepared to provide guidance to developers during build-out activities on the properties. This MECP is a critical component of the SFMP. This document is generic in nature and provides minimum erosion control practices to be utilized by site owners and/or developers.





## 2.0 GENERAL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS

Redevelopment of the Site will be in accordance with the SFMP and Brownfields Cleanup Agreement (BFA). Since development activities at the Site will not disturb more than five acres of land, the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et. seq.), and the New York State Environmental Conservation Law (Article 17, Titles 7 and 8, and Article 70) does not apply.



## 3.0 POTENTIAL EROSION CONTROL CONCERNS

Following remediation, redevelopment activities will proceed for commercial uses of the property. Design measures regarding erosion control measures will need to be determined at that time after the development approach of the site has been determined.

Potential areas and items of concern during site re-development activities include the following:

- All portions of the site not covered by buildings, sidewalks, roadways, parking areas, or other structures will be required to be covered with 4"-6" of "clean" soils, asphalt, or concrete to limit exposure to remaining subsurface soil/fill materials. The transportation and placement activities associated with this work will require erosion and sediment controls to prevent the surface soil from being washed off the area being developed.
- Remediated areas or off-site properties adjacent to unremediated parcels need protection so they do not become impacted by site operations.
- Storm water inlets will require protective measures to limit sediment transfer to storm sewers.
- Runoff from soil stockpiles will require erosion controls.
- Surface slopes need to be minimized as much as practical to control sediment transfer.
- Soil/fill excavated during development will require proper handling and disposal.



4

Engineering &

## 4.0 EROSION CONTROL MEASURES

## 4.1 Background

Standard soil conservation practices need to be incorporated into the construction and development plans to mitigate soil erosion damage, off-site sediment migration, and water pollution from erosion. These practices combine vegetative and structural measures, many of which will be permanent in nature and become part of the completed project (i.e. drainage channels and grading). Other measures will be temporary and serve only during the construction stage. Selected erosion and sediment control measures will meet the following criteria:

- Minimize erosion through project design (maximum slopes, phased construction, etc.)
- Incorporate temporary and permanent erosion control measures; and
- Remove sediment from sediment-laden storm water before it leaves the site.

## 4.2 Temporary Measures

Temporary erosion and sedimentation control measures and facilities will be utilized during construction. They will be installed by the site Developer and will be maintained until they are either no longer needed or until such time as permanent measures are installed and become effective. At a minimum, the following temporary measures will be used:

- Silt fencing
- Straw/hay bales
- Temporary vegetation/mulching
- Temporary sedimentation basins
- Cautious placement, compaction and grading of stockpiles

## 4.2.1 Silt Fencing

Construction and regrading activities will result in surface water flow to drainage ditches and swales, storm sewers, and adjacent properties. Silt fencing will be the primary



CIENCE

sediment control measure used in these areas. Prior to extensive soil excavation or grading activities, silt fences will be installed along the perimeter of all construction areas. The orientation of the fencing will be adjusted as necessary as the work proceeds to accommodate changing site conditions.

Intermediate fencing will be utilized upgradient of the perimeter fencing to help lower surface water runoff velocities and reduce the volume of sediment to perimeter fencing. Stockpiles will also be surrounded with silt fencing.

As sediment collects, the silt fences will be cleaned as necessary to maintain their integrity. Removed sediment will be utilized elsewhere on-site as general fill. All perimeter silt fences will remain in place until construction activities in an area are completed and vegetative cover has been established. Silt fences will be installed in accordance with the details presented in Appendix A-A.

## 4.2.2 Straw and/or Hay Bales

Straw and/or hay bales will be used to intercept sediment laden storm water runoff in drainage channels during construction. The use of either hay or straw will be based on the availability of materials at the time of construction.

Bales will be placed in swales and ditches where the anticipated flow velocity is not expected to be greater than 5 feet/second (fps). Intermediate bales will be placed upgradient of the final barrier to reduce flow velocities and sediment loadings where higher velocities are anticipated.

As with silt fencing, sediment will be removed as necessary from behind the bales and disposed of on-site. Bales that have become laden with sediment or that have lost their structural integrity or effectiveness due to the weather will be replaced. Bales should be installed in accordance with the details presented in Appendix A-A.

### 4.2.3 Cautious Placement of Stockpiles

As development occurs, excavation activities will produce stockpiles of soil and subgrade soil/fill materials. Careful placement and construction of stockpiles will be required to control erosion. Stockpiles will be placed no closer than fifty feet from storm water inlets and parcel boundaries. Additionally, stockpiles will be graded and compacted as necessary for positive surface water runoff and dust control. Impacted stockpiles will be



underlain and covered with secured polyethylene tarpaulin until proper disposal has been secured.

## 4.3 Permanent Control Measures During Site Redevelopment

Permanent erosion and sedimentation control measures and structures will be installed as soon as practical during construction for long-term erosion protection. Since the detailed development approach for the site has not been determined, specific design features are vet to be selected. Examples of permanent erosion control measures could include:

- Utilizing maximum slopes in erosion prone areas to limit erosion.
- Minimizing the potential contact with, and migration of, subsurface soil/fill through the placement of a "clean" soil cover system in all areas not covered with structures, roads, parking areas, sidewalks, etc.
- Planting and maintaining vegetation.
- Limiting runoff flow velocities to the extent practical.
- Lining collection channels with riprap, erosion control fabric, vegetation, or similar materials.



BENCHMARK Environmental Engineering & Cience. PUTC

## 5.0 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

## 5.1 General

The following general construction practices should be evaluated for erosion and sedimentation control purposes during site development activities:

- Clearing and grading only as much area as is necessary to accommodate the construction needs to minimize disturbance of areas subject to erosion (i.e. phasing the work).
- Covering exposed or disturbed areas of the site as quickly as practical.
- All erosion and sediment control measures should be installed prior to disturbing the site subgrade.
- Both on-site and off-site tracking of soil by vehicles should be minimized by utilizing routine entry/exit routes.

## 5.2 Monitoring, Inspection, and Maintenance Plan

All erosion and sedimentation controls described in this Plan will be inspected by a qualified representative of the site developer within 24 hours of a heavy rainfall event and repaired or modified as necessary to effectively control erosion of turbidity problems. Inspections should include areas under construction, stockpile areas, erosion control devices (i.e. silt fences, hay bales, etc.) and locations where vehicles enter and leave the site. Routine inspections of the entire site should also be made on a monthly basis during development.

If inspections indicate problems, corrective measures should be implemented within 24 hours. A report summarizing the scope of the inspection, name of the inspector, date, observations made, and a description of the corrective actions taken should be completed. Examples of inspection forms to be completed are included in Appendix A-B.



CIENCE

APPENDIX A: MASTER EROSION CONTROL PLAN SENECA MARKET 1 SITE





## **FIGURE A-1**







## **EROSION CONTROL DETAILS**

- Silt Fence
- Straw Bale Dike
- Perimeter Dike/Swale
- Temporary Swale
- Sediment Trap for Drop Inlet


#### STANDARD AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR SILT FENCE

#### Definition

A temporary barrier of geotextile fabric (filter cloth) used to intercept sediment laden runoff from small drainage areas of disturbed soil.

#### Purpose

The purpose of a silt fence is to reduce runoff velocity and effect deposition of transported sediment load. Limits imposed by ultraviolet stability of the fabric will dictate the maximum period the silt fence may be used.

#### **Conditions Where Practice Applies**

A silt fence may be used subject to the following conditions:

1. Maximum allowable slope lengths contributing runoff to a silt fence are:

Slope Steepness	Maximum Slope Length (Ft)
2:1	50
3:1	75
4:1	125
5:1	175
Flatter than 5:1	200

2. Maximum drainage area for overland flow to a silt fence shall not exceed 1/2 acre per 100 feet of fence; and

3. Erosion would occur in the form of sheet erosion; and

4. There is no concentration of water flowing to the barrier.

#### **Design** Criteria

Design computations are not required. All silt fences shall be placed as close to the area as possible, and the area below the fence must be undisturbed or stabilized.

A detail of the silt fence shall be shown on the plan, and contain the following minimum requirements:

- 1. The type, size, and spacing of fence posts.
- 2. The size of woven wire support fences. (OPTIONAL)
- 3. The type of filter cloth used.
- 4. The method of anchoring the filter cloth.
- 5. The method of fastening the filter cloth to the fencing support.

Where ends of filter cloth come together, they shall be overlapped, folded and stapled to prevent sediment bypass. See Figure 4.4 on page 4.12 for details.

#### **Criteria for Silt Fence Materials**

 Silt Fence Fabric: The fabric shall meet the following specifications unless otherwise approved by the appropriate erosion and sediment control plan approval authority. Such approval shall not constitute statewide acceptance. Statewide acceptability shall depend on in field and/or laboratory observations and evaluations.

-	Minimum	n Ic
Fabric Properties Grab Tensile Strength (lbs)	<u>Value</u> 90	Test Method ASTM D1682
Elongation at Failure (%)	50	ASTM D1682
Mullen Burst Strength (PSI)	190	ASTM D3786
Puncture Strength (lbs)	40	ASTM D751 (modified)
Slurry Flow Rate (gal/min/sf)	0.3	()
Equivalent Opening Sizw	40-80	US Std Sieve CW-02215
Ultraviolet Radiation Stability (%)	90	ASTM G-26

- 2. Fence Posts (for fabricated units): The length shall be a minimum of 36 inches long. Wood posts will be of sound quality hardwood with a minimum cross sectional area of 3.0 square inches. Steel posts will be standard T and U section weighing not less than 1.00 pound per linear foot.
- 3. Wire Fence (for fabricated units): Wire fencing shall be a minimum 14-1/2 gage with a maximum 6 in. mesh opening, or as approved. (OPTIONAL)
- Prefabricated Units: Envirofence or approved equal may be used in lieu of the above method providing the unit is installed per manufacturer's instructions.

March 1989 (Rev.)

New York Guidelines for Urban Erosion and Sediment Control

#### Figure 4.4 Silt Fence Details



w York Guidelines for Urban osion and Sediment Control Page 4.12

\_ \_\_ \_\_

March 1988

#### STANDARD AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR STRAW BALE DIKE

#### Definition

A temporary barrier of straw or similar material used to intercept sediment laden runoff from small drainage areas of disturbed soil.

#### Purpose

The purpose of a bale dike is to reduce runoff velocity and effect deposition of the transported sediment load. Straw bale dikes are to be used for no more than three (3) months.

#### **Conditions Where Practice Applies**

The straw bale dike is used where:

- 1. No other practice is feasible.
- 2. There is no concentration of water in a channel or other drainage way above the barrier.
- 3. Erosion would occur in the form of sheet erosion.

4. Length of slope above the straw bale dike does not exceed these limits:

Constructed	Percent	Slope Length
Slope	Slope	(feet)
2:1	50	25
2 -1/2:1	40	50
3:1	33	75
3-1/2:1	30	100
4.1	75	125

Where slope gradient changes through the drainage area, steepness refers to the steepest slope section contributing to the straw bale dike.

The practice may also be used for a single family lot if the slope is less than 15 percent. The contributing drainage area in this instance shall be less than one acre and the length of slope above the dike shall be less than 200 feet.

#### **Design** Criteria

A design is not required. All bales shall be placed on the contour with cut edge of bale adhering to the ground. See Figure 4.3 on page 4.10 or details.





New York Guidelines for Urban Erosion and Sediment Control Page 4.10

and the same same

March 1988

#### STANDARD AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR PERIMETER DIKE/SWALE

#### Definition

A temporary ridge of soil excavated from an adjoining swale located along the perimeter of the site or disturbed area.

#### Purpose

ł

The purpose of a perimeter dike/swale is to prevent off site storm runoff from entering a disturbed area and to prevent sediment laden storm runoff from leaving the construction site or disturbed area.

#### Conditions Where Practice Applies

Perimeter dike/swale is constructed to divert flows from entering a disturbed area, or along tops of slopes to prevent flows from eroding the slope, or along base of slopes to direct sediment laden flows to a trapping device.

The perimeter dike/swale shall remain in place until the disturbed areas are permanently stabilized.

#### Design Criteria

See Figure 4.16 on page 4.34 for details.

The perimeter dike/swale shall not be constructed outside the property lines without obtaining legal easements from effected adjacent property owners. A design is not required for perimeter dike/swale. The following criteria shall be used:

Drainage area - Less than 2 acres (for drainage areas larger than 2 acres but less than 10 acres see earth dike; for drainage areas larger than 10 acres, see standard and specifications for diversion).

Height - 18 inches minimum from bottom of swale to top of dike evenly divided between dike height and swale depth.

Bottom width of dike - 2 feet minimum.

Width of swale - 2 feet minimum.

Grade - Dependent upon topography, but shall have positive drainage (sufficient grade to drain) to an adequate outlet. Maximum allowable grade not to exceed 20 percent.

Stabilization - The disturbed area of the dike and swale shall be stabilized within 10 days of installation, in accordance with the standard and specifications for seed and straw mulch or straw mulch only if not in the seeding season.

#### Outlet

- 1. Perimeter dike/swale shall have an outlet that functions with a minimum of erosion.
- Diverted runoff from a protected or stabilized upland area shall outlet directly onto an undisturbed stabilized area.
- 3. Diverted runoff from a disturbed or exposed upland area shall be conveyed to a sediment trapping device such as a sediment trap, sediment basin, or to an area protected by any of these practices.
- The on-site location may need to be adjusted to meet field conditions in order to utilize the most suitable outlet.

March 1988

Page 4.33

New York Guidelines for Urban Erosion and Sediment Control

Figure 4.16 Perimeter Swale Dike Detail



New York Guidelines for Urban sion and Sediment Control

.

- -----

Page 4.34

\_\_\_\_

March 1988

------

ł

#### Definition

A temporary excavated drainage way.

#### Purpose

The purpose of a temporary swale is to prevent runoff from entering disturbed areas by intercepting and diverting it to a stabilized outlet or to intercept sediment laden water and divert it to a sediment trapping device.

#### **Conditions Where Practice Applies**

Temporary Swales are constructed:

- 1. To divert flows from a disturbed area.
- 2. Intermittently across disturbed areas to shorten overland flow distances.
- 3. To direct sediment laden water along the base of slopes to a trapping device.
- To transport offsite flows across disturbed areas such as rights-of-way.

Swales collecting runoff from disturbed areas shall remain in place until the disturbed areas are permanently stabilized.

#### **Design** Criteria

See Figure 4.5 on page 4.14 for details.

Drainage Area	Swalc A <5 Ac	<u>Swale B</u> 5-10 Ac
Bottom Width of Flow Channel	<b>4</b> ft	6 ft
Depth of Flow Channel	1ft	1 ft
Side Slopes	2:1 or Flatter	2:1 or Flatter
Grade	0.5% Min. 20% Maz.	0.5% Min. 20% Max.

For drainage areas larger than 10 acres, refer to the Standard and Specifications for Waterways on page 4.91.

#### Stabilization

Stabilization of the swale shall be completed within 10 days of installation in accordance with the appropriate standard and specifications for vegetative stabilization or stabilization with mulch as determined by the time of year. The flow channel shall be stabilized as per the following criteria:

		FLOW CHAI	NNEL
Type of	Channel	Α	B
Treatment 1	<u>Grade</u> 0.5-3.0%	<u>&lt;5 Ac</u> Seed & Straw Mulch	5-10 Ac Seed & Straw Mulch
2	3.1-5.0%	Seed & Straw Mulch	Seed and cover with Jute or Excelsior; Sod, or lined with 2 in. stone
3	5.1-8.0%	Seed and cover with Jute or Excelsior, Sod line with 2 in. stone	Line with 4-8 in. stone or Recycled Concrete Equivalent
4	8.1-20%	Line with 4-8 in. stone or Recycled Concrete Equiv	Engineering Design

In highly crodible soils, as defined by local approving agency, refer to the next higher slope grade for type of stabilization.

<sup>1</sup>Recycled Concrete Equivalent shall be concrete broken into the required size, and shall contain no steel reinforcement.

#### **Outlet**

Swale shall have an outlet that functions with a minimum of erosion, and dissipates runoff velocity prior to discharge off the site.

Runoff shall be conveyed to a sediment trapping device such as a sediment trap or sediment basin until the drainage area above the swale is adequately stabilized.

The on-site location may need to be adjusted to meet field conditions in order to utilize the most suitable outlet condition.

If swale is used to divert flows from entering a disturbed area, a sediment trapping device may not be needed.

#### March 1989 (Rev.)

New York Guidelines for Urban Erosion and Sediment Control

#### Figure 4.5 **Temporary Swale Detail**



New York Guidelines for Urban rosion and Sediment Control

•

March 1988



PROP INLETS





\_ \_\_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_ \_

. . . . . . . . . .



MONITORING, INSPECTION, AND MAINTENANCE PLAN



0092-002-100 F:\Benchmark\Client\Krog\Watkins Glenn\Soil-Fill Management Plan (SFMP)\Appendix A; Master Erosion Control Plan \Appendix A; Master Erosion Control

# MONITORING, INSPECTION & MAINTENANCE PLAN

SENECA MARKET 1 SITE WATKINS GLENN, NY

May 2005

and a second second

0092-002-100

----

Prepared for:

Seneca Market 1, LLC

the state of the second s

# MONITORING, INSPECTION, AND MAINTENANCE PLAN

### IMPLEMENTATION

- A. The Contractor at this site shall at all times, properly construct, operate and maintain all erosion controls and features, as part of the construction activities, in accordance with regulatory requirements, and with good construction practices. Erosion control measures and activities will be in accordance with the Master Erosion Control Plan (MECP).
- B. This erosion control monitoring, inspection, and maintenance plan has been developed to achieve compliance with the requirements of the MECP. The key elements of the monitoring effort are described herein and include the following:
  - Site Inspections and Maintenance;
  - BMPs Monitoring;
  - Record keeping;
  - Review and Modifications; and
  - Certification of Compliance.

# SITE INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE PRACTICES

A. The temporary erosion control features installed by the Contractor will be maintained by the contractor until no longer needed or permanent erosion control methods are installed.

Site inspections are required every seven days or within 24 hours of a rainfall of 0.5 inches or greater. All disturbed areas, areas for material storage, locations where vehicles enter or exit the site, and all of the erosion and sediment controls that are identified as part of this site's construction storm water and erosion control plan must be inspected. Controls must be in good operating condition until the affected area they protect has been completely stabilized and the construction activity is



0092-002-100 #\Benchmark\Chents\Krog\\\ atkns Glens\Sol-Hill Management Play (SPMP)\Appendix A: Master Brosson Control Play\Appendix A-B\Appendix A- complete. If a repair is necessary, it must be completed within seven (7) days of receipt of a report or notice, if practical. Inspection for specific erosion and sediment controls will include the following:

- Silt fence will be inspected to determine the following:
  - 1) Depth;
  - 2) Condition of fabric;
  - 3) That the fabric is attached to the posts; and
  - 4) That the fence posts are firmly in the ground.
- The silt fences will be inspected weekly and within 24 hours of a 0.5-inch or greater storm event.
- Diversion berms, if used, will be inspected and any breaches promptly repaired.
- Temporary and permanent seeding and planting will be inspected for bare spots, washouts, and other potential erosion control problems.
- The Contractor shall designate individual(s) that will be responsible for erosion control, maintenance, and repair activities. The designated individual will also be responsible for inspecting the site and filling out the inspection and maintenance report.
- Personnel selected for inspection and maintenance responsibilities will receive They will be trained in all the inspection and maintenance practices training. necessary for keeping the erosion and sediment controls used onsite in good working order.
- B. The individual inspecting the site must record any damages or deficiencies on an inspection form (Attachment 1). These forms can be used to request maintenance and repair and to document inspection and maintenance activities. Damages or deficiencies must be corrected as soon as possible after the inspection. Any changes that may be required to correct deficiencies in the MECP should also be made as soon as possible, but in no case later than seven days after the inspection.
- C. An Inspection and Maintenance Report Form is attached to record the inspection and assessment (see Attachment 1).

D. A Stabilization Measures Report Form is attached (see Attachment 2) to record the effects of any corrective measures implemented as reported in the Inspection and Maintenance Report Form.

# RECORDKEEPING

A. Records Retention

A copy of the MECP and inspection, maintenance and amendment records must be kept at the construction site from the time construction begins until the site is stabilized.

Inspection records shall be retained for a minimum of three years, as detailed in the General Permit.

The Plan and related records will be made available upon request to any regulatory agency representatives or members of the public.

## **REVIEW AND MODIFICATIONS**

- A. During the course of construction, unanticipated changes may occur which affect this plan such as schedule changes, phasing changes, staging area modifications, offsite drainage impacts and repeated failures of designed controls. Any changes to the activities and controls identified in this plan must be documented and the Plan revised accordingly. An Amendment Report must be completed and attached to the plan (see Attachment 3).
- B. Certification of revisions to this plan shall be included at the end of the document.



Appendix A-B: Monitoring, Inspection & Maintenance Plan Seneca Market 1 Site

# ATTACHMENT 1

INSPECTION & MAINTENANCE REPORT FORM (SAMPLE)



Appendix AB 0092-002-100



# MECP: INSPECTION & MAINTENANCE REPORT FORM

#### 10 ... COMPLETED EVERY 7 DAYS AND WITHIN 24 HOURS OF A RAINFALL EVENT OF 0.5-INCHES OR MORE

Project:	Date:
Client:	Report No.:
Job No.:	Personnel:
Rainfall (approx. inches):	Rainfall Event Personnel:

Contractor Activities	OK	NO	N/A	Notes
Are construction onsite traffic routes, parking and storage of equipment and supplies restricted to areas specifically designated for those uses?				
Are locations of temporary soil stockpiles of construction materials in approved areas?				
Is there any evidence of spills and resulting cleanup procedures?				
GENERAL EROSION & SEDIMENT CON	NTROLS			
Are sediment and erosion BMPs installed in the proper location and according to the specifications set out in the SWPPP?				
Are all operational storm drain inlets protected from sediment inflow?				
Do any seeded or landscaped areas require maintenance, irrigation, fertilization, seeding or mulching?				
Is there any evidence that sediment is leaving the site?				
Is there any evidence of erosion or cut fill slopes?				
PERIMETER ROAD USE				
Does much sediment get tracked on to the perimeter road				
Is the gravel clean or is it filled with sediment?				
Does all traffic use the perimter road to leave the site?				
Is maintenance or repair required for the perimeter road?				
REFER TO STABILIZATION MEASURES REPORT				

DATE:

يعدد عيد مرد م

. . . . . . .

were were comparisoned with were productioned and comparisoned one com-



STABILIZATION MEASURES REPORT FORM (SAMPLE)

-



. .

-

Appendix AB 0092-002-100

•



# MECP: STABILIZATION MEASURES REPORT FORM

#### TO BE COMPLETED EVERY 7 DAYS AND WITHIN 24 HOURS OF A RAINFALL EVENT OF 0.5-INCHES OR MORE

Project:	Date:
Client:	Report No.:
Job No.:	Personnel:
Rainfall (approx. inches):	Rainfall Event Personnel:

STABILIZATION MEASURES					
Area	Date Since Last Disturbed	Date of Next Disturbance	Stabilized? Yes/No	Stabilized With	Condition

#### STABILIZATION REQUIRED:

#### TO BE PERFORMED BY:

#### **ON OR BEFORE:**

------

------

#### PREPARED BY:

DATE:

5 6 5 **46 6** 7 7 7

-

MECP; Stabilization Measures Report Form

-

and the second second



AMENDMENT REPORT (SAMPLE)





#### **MECP: AMMENDMENT REPORT**

Project:	Date:
Client:	Report No.:
Job No.:	Personnel:
Rainfall (approx. inches):	Rainfall Event Personnel:
CHANGES REQUIRED TO THE SWPPP:	
REASONS FOR CHANGES:	

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gathered and evaluated the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are signification penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

PREPARED BY:

DATE:

# **APPENDIX E**

**CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN** 

1996, **199** 1997 1997 1997 1997 1997



0092-002-100



New York State Department of Environmental Conservation

# **Brownfield Cleanup Program**

# Citizen Participation Plan for Seneca Market 1, LLC Seneca Harbor Hotel

Site #8-49-002 2-20 North Franklin Street Watkins Glen Schuyler County, New York

May 2005

the methodogenesis togethoge beginning methodogenesis at at

#### Contents

Section Section	<u>Page N</u>	vumber
1.	What is New York's Brownfield Cleanup Program?	3
2.	Citizen Participation Plan Overview	3
3.	Site Information	5
4.	Remedial Process	7
5.	Citizen Participation Activities	8
6.	Major Issues of Public Concern	9
Appen	endix A – Project Contacts and Document Repositories	10
Appen	endix B – Identification of Citizen Participation Activities List	11
Appen	endix C – Brownfield Site Contact	12
Appen	endix D – Site Location Map	24

\* \* \* \* \*

**Note:** The information presented in this Citizen Participation Plan was current as of the date of its approval by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation. Portions of this Citizen Participation Plan may be revised during the site's remedial process.

Applicant: Seneca Market 1, LLC ("Applicant") Site Name: Seneca Harbor Hotel ("Site") Site Number: 8-49-002 Site Address: 2-20 North Franklin Street, Watkins Glen, NY 14891 Site County: Schuyler

#### 1. What is New York's Brownfield Cleanup Program?

New York's Brownfield Cleanup Program (BCP) is designed to encourage the private sector to investigate, remediate (cleanup) and redevelop brownfields. A brownfield is any real property, the redevelopment or reuse of which may be complicated by the presence or potential presence of a contaminant. A brownfield typically is a former industrial or commercial property where operations may have resulted in environmental contamination. A brownfield can pose environmental, legal and financial burdens on a community. If the brownfield is not addressed, it can reduce property values in the area and affect economic development of nearby properties.

The BCP is administered by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) which oversees Applicants accepted into the BCP as they conduct brownfield site remedial activities. The BCP contains strict investigation and remediation (cleanup) requirements, ensuring that cleanups protect public health and the environment based on the intended use of the brownfield site. When NYSDEC certifies that these requirements have been met, the property can be reused or redeveloped for the intended use. For more information about the BCP, go online at: www.dec.state.ny.us/website/der/bcp.

#### 2. Citizen Participation Plan Overview

A Citizen Participation (CP) Plan provides members of the affected and interested public with information about how NYSDEC will inform and involve them during the investigation and remediation of a site under the BCP.

This CP Plan has been developed for the site under the BCP. Appendix D contains a map locating the site. NYSDEC is committed to informing and involving the public concerning the investigation and remediation of the site. This CP Plan describes the public information and involvement program that will be carried out with assistance from the Applicant.

Appendix A of this CP Plan identifies NYSDEC project contact to whom the public may address questions or request information about the site's remedial program. The locations of the site's document repositories also are identified in Appendix A. The document repositories provide convenient access to important project documents for public review and comment.

Appendix B contains the brownfield site contact list. This list has been developed to keep the community informed about, and involved in, the site's investigation and remediation process. The brownfield site contact list includes, at a minimum:

- Chief executive officer and zoning board of each county, city, town and village in which the site is located.
- Residents on and/or adjacent to the site.
- The public water supplier that services the area in which the site is located.
- Any person who has requested to be placed on the site contact list.
- The administrator of any school or day care facility located on and/or adjacent to the site for purposes of posting and/or dissemination at the facility.
- Document repositories and their contacts.

The brownfield site contact list will be used periodically to distribute fact sheets that provide updates about the status of the project, including notifications of upcoming remedial activities at the site (such as fieldwork), as well as availability of project documents and announcements about public comment periods.

The brownfield site contact list will be reviewed periodically and updated as appropriate. Individuals and organizations will be added to the site contact list upon request. Such requests should be submitted to the NYSDEC project contact identified in Appendix A.

Appendix C identifies the CP activities that have been and will be conducted during the site's remedial program.

The CP activities are designed to achieve the following objectives:

- Help the interested and affected public to understand contamination issues related to a brownfield site, and the nature and progress of an Applicant's efforts, under State oversight, to investigate and, if appropriate, remediate a brownfield site.
- Ensure open communication between the public and project staff throughout a brownfield site's remedial process.
- Create opportunities for the public to contribute information, opinions and perspectives that have potential to influence decisions about a brownfield site's investigation and remediation.

This CP Plan may be revised due to changes in major issues of public concern or in the nature and scope of remedial activities. Modifications may include additions to the site contact list, updates to major issues of concern to the public, and changes in planned citizen participation activities. The public is encouraged to discuss its ideas and suggestions about the citizen participation program with the project contact listed in Appendix A.

#### 3. Site Information

#### Site Description

Seneca Market 1, LLC (Seneca Market) owns a 2.38-acre parcel of land (with the exception of a 0.13-acre parcel that will be purchased upon acceptance into the BCP) within the Village block bounded by Franklin, First, Decatur Streets, and the Conrail right-of-way in Watkins Glen, Schuyler County, New York. A site location map is included as Appendix D.

The Site is located in an urban setting and is surrounded by a mixture of residential and commercial properties. The commercial properties include retail, medical, service, recreational, and professional uses.

#### Site History

Seneca Market plans to redevelop the approximately 2.38-acre site as a hotel complex. The parcel along North Franklin Street currently contains three structures: the Seneca Market building, the former Glen Vintage Auto Museum (currently unoccupied), and a vacant building (formerly a dry cleaner. A larger building further east was previously used as a bus maintenance garage and is currently leased to Seneca Hardwoods.

The parcels have a history of use that dates back to the 1860s. The Seneca Market building has formerly been used as a foundry; a flour and grist mill; and most recently retail shops on the first floor and professional office space on the second and third floors. A marble works building was formerly present just south of Seneca Market until it was destroyed in 1970. The former Auto Museum was previously used for miscellaneous storage, in particular auto parts. The vacant building has mainly been used for retail businesses, an automobile parking garage, a machine shop, and for dry cleaning operations.

Despite the remedial activities completed to-date, residual chlorinated organic contaminant concentrations exceeding remedial action objectives remain. In particular, three such areas exist beneath and to the east of the side (north) door of the former dry cleaning building; one outside the building at a depth of 0-4 feet below ground surface (bgs), another is located beneath the building at a depth of 4-6 feet bgs, and one is located beneath and adjacent to the building at depths greater than 6 feet bgs. In light of the site hydrogeology, it is likely that other small, isolated pockets with high levels of contamination may exist elsewhere beneath and outside the building.

In addition, petroleum-related contamination in soil and groundwater is suspected to exist beneath the former bus garage on the Site. Petroleum contamination may also exist on the eastern portion of the Site proximate to the potential source areas that were excavated in the late 1990s. The suspected contaminants of primary concern are petroleum hydrocarbons and lower levels of chlorinated hydrocarbons.

#### Environmental History

A 1991 Environmental Assessment of the Site revealed that groundwater under the Site (i.e., 20 Franklin Street at the corner of North Franklin and First) was contaminated with chlorinated organic compounds. Therefore, the NYSDEC added the site to its official list of inactive hazardous waste sites as a Class 2 site. A classification of 2 means the site poses a significant threat to public health and/or the environment and action is required. The inactive hazardous waste site encompasses the 0.14-acre parcel, including the former dry cleaner building, and a portion of the 0.49-acre parcel. A Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study (RI/FS) performed and completed in 1993 by URS Consultants under a Standby Contract with the NYSDEC delineated the extent of soil and groundwater contamination as a result of former dry cleaning operations on-site from 1976 to 1988 and on surrounding parcels.

URS subsequently designed remediation systems to treat soil and groundwater, as required by the Record of Decision (ROD) signed in 1994. The remediation system included a soil vapor extraction (SVE) system to treat the shallow soil and a groundwater treatment system to extract and treat groundwater adjacent to the former dry cleaner. The subsequent remediation was performed from 1996 to 2001. Treatment systems at the site have been discontinued as the ROD called for the SVE System to operate until soil cleanup objectives were achieved, and for the Groundwater Extraction System to operate for five years or until asymptotic contaminant concentrations were detected in monitoring wells. Low levels of chlorinated solvents still exist in soil and groundwater across the site and higher levels beneath existing buildings proximate to the source area.

In 1998/1999, URS performed additional soil investigations and cleanup technology feasibility studies to evaluate the deeper soil contamination. It was concluded that chlorinated organic compounds remained on-site in a small area directly adjacent to and outside the former dry cleaning building, as well as beneath the dry cleaners at depths greater than 16 feet. A chemical oxidation pilot study conducted from March through May 2000 significantly reduced the mass of chlorinated contaminants in Site soils. Despite the reduction, localized areas with residual contamination still remain concentrated at the depth of 4 to 6 feet within the subsurface clay below the building. In March 2004, an active venting system was installed within the former dry cleaner building to control the potential indoor migration of vapors from the residual contamination. As well, deed restrictions were placed on the property to prevent usage of groundwater and contact with residual soil contamination.

In addition, a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was performed in November 1991 for the parcels on the eastern portion of the Site. The ESA identified several potential environmental conditions including possible underground storage tanks, drums, an inoperable piston arrangement for a hydraulic lift, and oil spills near the corner of First and Decatur Streets. Petroleum hydrocarbons, lower levels of chlorinated hydrocarbons, and several elevated inorganic compounds related to the above described conditions were detected in the soil and groundwater during the RI/FS. Two areas on the larger parcel that contained soil heavily contaminated with BTEX were excavated and bioremediated off-site in the late 1990s. However, during that source removal, another area of elevated BTEX contamination was found but was not addressed. As such, BTEX contamination in soil and groundwater exists proximate to these potential source areas.

#### 4. Remedial Process

The Applicant has applied for and been accepted into New York's Brownfield Cleanup Program as a Volunteer. This means that the Applicant was not responsible for the disposal or discharge of the contaminants or whose ownership or operation of the site took place after the discharge or disposal of contaminants.

The Applicant in its Application proposes that the Site will be used for restricted purposes. To achieve this goal, the Applicant will conduct remedial activities at the Site with oversight provided by NYSDEC. The Brownfield Cleanup Agreement provides the responsibilities of each party in conducting a remedial program at the Site.

NYSDEC determines whether the Site poses a significant threat to public health and/or the environment. If NYSDEC determines that the Site is a "significant threat," a qualifying community group may apply for a Technical Assistance Grant (TAG). The purpose of a TAG is to provide funds to the qualifying community group to obtain independent technical assistance. This assistance helps the TAG recipient to interpret and understand existing environmental information about the nature and extent of contamination related to the Site and the development/implementation of a remedy.

For more information about the TAG Program and the availability of TAGs, go online at: www.dec.state.ny.us/website/der

After NYSDEC approves the RI Report, the Applicant will be able to develop a Remedial Work Plan. The Remedial Work Plan describes how the Applicant would address the contamination related to the Site.

The public would have the opportunity to review and comment on the remediation proposal. The Site contact list would be sent a fact sheet that describes the Remedial Work Plan and announces a 45-day public comment period. NYSDEC would factor this input into its decision to approve, reject or modify the Remedial Work Plan.

Approval of the Remedial Work Plan by NYSDEC would allow the Applicant to design and construct the alternative selected to remediate the Site. The Site contact list would receive notification before the start of Site remediation. When the Applicant completes remedial activities, it will prepare a Remedial Action Report that certifies that remediation activities have been achieved or will be achieved within a specific time frame. NYSDEC will review the report to be certain that the remediation is protective of public health and the environment for the intended use for the Site. The Site contact list would receive a fact sheet that announces the completion of remedial activities and the review of the Remedial Action Report.

NYSDEC would then issue the Applicant a Certificate of Completion. This Certificate states that remediation goals have been achieved, and relieves the Applicant from future remedial liability, subject to statutory conditions. If the Applicant used institutional controls or engineering controls to

achieve remedial objectives, the Site contact list would receive a fact sheet discussing such controls.

An institutional control is a non-physical means of enforcing a restriction on the use of real property that limits human or environmental exposure; restricts the use of groundwater; provides notice to potential owners, operators, or members of the public; or prevents actions that would interfere with the effectiveness of a remedial program or with the effectiveness and/or integrity of site management at or pertaining to a brownfield site. An example of an institutional control is an environmental easement.

An engineering control is a physical barrier or method employed to actively or passively contain, stabilize, or monitor contamination; restrict the movement of contamination to ensure the long-term effectiveness of a remedial program; or eliminate potential exposure pathways to contamination. Examples include caps and vapor barriers.

Site management will be conducted by the Applicant as required with appropriate NYSDEC oversight.

Activities required to be conducted to inform and involve the public during the site's remedial process are introduced in Section 5 and identified in the chart in Appendix C.

#### 5. Citizen Participation Activities

CP activities that have already occurred and are planned during the investigation and remediation of the site under the BCP are included in Appendix C: Summary of Citizen Participation Activities. NYSDEC will ensure that these CP activities are conducted, with appropriate assistance from the Applicant.

All CP activities seek to provide the public with significant information about site findings and planned remedial activities, and some activities announce comment periods and request public input about important draft documents such as the Proposed Remedial Work Plan.

The CP Plan for the site may be revised based on changes in the site's remedial program or major issues of public concern.

All written materials developed for the public will be reviewed and approved by NYSDEC for clarity and accuracy before they are distributed.

#### 6. Major Issue of Public Concern

This section of the CP Plan identifies major issues of public concern as they relate to the site. Additional major issues of public concern may be identified during the site's remedial process.

#### Local Residents

The Site Remediation will be carried out by professionals experienced in performing cleanup activities in densely populated areas. All work will be conducted under a site-specific Health and Safety Plan and Community Air Monitoring Program approved by the NYSDEC and NYSDOH. The Site Remediation will be conducted over a limited duration (approximately 4-6 weeks) and during normal business hours. Soil excavations will be secured to eliminate the risk of injury. The Site Remediation will be performed with minimal equipment; hence, there will be no change in traffic patterns.

#### Stakeholders

The Site Remediation must be completed during the 2005 construction season in order to begin development in the fall of 2005. The sequencing of events is important to the timely redevelopment of the Site.

# **Appendix A – Project Contacts and Document Repositories**

#### **Project Contacts**

For information about the site's remedial program, the public may contact the following NYSDEC project contacts:

Mr. David Chiusano Project Manager NYSDEC Region 8 625 Broadway, 12<sup>th</sup> Floor Albany, NY 12233-7013 (518) 402-9813 Ms. Lisa LoMaestro Silvestri Citizen Participation Specialist NYSDEC Region 8 6274 East Avon-Lima Road Avon, NY 14414 (585) 226-5326

#### **Document Repositories**

The document repositories identified below have been established to provide the public with convenient access to important project documents:

Watkins Glen Public Library 610 S. Decatur Street Watkins Glen NY 14891 Phone: (607) 535-2346 Hours: M, W, F 12-5 & 7-9 T, Th 10-5 & 7-9 Sat. 11-3, Sun. 2-4

-----

NYSDEC Region 8 Office 6274 East Avon-Lima Road Avon, NY 14414-9519 Attn: Ms. Lisa LoMaestro Silvestri Phone: (585) 226-5326 (Call for appointment)

# Appendix B – Identification of Citizen Participation Activities

<b>Required Citizen Participation Activity</b>	CP activity(ies) occur at this point	Date Completed		
Application Process:				
<ul> <li>Prepare brownfield site contact list (BSCL)</li> <li>Establish document repositories</li> <li>Publish notice in Environmental Notice Bulletin (ENB) announcing receipt of application and 30-day comment period</li> <li>Publish above ENB content in local newspaper</li> <li>Mail above ENB content to BSCL</li> </ul>	At time of preparation of application to participate in BCP. When NYSDEC determines that BCP application is complete. The 30 -day comment period begins on date of publication of notice in ENB. End date of comment period is as stated in ENB notice. Therefore, ENB, newspaper, and BSCL notices should be provided to the public at the same time.	May 2005 May 2005 Date Published Date Published Date Mailed		
After Execution of Brownfi eld Site Cleanup Ag	reement:			
• Prepare citizen participation (CP) plan	Draft CP Plan must be submitted within 20 days of entering Brownfield Site Cleanup Agreement. CP Plan must be approved by NYSDEC before distribution.	Date of CP Plan Final Approval		
After Remedial Investigation (RI) Work Plan R	eceived:			
• Mail fact sheet to BSCL about proposed RI activities and announcing 30-day public comment period on draft RI Work Plan	Before NYSDEC approves RI Work Plan. If RI Work Plan is submitted with applicatio n, comment periods will be combined and public notice will include fact sheet. 30 -day comment period begins/ends as per dates identified in fact sheet.	N/A		
After RI Completion:	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			
• Mail fact sheet to BSCL describing results of RI	Before NYSDEC ap proves RI Report	N/A		
After Remedial Work Plan (RWP) Received:				
<ul> <li>Mail fact sheet to BSCL about proposed RWP and announcing 45-day comment period</li> <li>Public meeting by NYSDEC about proposed RWP (if requested by public)</li> </ul>	Before NYSDEC approves RWP. 45 -day comment period begins/ends as per dates identified in fact sheet. Public meeting would be held within the 45-day comment period.	Date Mailed Date of Public Meeting		
After Approval of RWP:				
<ul> <li>Mail fact sheet to BSCL summarizing upcoming remedial construction</li> </ul>	Before the start of remedial construction	Date Mailed		
After Remedial Action Completed:				
<ul> <li>Mail fact sheet to BSCL announcing that remedial construction has been completed</li> <li>Mail fact sheet to BSCL announcing issuance of Certificate of Completion (COC)</li> </ul>	At the time NYSDEC approves Final Engineering Report. These two fact sheets should be combined when possible if there is not a delay in issuance of COC	Date Mailed Date Mailed		

ապետագերի են ին հարելու են հետում

\_\_\_\_

## Appendix C – Brownfield Site Contact List

(Provided by NYSDEC Region 8 Citizen Participation Specialist – updated April 30, 2004)

LAWRENCE & DOMINIC ROMEO PO BOX 285 112 BROADWAY MONTOUR FALLS NY 14865-0285

WINE & GLASS TOUR INC 1 1/2 FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

SENECA HARBOR STATION 3 NORTH FRANKLIN STREET WATKINS GLEN, NY 14891

CURRENT RESIDENT 200 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

HELEN D HOLLAND OR CURRENT RESIDENT 101 E. 2<sup>ND</sup> STREET WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

RONALD D MATHEWS OR CURRENT RESIDENT 110 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

DENNIS MORRIS 3400 SKYLINE DR MONTOUR FALLS NY 14865-9613

SALLY CLARK OR CURRENT RESIDENT 104 S MADISON WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

T LEFEVER OR CURRENT RESIDENT 110 S MADISON AVE WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

JOYCE VANAMBURG OR CURRENT RESIDENT 109 S MADISON AVE WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

CAROL PETERS OR CURRENT RESIDENT 113 S MADISON AVE WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

----

GUTHRIE MEDICAL GROUP 1 FIRST ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891-1260

CURRENT RESIDENT 2 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

DONALD NARDE 56 BREESPORT RD HORSEHEADS NY 14845

CAPTAIN BILL'S BOAT CRUISES 1 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

CONRAIL 2001 MARKET ST PHILADELPHIA PA 19101-1419

SALVATORE & MARION SCATA 124 MITCHELL HOLLOW RD ODESSA NY 14869

SALVATORE & MARION SCATA 1809 PRAIRIE DUNES CIRCLE NORTH LAKELAND FL 33810-5721

GARY & LYNN HERZIG OR CURRENT RESIDENT 210 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS 1ST & N FRANKLIN STREETS WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

WILLIAM P SIMIELE OR CURRENT RESIDENT 800 MAGEE ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

THOMAS & MARY CLIFFORD OR CURRENT RESIDENT 900 PERRY STREET WATKINS GLEN NY 14891-1418

JOSEPH SCAPTURA OR CURRENT RESIDENT 15 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

DOMINICK FRANZESE OR CURRENT RESIDENT PO BOX 15 WATKINS GLEN NY 14891-0015

-----

CURRENT RESIDENT 29 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

RICHARD SCUTERI OR CURRENT RESIDENT 704 MAGEE ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891-1332

MARY HELEN DOLAND OR CURRENT RESIDENT 3811 ST RT 14A WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

CHARLES & NANCY COLE OR CURRENT RESIDENT 3130 RT 28 WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

WATKINS HOTEL 3475 STATE ROUTE 329 WATKINS GLEN NY 14891-9582

ROBERT L HERZIG OR CURRENT RESIDENT PO BOX 350 WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

QUALITY CONTROL MANAGER WATKINS SALT/CARGILL INC 518 EAST 4<sup>TH</sup> STREET WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

ROBERT PFUNTER OR CURRENT RESIDENT 1705 LAKE STREET ELMIRA NY 14901

MARY COOK THE CLEANING FACTORY 103 W MAIN ST MONTOUR FALLS NY 14865

CURRENT RESIDENT 310 E FOURTH ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

DIRECTOR SCHUYLER COUNTY ARC 203-205 12TH STREET WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

TERRENCE M HORGAN 132 TURNER PARK RD MONTOUR FALLS NY 14865

------

------

DONALD M DEAN PO BOX 792 BURDETT NY 14818

VERNON WEBSTER 4309 COUNTY RD 29 ROCK STREAM NY 14878

JOHN HARNAS OR CURRENT RESIDENT 2071 MEADS HILL RD WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

MIKE DRAZAUSKAS PO BOX 64 MECKLENBERG NY 14863

RICHARD WEAKLAND CORNING ENTERPRISES INC 114 PINE ST CORNING NY 14831

ALLAN FLORO, ESQ NIXON PEABODY LLP. CLINTON SQUARE - PO BOX 31051 ROCHESTER NY 14603-1051

MARK WEIRMILLER ZIFF WEIRMILLER & HAYDEN 303 WILLIAM STREET PO BOX 1338 ELMIRA NY 14902-1338

PETER S GILFILLAN, ESQ 600 LAFAYETTE COURT 465 MAIN ST BUFFALO NY 14203-1787

CYNTHIA S HUTCHINSON, ESQ SAYLES, EVANS, BRAYTON, PALMER & TIFFT 1 WEST CHURCH ST ELMIRA NY 14901

JOHN C.T. HAYES ATTORNEY AT LAW 2481 TEXAS HOLLOW ROAD ODESSA NY 14869-9607
EARNEST PELTZ, ESQ. STAHR & CURRAN LAW FIRM 7 WEST MORRIS ST., PO BOX 386 BATH NY 14810

PETER KROG 4 CENTER DR ORCHARD PARK NY 14127

FINGER LAKES BOARD OF REALTORS INC 13 W MAIN ST WATERLOO NY 13165

THOMAS RYAN SCHUYLER CO TAXPAYERS ASSOC 2305 UPPER FALLS HILL RD MONTOUR FALLS NY 14865

JOHN CHEROCK OR CURRENT RESIDENT 200 THIRD ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

CHARLES & DONNA SMITH OR CURRENT RESIDENT 309 E THIRD STREET WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

JOHN MARGRENO OR CURRENT RESIDENT 805 MAGEE ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

LELA M POTTER PO BOX 172 HECTOR NY 14841-0172

PRESIDENT SCHUYLER CO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PO BOX 268 WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

J. KELSEY JONES EXEC DIRECTOR SCHUYLER CO PARTNERSHIP FOR ECON DEV INC 2 N.FRANKLIN ST., SUITE 330 WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

ELIZABETH STAMP CHAIRPERSON SCHUYLER CO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 4024 RTE 14 WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

د به بین مسیحه عبور وبد عبور به از ا

CHUCK DUSEL URS CONSULTANTS INC 640 ELLICOTT ST #3 BUFFALO NY 14203-1221

JOE CZAMANSKE DIR SCHUYLER CO PLANNING & COMM RURAL URBAN CENTER 208 BROADWAY ST RM 301 MONTOUR FALLS NY 14865

WATKINS GLEN PUBLIC LIBRARY 610 S DECATUR ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

WATKINS GLEN REVIEW-EXPRESS 210 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

HI-LITES 217 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

JAMES HOWELL WATERSHED INSPECTOR 105 NINTH ST BOX 18 WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

GORDON WRIGHT CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER VILLAGE OF WATKINS GLEN 303 NORTH FRANKLIN STREET WATKINS GLEN, NY 14891

JEROLD MARVEL SCHUYLER CO LEGISLATURE 105 NINTH ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

DAVID LISK BLDG & GROUNDS SUPV SCHUYLER COUNTY 105 9TH ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

MARK L. SPECCHIO, SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC WORKS VILLAGE OF WATKINS GLEN 303 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

من به هم هم مع م م م

-----

ROBERT H LEE, MAYOR VILLAGE OF WATKINS GLEN 303 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

DONNA BEARDSLEY, CLERK VILLAGE OF WATKINS GLEN 303 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

GREGORY COON TRUSTEE VILLAGE OF WATKINS GLEN 303 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

LAUREN LODGE TRUSTEE VILLAGE OF WATKINS GLEN 303 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

MARK STEPHANY TRUSTEE VILLAGE OF WATKINS GLEN 303 N FRANKLIN ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

NEWS DIRECTOR WENY-TV 36 474 OLD ITHACA ROAD HORSEHEADS NY 14845-7212

ASSIGNMENT EDITOR WETM-TV 18 101 E WATER ST ELMIRA NY 14901

NEWS DIRECTOR WELM-AM/WLVY-FM 1705 LAKE ST ELMIRA NY 14901

NEWS DIRECTOR WWLZ-AM/WPGI-FM 2205 COLLEGE AVE ELMIRA NY 14903

DON FORDHAM 2152 W GENESEE ST AUBURN NY 13021

------

- ... .. ... - - -

NEWS DIRECTOR WFLR-AM/FM 30 MAIN ST DUNDEE NY 14837

OPERATIONS MGR WYLF-AM 100 MAIN ST PENN YAN NY 14527

METRO EDITOR STAR-GAZETTE 201 BALDWIN ST PO BOX 285 ELMIRA NY 14902-9921

CITY EDITOR THE LEADER 34 W PULTENEY ST CORNING NY 14830

THE HONORABLE ARMORY HOUGHTON U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 32 DENISON PKWY W CORNING NY 14830

THE HONORABLE HILLARY RODHAM CLINTON UNITED STATES SENATE KENNETH B. KEATING FEDERAL OFFICE BUILDING 100 STATE STREET, ROOM 3280 ROCHESTER, NY 14614

THE HONORABLE CHARLES SCHUMER UNITED STATES SENATE 304 FEDERAL BLDG 100 STATE ST ROCHESTER NY 14614

THE HONORABLE JAMES G BACALLES NYS ASSEMBLY 103 GANESVOORT ST BATH NY 14810

THE HONORABLE JOHN R KUHL JR NYS SENATE 18 BUELL ST PO BOX 153 BATH NY 14810

. . . . . . . . .

----

. . . .

- - - - - - -

LARRY ENNIST ENV REMEDIATION NYSDEC 625 BROADWAY, 12<sup>TH</sup> FLOOR ALBANY NY 12233-7012

LINDA VERA NYSDEC 6274 E AVON-LIMA RD AVON NY 14414-9519

M D MEHTA PE NYSDEC 6274 E AVON-LIMA RD AVON NY 14414-9519

BART PUTZIG,PE NYSDEC 6274 E AVON-LIMA RD AVON NY 14414

LISA SILVESTRI NYSDEC 6274 E AVON-LIMA RD AVON NY 14414-9519

NYSDEC HORSEHEADS SUB-OFFICE 276 SING SING RD SUITE 1 HORSEHEADS NY 14845

GLEN BAILEY DIV OF ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT NYSDEC REGION 9 270 MICHIGAN AVE BUFFALO NY 14203-2999

- - - -

MARK VAN VALKENBURG NYS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH FLANIGAN SQUARE ROOM 300 547 RIVER STREET TROY NY 12180

RICHARD BILLS NYS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH HORNELL DISTRICT OFFICE 107 BROADWAY HORNELL NY 14843

MARY YOUNG NYSDEC-MEDIA RELATIONS 625 BROADWAY, 14<sup>TH</sup> FLOOR ALBANY, NY 12233-1016

and the second second

- -----

THOMAS M GIFFORD CHAIRMAN SCHUYLER COUNTY LEGISLATURE COUNTY OFFICE BLDG 105 NINTH ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14865

GAIL M WILLIS SCHUYLER COUNTY CLERK COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING 105 NINTH ST, UNIT #8 WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

CHARLES FRANZESE DIRECTOR SCHUYLER COUNTY EMC 208 W BROADWAY ST MONTOUR FALLS NY 14865

SCHUYLER COUNTY IDA 105 NINTH ST WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

DISTRICT MANAGER SCHUYLER COUNTY SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 208 W BROADWAY ST MONTOUR FALLS NY 14865

CENTER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL INFO 55 ST PAUL ST ROCHESTER NY 14604-1314

JUDY ROBINSON CITIZENS' ENVIRONMENTAL COALITION WESTERN NEW YORK OFFICE 543 FRANKLIN STREET BUFFALO NY 14202-1109

JOHN VAN NIEL NAT RES CONSERVATION INSTRUCTOR FINGER LAKES COMMUNITY COLLEGE 4355 LAKE SHORE DR CANANDAIGUA NY 14424-8395

MARION BALYSZAK EXEC DIR SENECA LAKE PURE WATERS ASSOC PO BOX 247 435 EXCHANGE ST STE 20 GENEVA NY 14456-0247

and a second second

-----

WILLIAM HESS EXEC DIRECTOR SOUTHERN TIER CENTRAL REGIONAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT BOARD 145 VILLAGE SQ PAINTED POST NY 14870-1320

VILLAGE OF WATKINS GLEN WATKINS GLEN WATER FILTRATION PLANT STEUBEN STREET WATKINS GLEN NY 14891

WATKINS GLEN SCHOOL DISTRICT (EIGHT BLOCKS FROM SITE) MARY ELLEN CORREA, SUPERINTENDENT 12<sup>TH</sup> STREET WATKINS GLEN NY 14891 SENECA HARBOR STATION 3 N.FRANKLIN STREET WATKINS GLEN, NY 14891

SHARON S. BINGELL SCHUYLER CO. REPRESENTATIVE 2715 IRELANDVILLE ROAD WATKINS GLEN, NY 14891

RUTH YOUNG SCHUYLER CO. REPRESENTATIVE 1580 SUGAR HILL ROAD WATKINS GLEN, NY 14891

GAIL M. HUGHEY, CLERK SCHUYLER CO. LEGISLATURE 3011 COUNTY ROUTE 16 WATKINS GLEN, NY 14891

CHARLES FRANZESE ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIVE STC REGIONAL PLANNING & DEVLP BOARD 145 VILLAGE SQUARE PANITED POST, NY 14870

STAN CRISS FAGAN ENGINEERS 113 E.CHEMUNG PLACE ELMIRA, NY 14904

JACKIE & MIKE GIASSI WATERFALLS OF THE FINGERLAKES 20 NORTH FRANKLIN STREET WATKINS GLEN, NY 14891

-----

CHESTER HOLMES SENECA LAKE JEWELRY & POTTERY 22 NORTH FRANKLIN STREET WATKINS GLEN, NY 14891

- --- -

a san ang ing sa sa

a and a set was set was the set was was and and a

# Appendix D – Site Location Map

.....

# FIGURE 1





NYSDOH Generic Community Air Monitoring Plan



. . . . . .

-----

# **APPENDIX 1A**

# New York State Department of Health Generic Community Air Monitoring Plan

A Community Air Monitoring Plan (CAMP) requires real-time monitoring for volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and particulates (i.e., dust) at the downwind perimeter of each designated work area when certain activities are in progress at contaminated sites. The CAMP is not intended for use in establishing action levels for worker respiratory protection. Rather, its intent is to provide a measure of protection for the downwind community (i.e., off-site receptors including residences and businesses and on-site workers not directly involved with the subject work activities) from potential airborne contaminant releases as a direct result of investigative and remedial work activities. The action levels specified herein require increased monitoring, corrective actions to abate emissions, and/or work shutdown. Additionally, the CAMP helps to confirm that work activities did not spread contamination off-site through the air.

The generic CAMP presented below will be sufficient to cover many, if not most, sites. Specific requirements should be reviewed for each situation in consultation with NYSDOH to ensure proper applicability. In some cases, a separate site-specific CAMP or supplement may be required. Depending upon the nature of contamination, chemical- specific monitoring with appropriately-sensitive methods may be required. Depending upon the proximity of potentially exposed individuals, more stringent monitoring or response levels than those presented below may be required. Special requirements will be necessary for work within 20 feet of potentially exposed individuals or structures and for indoor work with co-located residences or facilities. These requirements should be determined in consultation with NYSDOH.

Reliance on the CAMP should not preclude simple, common-sense measures to keep VOCs, dust, and odors at a minimum around the work areas.

### **Community Air Monitoring Plan**

Depending upon the nature of known or potential contaminants at each site, real-time air monitoring for volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and/or particulate levels at the perimeter of the exclusion zone or work area will be necessary. Most sites will involve VOC and particulate monitoring; sites known to be contaminated with heavy metals alone may only require particulate monitoring. If radiological contamination is a concern, additional monitoring requirements may be necessary per consultation with appropriate NYSDEC/NYSDOH staff.

**Continuous monitoring** will be required for all <u>ground intrusive</u> activities and during the demolition of contaminated or potentially contaminated structures. Ground intrusive activities include, but are not limited to, soil/waste excavation and handling, test pitting or trenching, and the installation of soil borings or monitoring wells.

**Periodic monitoring** for VOCs will be required during <u>non-intrusive</u> activities such as the collection of soil and sediment samples or the collection of groundwater samples from existing monitoring wells. "Periodic" monitoring during sample collection might reasonably consist of taking a reading upon arrival at a sample location, monitoring while opening a well cap or overturning soil, monitoring during well baling/purging, and taking a reading prior to leaving a sample location. In some instances, depending upon the proximity of potentially exposed individuals, continuous monitoring may be required during sampling activities. Examples of such situations include groundwater sampling at wells on the curb of a busy urban street, in the midst of a public park, or adjacent to a school or residence.

#### VOC Monitoring, Response Levels, and Actions

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) must be monitored at the downwind perimeter of the immediate work area (i.e., the exclusion zone) on a continuous basis or as otherwise specified. Upwind concentrations should be measured at the start of each workday and periodically thereafter to establish background conditions. The monitoring work should be performed using equipment appropriate to measure the types of contaminants known or suspected to be present. The equipment should be calibrated at least daily for the contaminant(s) of concern or for an appropriate surrogate. The equipment should be capable of calculating 15-minute running average concentrations, which will be compared to the levels specified below.

- If the ambient air concentration of total organic vapors at the downwind perimeter of the work area or exclusion zone exceeds 5 parts per million (ppm) above background for the 15-minute average, work activities must be temporarily halted and monitoring continued. If the total organic vapor level readily decreases (per instantaneous readings) below 5 ppm over background, work activities can resume with continued monitoring.
- If total organic vapor levels at the downwind perimeter of the work area or exclusion zone persist at levels in excess of 5 ppm over background but less than 25 ppm, work activities must be halted, the source of vapors identified, corrective actions taken to abate emissions, and monitoring continued. After these steps, work activities can resume provided that the total organic vapor level 200 feet downwind of the exclusion zone or half the distance to the nearest potential receptor or residential/commercial structure, whichever is less but in no case less than 20 feet, is below 5 ppm over background for the 15-minute average.
- If the organic vapor level is above 25 ppm at the perimeter of the work area, activities must be shutdown.

All 15-minute readings must be recorded and be available for State (DEC and DOH) personnel to review. Instantaneous readings, if any, used for decision purposes should also be recorded.

#### Particulate Monitoring, Response Levels, and Actions

Particulate concentrations should be monitored continuously at the upwind and downwind perimeters of the exclusion zone at temporary particulate monitoring stations. The particulate monitoring should be performed using real-time monitoring equipment capable of measuring particulate matter less than 10 micrometers in size (PM-10) and capable of integrating over a period of 15 minutes (or less) for comparison to the airborne particulate action level. The equipment must be equipped with an audible alarm to indicate exceedance of the action level. In addition, fugitive dust migration should be visually assessed during all work activities.

- If the downwind PM-10 particulate level is 100 micrograms per cubic meter (mcg/m<sup>3</sup>) greater than background (upwind perimeter) for the 15-minute period or if airborne dust is observed leaving the work area, then dust suppression techniques must be employed. Work may continue with dust suppression techniques provided that downwind PM-10 particulate levels do not exceed 150 mcg/m<sup>3</sup> above the upwind level and provided that no visible dust is migrating from the work area.
- If, after implementation of dust suppression techniques, downwind PM-10 particulate levels are greater than
  150 mcg/m<sup>3</sup> above the upwind level, work must be stopped and a re-evaluation of activities initiated. Work can
  resume provided that dust suppression measures and other controls are successful in reducing the downwind
  PM-10 particulate concentration to within 150 mcg/m<sup>3</sup> of the upwind level and in preventing visible dust
  migration.

All readings must be recorded and be available for State (DEC and DOH) personnel to review.

**DRAFT** DER-10 Technical Guidance for Site Investigation and Remediation December 2002